PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
Wednesday, December 20, 2023, 7:00 P.M.

A quorum of Planning Commission will be in attendance at
Tracy City Hall Chambers, 333 Civic Center Plaza, Tracy
Web Site: www.cityoftracy.org
And two Commissioners will attend remotely at the following locations:
SpringHill Suites by Marriott
3595 East Guasti Road, Ontario, CA 91761
&
2389 Santa Ana Ave, Costa Mesa, CA 92627

THIS MEETING WILL BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR IN-PERSON AND REMOTE
PARTICIPATION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953(e).

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY PARTICIPATE REMOTELY IN THE MEETING VIA THE
FOLLOWING METHOD:

As always, the public may view the Planning Commission meetings live on the City of Tracy’s
website at CityofTracy.org or on Comcast Channel 26/AT&T U-verse Channel 99. To view from
the City’s website, open the “Government” menu at the top of the City’s homepage and select
“Planning Commission”, then select “Planning Commission Meeting Videos” under the “Boards
and Commissions” section.

If you only wish to watch the meeting and do not wish to address the Council, the City requests
that you stream the meeting through the City’s website or watch on Channel 26.

Remote Public Comment:

During the upcoming Planning Commission meeting public comment will be accepted via the
options listed below. If you would like to comment remotely, please follow the protocols below:
e Comments via:
o Online by visiting https://cityoftracyevents.webex.com and using the following
o Event Number: 2550 121 3379 and Event Password: Planning
o If you would like to participate in the public comment anonymously, you
may submit your comment in WebEXx by typing “Anonymous” when prompted to
provide a First and Last Name and inserting Anonymous@example.com when
prompted to provide an email address.
o Join by phone by dialing +1-408-418-9388, 2550 121 3379#75266464# Press *3
to raise the hand icon to speak on an item.

e Protocols for commenting via WebEx:
o If you wish to comment on the “New Business” or “Items from the Audience”
portions of the agenda:
= Listen for the Chair to open that portion of the agenda for discussion,
then raise your hand to speak by clicking on the Hand icon on the
Participants panel to the right of your screen.
= [f you no longer wish to comment, you may lower your hand by clicking on
the Hand icon again.
o Comments for the “New Business” or “ltems from the Audience” portions of the
agenda will be accepted until the public comment for that item is closed.


http://www.cityoftracy.org/
https://www.cityoftracy.org/government/boards-and-commissions/planning-commission/planning-commission-meeting-videos
https://cityoftracyevents.webex.com/
mailto:Anonymous@example.com
http://www.cityoftracy.org/

Planning Commission Agenda
December 20, 2023
Page 2

Comments received on Webex outside of the comment periods outlined above will not be
included in the record.

Americans With Disabilities Act — The City of Tracy complies with the Americans with
Disabilities Act and makes all reasonable accommodations for the disabled to participate
in Council meetings. Persons requiring assistance or auxiliary aids should call City Hall
(209/831-6105) 24 hours prior to the meeting.

Addressing the Council on Items on the Agenda — The Brown Act provides that every
regular Council meeting shall provide an opportunity for the public to address the Council on
any item within its jurisdiction before or during the Council's consideration of the item,
provided no action shall be taken on any item not on the agenda. To facilitate the orderly
process of public comment and to assist the Council to conduct its business as efficiently as
possible, members of the public wishing to address the Council are requested to, but not
required to, hand a speaker card, which includes the speaker’'s name or other identifying
designation and address to the City Clerk prior to the agenda item being called. Generally,
once the City Council begins its consideration of an item, no more speaker cards will be
accepted. An individual's failure to present a speaker card or state their name shall not
preclude the individual from addressing the Council. Each citizen will be allowed a maximum
of five minutes for input or testimony. In the event there are 15 or more individuals wishing
to speak regarding any agenda item including the “ltems from the Audience/Public
Comment” portion of the agenda and regular items, the maximum amount of time allowed
per speaker will be three minutes. When speaking under a specific agenda item, each
speaker should avoid repetition of the remarks of the prior speakers. To promote time
efficiency and an orderly meeting, the Presiding Officer may request that a spokesperson be
designated to represent similar views. A designated spokesperson shall have 10 minutes to
speak. At the Presiding Officer’s discretion, additional time may be granted. The City Clerk
shall be the timekeeper.

Addressing the Council on Iltems not on the Agenda — The Brown Act prohibits
discussion or action on items not on the posted agenda. The City Council’'s Meeting
Protocols and Rules of Procedure provide that in the interest of allowing Council to have
adequate time to address the agendized items of business, “ltems from the Audience/Public
Comment” following the Consent Calendar will be limited to 15-minutes maximum period.
“Items from the Audience/Public Comment” listed near the end of the agenda will not have a
maximum time limit. A five-minute maximum time limit per speaker will apply to all individuals
speaking during “ltems from the Audience/Public Comment”. For non-agendized items,
Council Members may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by individuals
during public comment; ask questions for clarification; direct the individual to the appropriate
staff member; or request that the matter be placed on a future agenda or that staff provide
additional information to Council. When members of the public address the Council, they
should be as specific as possible about their concerns. If several members of the public
comment on the same issue an effort should be made to avoid repetition of views already
expressed.

Notice — A 90-day limit is set by law for filing challenges in the Superior Court to certain City
administrative decisions and orders when those decisions or orders require: (1) a hearing by
law, (2) the receipt of evidence, and (3) the exercise of discretion. The 90-day limit begins on
the date the decision is final (Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6). Further, if you



Planning Commission Agenda
December 20, 2023
Page 3

challenge a City Council action in court, you may be limited, by California law, including but
not limited to Government Code Section 65009, to raising only those issues you or someone
else raised during the public hearing, or raised in written correspondence delivered to the
City Council prior to or at the public hearing.

Full copies of the agenda are available on the City’s website: www.cityoftracy.orq.

MEETING AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ACTIONS, BY MOTION, OF CITY COUNCIL PURSUANT TO AB 2449, IF ANY

ROLL CALL

MINUTES - 11/15/23 Regular Meeting

DIRECTOR’S REPORT REGARDING THIS AGENDA

ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE - In accordance with Council Meeting Protocols and Rules of
Procedure, adopted by Resolution No. 2019-240, a five-minute maximum time limit per speaker
will apply to all individuals speaking during “Items from the Audience/Public Comment”. For
non-agendized items, Planning Commissioners may briefly respond to statements made or
questions posed by individuals during public comment; ask questions for clarification; direct the

individual to the appropriate staff member; or request that the matter be placed on a future
agenda or that staff provide additional information to the Planning Commission.

1. NEW BUSINESS

1.A STAFF RECOMMENDS THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION: (A) ADOPT A
RESOLUTION TO (1) RESCIND PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION
2023-013 AND (2) GRANTING A RENEWED EXPIRATION DATE OF
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT CUP22-0004 (EXT23-0002) FOR A CANNABIS
DISPENSARY AT 2420 W. GRANT LINE ROAD, APNS 238-600-37 & 238-
190-22, TO MARCH 3, 2024; (B) ADOPT A RESOLUTION TO (1) RESCIND
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 2023-014 AND (2) GRANTING A
RENEWED EXPIRATION DATE OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT CUP22-
0003 (EXT23-0004) FOR A CANNABIS DISPENSARY 951 N. CENTRAL
AVENUE, APN 235-056-07, TO MARCH 3, 2024; (C) DETERMINE THAT THE
PROJECTS ARE CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT FROM THE CALIFORNIA
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT. THE APPLICANT IS THE CITY OF
TRACY, AND THE PROPERTY OWNERS ARE TOSTE FAMILY
ENTERPRISES AND J T STORAGE, LP. FOR EXT23-0002 AND JIVA TCY,
LLC FOR EXT23-0004.

1.B STAFF RECOMMENDS THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION ADOPT A
RESOLUTION (1) FINDING GOOD CAUSE UNDER TMC SECTION


http://www.cityoftracy.org./
http://www.cityoftracy.org./

Planning Commission Agenda
December 20, 2023
Page 4

10.08.4360 FOR APPLICANT’'S RENEWAL OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT;
(2) APPROVING RENEWAL (EXT23-0005) OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT
CUP21-0009 FOR A CANNABIS STOREFRONT RETAILER (DISPENSARY)
AT 316 & 320 W. ELEVENTH STREET (ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBERS
235-040-05 & 06) TO MARCH 3, 2024; AND (3) DETERMINING THAT THIS
PROJECT IS CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT FROM THE CALIFORNIA
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT. THE APPLICANT IS SAAD PATTAH AND
THE PROPERTY OWNERS ARE SAAD PATTAH AND REO CAPITAL
INVESTMENTS & ASSET MANAGEMENT, APPLICATION NUMBER EXT23-
0005.

ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE

N

3. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

ITEMS FROM THE COMMISSION

B

5. ADJOURNMENT

Posted: December 14, 2023

Any materials distributed to the majority of the Planning Commission regarding any item on this
agenda will be made available for public inspection via the City of Tracy website at
www.cityoftracy.orgq.




MINUTES
TRACY CITY PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING
NOVEMBER 15, 2023, 7:00 P.M.
CITY OF TRACY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
333 CIVIC CENTER PLAZA

CALL TO ORDER

Chair Orcutt called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chair Orcutt led the pledge of allegiance.

ROLL CALL

Roll Call found Commissioner English, Commissioner Penning, Vice Chair Atwal, and Chair
Orcutt present. Commissioner Boakye-Boateng absent. Also present: Alan Bell, Senior
Planner; Kenny Lipich, Associate Planner; Al Gali, Associate Civil Engineer; Jeffrey Crosswhite,
Assistant City Attorney; and Gina Peace, Executive Assistant.

MINUTES

Chair Orcutt introduced the Regular Meeting Minutes from the October 25, 2023 Planning
Commission Regular Meeting.

ACTION: It was moved by Vice Chair Atwal and seconded by Commissioner English to
approve the October 25, 2023 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes. A
voice vote found Chair Orcutt, Vice Chair Atwal, Commissioner English, and
Commissioner Penning in favor. Commissioner Boakye-Boateng absent. Passed
and so ordered; 4-0-1-0.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT REGARDING THIS AGENDA
None.

ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE

None.

1. NEW BUSINESS

A. STAFF RECOMMENDS THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION ADOPT A
RESOLUTION: (1) APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PERMIT OF A
NEW 7,562 SQUARE FOOT RESTAURANT WITH SITE IMPROVEMENTS AT
2770 NORTH NAGLEE ROAD; AND (2) DETERMINE THAT THE PROJECT IS
CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT FROM THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY ACT PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15332. THE
APPLICANT IS BJ’S RESTAURANT, INC. AND PROPERTY OWNER IS SPP
OUTPARCEL SPE, LLC, APPLICATION NUMBER D23-0005.



Planning Commission Minutes
November 15, 2023
Page 2

Kenny Lipich, Associate Planner, presented the staff report and addressed
questions from the Commission.

Joan Leguay, representing BJ’s Restaurant, Inc. addressed the Commission and
said she was available to answer questions.

Chair Orcutt opened the Public Hearing at 7:17 p.m., but seeing as no one wished to
speak, Chair Orcutt closed the Public Hearing.

ACTION: It was moved by Vice Chair Atwal and seconded by Commissioner English that the
Planning Commission adopt a resolution:

1. Approving a development review permit for development of a new 7,562 square
foot restaurant with site improvements at 2770 North Naglee Road; and

2. Determining that this project is categorically exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15332.

A roll call vote found Chair Orcutt, Vice Chair Atwal, Commissioner English, and
Commissioner Penning in favor. Commissioner Boakye-Boateng absent. Passed
and so ordered; 4-0-1-0.

B. STAFF RECOMMENDS THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION ADOPT A
RESOLUTION: (1) APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PERMIT FOR
CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW FREEWAY SIGN AT PARKWAY PLAZA,
LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF INTERNATIONAL PARKWAY
AND 1-205; AND (2) DETERMINING THAT THE PROJECT IS
CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT FROM THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY ACT PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINES SECTIONS 15183 AND
15311. THE APPLICANT AND OWNER IS DREW MICKEL ON BEHALF OF
R&B DELTA Il LLC, APPLICATION NUMBER D21-0003.

Kenny Lipich, Associate Planner, presented the staff report and addressed
questions from the Commission.

Chair Orcutt opened the Public Hearing at 7:28 p.m. Commission discussion
followed.

Seeing as no one came forward, Chair Orcutt closed the Public Hearing at 7:49 p.m.
Kenny Lipich, Associate Planner, addressed questions from the Commission.

ACTION: It was moved by Vice Chair Atwal and seconded by Commissioner Penning that the
Planning Commission adopt a resolution:

1. Approving a development review permit for construction of a new freeway sign
at Parkway Plaza, located at the southeast corner of International Parkway and
1-205; and



Planning Commission Minutes
November 15, 2023

Page 3

5.

2. Determining that this project is categorically exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15183 and
15311.

A roll call vote found Chair Orcutt, Vice Chair Atwal, Commissioner English, and
Commissioner Penning in favor. Commissioner Boakye-Boateng absent. Passed
and so ordered; 4-0-1-0.

ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE
None.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

None.

ITEMS FROM THE COMMISSION

Chair Orcutt mentioned that the League of California Cities was hosting the Planning
Commissioners’ Academy in Long Beach, California in March 2024 (Commissioner
Penning advised the exact dates were 03.06.2024-03.08.2024), and Chair Orcutt
requested possible attendance of the Commission to the Academy, especially the new
Commissioners.

Commissioner English asked if the Housing Element (HE) deadline had been met, and
the HE Update was submitted. Alan Bell, Senior Planner, advised that the HE would be
able to be submitted after November 22, 2023.

Vice Chair Atwal inquired about how to follow up on the “action items” that were agreed
upon at the joint City Council / Planning Commission meeting regarding the draft
Housing Element. Vice Chair Atwal asked what the correct mechanism would be to
bring the draft HE discussion before the Planning Commission. Alan Bell, Senior
Planner, advised that Vice Chair Atwal could request that the Planning Commission
agendize a discussion regarding the draft HE at the next meeting, but the Commission
could not discuss at this time, during Items from the Commission. No motion was
brought forward.

Commissioner English asked when the Food Truck Ordinance would be on the Planning
Commission’s agenda, as Scott Claar had previously said it would be on tonight’s
agenda. Jeffrey Crosswhite, Assistant City Attorney, advised that the last update he
recalls had the Food Truck Ordinance being presented to Planning Commission next
month.

ADJOURNMENT

ACTION: It was moved by Chair Orcutt and seconded by Vice Chair Atwal to adjourn.



Planning Commission Minutes
November 15, 2023
Page 4

A voice vote found Chair Orcutt, Vice Chair Atwal, Commissioner English, and

Commissioner Penning in favor. Commissioner Boakye-Boateng absent. Passed
and so ordered; 4-0-1-0.

Time: 8:03 p.m.

CHAIR

STAFF LIAISON



December 20, 2023
Agenda ltem 1.A

RECOMMENDATION

STAFF RECOMMENDS THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION:

(A) ADOPT A RESOLUTION TO (1) RESCIND PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION
2023-013 AND (2) GRANTING A RENEWED EXPIRATION DATE OF CONDITIONAL USE
PERMIT CUP22-0004 (EXT23-0002) FOR A CANNABIS DISPENSARY AT 2420 W. GRANT
LINE ROAD, APNS 238-600-37 & 238-190-22, TO MARCH 3, 2024;

(B) ADOPT A RESOLUTION TO (1) RESCIND PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION
2023-014 AND (2) GRANTING A RENEWED EXPIRATION DATE OF CONDITIONAL USE
PERMIT CUP22-0003 (EXT23-0004) FOR A CANNABIS DISPENSARY 951 N. CENTRAL
AVENUE, APN 235-056-07, TO MARCH 3, 2024;

(C) DETERMINE THAT THE PROJECTS ARE CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT FROM THE
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT.

THE APPLICANT IS THE CITY OF TRACY, AND THE PROPERTY OWNERS ARE TOSTE
FAMILY ENTERPRISES AND J T STORAGE, LP. FOR EXT23-0002 AND JIVA TCY, LLC
FOR EXT23-0004.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This agenda item recommends that the Planning Commission amend the expiration date to
March 3, 2024, for the two Cannabis Conditional Use Permit (CUP) renewals, EXT23-0004 and
EXT23-0002, granted on October 25, 2023, by Planning Commission Resolutions 2023-013
and 2023-014. This amended renewal date is commensurate with the current expiration dates
of the CUPs’ associated Cannabis Business Permits.

BACKGROUND, LEGISLATIVE HISTORY AND ANALYSIS

Pursuant to TMC Section 10.08.4350, CUPs allow applicants a period of six (6) months to
obtain a building permit and commence and diligently pursue construction on the site. Under
TMC Section 10.08.4350, the CUP expires and is deemed void if the applicant fails to so
comply. Under TMC Section 10.08.4360, the CUP may be extended by the Planning
Commission provided 1) the new time limit is “reasonable, based on size, nature, and
complexity of the proposed development,” and 2) the Planning Commission finds “good cause,
such as proof of an unusual hardship not of the applicant’'s own making.”

Acting pursuant to Tracy Municipal Code (TMC) Section 10.08.4350, on October 25, 2023, the
Planning Commission granted a six-month Conditional Use Permit renewal to the Garden of
Eden Cannabis Dispensary (CUP22-0004) that would not expire until April 27, 2024, and a six-
month CUP renewal to the Jiva TCY Cannabis Dispensary (CUP22-0003) that would not expire
until March 29, 2024 (Planning Commission Resolutions 2023-013 and 2023-014).



Agenda Item 1.A
Planning Commission
December 20, 2023
Page 2

Subsequent to the October 25, 2023, Planning Commission taking action on the CUP renewals,
the City discovered the new expiration dates of the subject CUP renewals exceeded the
applicants’ present Cannabis Business Permit expiration dates, and that no request for renewal
of those Cannabis Business Permits were pending. The Cannabis Business Permits associated
with CUP22-0004 and CUP22-0003 are CBPA20-0034 and CBPA20-0017 respectively, and
both business permits are valid until March 3, 2024 (City Council Ordinance No. 1338).

As a result, the staff determined that although CUP renewals were validly approved based on
good cause, the expiration dates of those renewals were granted beyond the authority of the
Commission because they expressly authorize establishing a conditional use for a duration of
time in exceedance of the current expiration date of their associated Cannabis Business
Permits. As with the term initially granted at issuance of the CUP, extensions thereto cannot
exceed known dates of noncompliance, such as expiration of a required Cannabis Business
Permit. Moreover, TMC Section 10.08.4420 prohibits issuance of any license or use permit in
conflict with another license or permit. This agenda item cures the error to revive a valid CUP
renewal for the applicants.

Cannabis Business Permits may be renewed by application pursuant to TMC 6.36.100 so long
as the City Police Chief finds that the applicant meets the criteria set forth in TMC Section
6.36100(c) and those additional criteria set forth in TMC Section 6.36.070. Here, the subject
applicants have not submitted Cannabis Business Permit renewal applications, there are no
findings meeting the required criteria, and the Planning Commission lacks subject matter
jurisdiction to grant Cannabis Business Permit Renewals.

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission amend the renewal periods for both CUP22-
0004 and CUP22-0003 to expire on March 3, 2024, the same date of expiration of each
applicant’s Cannabis Business Permit.

PUBLIC OUTREACH / INTEREST

A public hearing notice for the project was mailed to all property owners within a 300-foot radius
of the project site, posted on the City website, and also published in the Tracy Press, and the
Planning Commission agenda packet was posted on the City website, City Hall, and the Tracy
Branch Library. City staff notified the applicants directly of this proposed renewal amendment to
their CUPs.

CEQA DETERMINATION

The proposed projects are categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301, which pertains to minor alterations and
additions to existing facilities in an area where all public services and facilities are available,
and which is not environmentally sensitive. In accordance with CEQA Guidelines, no further
environmental assessment is required.



Agenda Item 1.A
Planning Commission
December 20, 2023
Page 3

ACTION REQUESTED OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION

STAFF RECOMMENDS THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION:
(A) ADOPT A RESOLUTION TO (1) RESCIND PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION
2023-013 AND (2) GRANTING A RENEWED EXPIRATION DATE OF CONDITIONAL USE
PERMIT CUP22-0004 (EXT23-0002) FOR A CANNABIS DISPENSARY AT 2420 W. GRANT
LINE ROAD, APNS 238-600-37 & 238-190-22, TO MARCH 3, 2024,

(B) ADOPT A RESOLUTION TO (1) RESCIND PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION
2023-014 AND (2) GRANTING A RENEWED EXPIRATION DATE OF CONDITIONAL USE
PERMIT CUP22-0003 (EXT23-0004) FOR A CANNABIS DISPENSARY 951 N. CENTRAL
AVENUE, APN 235-056-07, TO MARCH 3, 2024;

(C) DETERMINE THAT THE PROJECTS ARE CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT FROM THE
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT.

Prepared by: Kimberly Matlock, Associate Planner

Reviewed by: Alan Bell, Senior Planner
Bill Dean, Assistant Development Services Director
Jeffrey Crosswhite, Assistant City Attorney

Approved by: Karin Schnaider, Assistant City Manager / Interim Development Services Director

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A — Planning Commission Resolution for EXT23-0002
Exhibit 1 — Findings
Exhibit 2 — Conditions of Approval

Attachment B — Planning Commission Resolution for EXT23-0004

Exhibit 1 — Findings
Exhibit 2 — Conditions of Approval



Attachment A

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE
TRACY PLANNING COMMISSION

RESOLUTION 2023-

1. RESCINDING PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 2023-013;

2. GRANTING A RENEWED EXPIRATION DATE OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT
CUP22-0004 (EXT23-0002) FOR A CANNABIS DISPENSARY AT 2420 W. GRANT
LINE ROAD, APNS 238-600-37 & 238-190-22, TO MARCH 3, 2024; AND

3. DETERMINING THAT THIS PROJECT IS CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT FROM THE
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT.

WHEREAS, the applicant was awarded a Cannabis Business Permit (Application
Number CBPA20-0034) on March 3, 2022, by the Tracy Police Chief, which is valid until March
3, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the applicant was granted a Conditional Use Permit (Application Number
CUP22-0004) to establish a cannabis dispensary at 2420 W. Grant Line Road; and

WHEREAS, the Conditional Use Permit, which took effect on October 27, 2022, was
granted a time limit of one year for the use to be established in accordance with TMC Section
10.08.4360; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to TMC Section 10.08.4350, CUPs allow applicants a period of six
(6) months to obtain a building permit and commence and diligently pursue construction on the
site; the CUP expires and is deemed void if the applicant fails to so comply; and

WHEREAS, under TMC Section 10.08.4360, the CUP may be extended by the Planning
Commission provided 1) the new time limit is “reasonable, based on size, nature, and
complexity of the proposed development,” and 2) the Planning Commission finds “good cause,
such as proof of an unusual hardship not of the applicant’'s own making;” and

WHEREAS, on August 23, 2023, the applicant submitted an application requesting an
additional 12 months to establish the use; and

WHEREAS, the subject property is designated Commercial in the Tracy General Plan
and zoned General Highway Commercial, wherein cannabis dispensaries are conditionally
permitted; and

WHEREAS, the applicant proposed no changes to the project from that which was
approved under CUP22-0004; and



Resolution 2023-
Page 2

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing to review and consider
the project on October 25, 2023;

WHEREAS, the Applicant has demonstrated good cause for an extension of the CUP
under TMC 10.08.4360 based on hardships derived from difficulties and delays in obtaining a
building permit;

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission initially granted a renewal of the Conditional Use
Permit for a period of six months, which extended the permit to April 27, 2024; and

WHEREAS, subsequent to the approval of the CUP renewal for six months, the City
determined that the expiration date of the CUP renewal was approved beyond the authority of the
Planning Commission because it expressly authorizes establishing a conditional use for a
duration of time in exceedance of the expiration date of its associated Cannabis Business Permit;
and

WHEREAS, the time of the extended CUP must expire on March 3, 2024 because TMC
Section 10.08.4420 prohibits issuance of any license or use permit in conflict with another
license or permit, and the applicant’s Cannabis Business Permit expires on March 3, 2024;

WHEREAS, on December 20, 2024, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing
to review and consider an amendment to the CUP renewal to be valid until March 3, 2024 in
alignment with the expiration date of its associated Cannabis Business Permit; now, therefore, be
it

RESOLVED: the Planning Commission incorporates and adopts the foregoing recitals as
findings of fact; and be it further

RESOLVED: That the Planning Commission hereby rescinds Planning Commission
Resolution 2023-013 dated October 25, 2023; and be it further

RESOLVED: That the Planning Commission approves the renewal of Conditional Use
Permit CUP22-0004 (Application Number EXT23-0002) with the expiration date of March 3,
2024 pursuant to Tracy Municipal Code Section 10.08.4360 and the finding that such expiration
date is reasonable; and be it further

RESOLVED: That the Planning Commission finds that the project is categorically
exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section
15301, pertaining existing facilities in an area where all public services and facilities are
available, and which is not environmentally sensitive.

* k k k k ok k k k ok ok k ok oKk



Resolution 2023-
Page 3

The foregoing Resolution 2023- was adopted by the Planning Commission on
December 20, 2023, by the following vote:

AYES: COMMISSION MEMBERS:
NOES: COMMISSION MEMBERS:
ABSENT: COMMISSION MEMBERS:
ABSTENTION: COMMISSION MEMBERS:

CHAIR

ATTEST:

STAFF LIAISON

Exhibit 1 — Project Findings
Exhibit 2 — Project Conditions of Approval



Exhibit 1

City of Tracy
Garden of Eden Cannabis Dispensary CUP22-0004
Conditional Use Permit Findings
Application Number EXT23-0002

(a) There are circumstances applicable to the use which make the granting of a use permit
renewal necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial property right,
because a conditional use permit is necessary for the operation of a cannabis dispensary
in the General Highway Commercial zone under the Tracy Municipal Code. The proposed
project meets the intent of the General Highway Commercial zone and otherwise complies
with development regulations of the zone.

(b) The proposed location of the use and the conditions under which it would be operated or
maintained is in accordance with the objectives of Tracy Municipal Code Chapters 6.36
and 10.08. Additionally, the project site is located at least 600 feet away from a parcel
containing a school, day care center, or youth center as defined in Chapter 10.08, and the
use will be operated wholly indoors. The use is a retail store, which is complementary to
the surrounding commercial area.

(c) The project will not, under the circumstances of the particular case or as conditioned, be
injurious or detrimental to the health, safety, or general welfare of persons or property in
the vicinity of the proposed use, or to the general welfare of the City. The proposed use of
a cannabis dispensary will function in a complementary manner to the surrounding retail
uses in the vicinity and will comply with City standards. The dispensary will implement all
safety and security conditions of approval prepared by the Tracy Police Department.

(d) The project is consistent with the zoning, commercial cannabis activity regulations, and
other elements of the Tracy Municipal Code the City of Tracy General Plan, the Design
Goals and Standards, City Standards, California Building Codes, California Fire Codes,
and California cannabis regulations. There will be no odors or similar objectionable
impacts to other businesses in the vicinity as all cannabis products will be entirely
packaged and stored in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 6.36. The
dispensary will implement odor control to prevent odors from emanating outside the
dispensary as outlined in the business’s odor control plan.

(e) The applicant applied for a renewal to the conditional use permit prior to expiration of the
original time period granted. Pursuant to Tracy Municipal Code Sections 10.08.4350 and
10.08.4360, the applicant has experienced unusual hardships not of the applicant’s own
making, including time necessary for obtaining approvals and permits following the Planning
Commission’s original granting of the conditional use permit, and therefore requires
additional time to obtain building permits and diligently pursue construction or occupy the
site with the approved cannabis business. In particular, the applicant was not able to begin
the required background check process until the City provided instructions seven months
after the applicant’s Conditional Use Permit was granted. The background check has been
in process for two months and is still pending results. Furthermore, the applicant is not able
to process the Community Benefit Agreement as required by the applicant’'s Cannabis
Business Permit and, indirectly, the Conditional Use Permit, until the background check is
completed. Additionally, the applicant has been actively pursuing a building permit over the
last nine months and is close to approval and issuance of the building permit, pending
completion of the background check and execution of a Community Benefit Agreement. For
these reasons, the Commission finds good cause for the extension of the conditional use
permit.



Exhibit 2

City of Tracy
Conditions of Approval
Garden of Eden Cannabis Dispensary CUP22-0004 Renewal
Application Number EXT23-0002
Planning Commission — December 20, 2023

A. General Provisions and Definitions.

A1

A2

A3.

General. These Conditions of Approval apply to:

The Project: Renewal of Garden of Eden Cannabis Dispensary Conditional Use Permit
number CUP22-0004 to March 3, 2024

The Property: 2420 W. Grant Line Road, APNs 238-600-37 & 238-190-22
Definitions.

a. “Applicant” means any person, or other legal entity, applying for a conditional use
permit.

b. “City Engineer” means the City Engineer of the City of Tracy, or any other duly
licensed Engineer designated by the City Manager, or the Development Services
Director, or the City Engineer to perform the duties set forth herein.

c. “City Regulations” means all written laws, rules, and policies established by the
City, including those set forth in the City of Tracy General Plan, the Tracy Municipal
Code, ordinances, resolutions, policies, procedures, and the City’s Design
Documents (including the Standard Plans, Standard Specifications, Design
Standards, and relevant Public Facility Master Plans).

d. “Development Services Director” means the Development Services Director of the
City of Tracy, or any other person designated by the City Manager or the
Development Services Director to perform the duties set forth herein.

e. “Conditions of Approval” shall mean the conditions of approval applicable to the
Project located at the Property. The Conditions of Approval shall specifically
include all conditions set forth herein.

f. “Developer” means any person, or other legal entity, who applies to the City to
divide or cause to be divided real property within the Project boundaries, or who
applies to the City to develop or improve any portion of the real property within the
Project boundaries. The term “Developer” shall include all successors in interest.

g. “Police Chief” means the Chief of Police of the City of Tracy, or any other person
designated by the City Manager or the Police Chief to perform duties set forth
herein.

Compliance with submitted plans. Prior to the establishment of the use, the project
shall be established in substantial compliance with the plans received by the



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
Garden of Eden CUP22-0004 Renewal Page 2
Application No. EXT23-0002

AA4.

A5.

A.G.

AT.

A8.

A9.

Development Services Department on August 9, 2022 to the satisfaction of the
Development Services Director.

Payment of applicable fees. The applicant shall pay all applicable fees for the project,
including, but not limited to, development impact fees, building permit fees, plan check
fees, grading permit fees, encroachment permit fees, inspection fees, school fees, or
any other City or other agency fees or deposits that may be applicable to the project.

Compliance with laws. The Developer shall comply with all federal, state and local

laws, as amended from time to time, related to the development of real property within

the Project, including, but not limited to:

¢ the Planning and Zoning Law (Government Code sections 65000, et seq.)

¢ the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code sections 21000,
et seq., “CEQA”), and

e the Guidelines for California Environmental Quality Act (California Administrative

Code, title 14, sections 1500, et seq., “CEQA Guidelines”).

The Medicinal and Adult-Use Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act;

Regulations of the Bureau of Cannabis Control;

Tracy Municipal Code (TMC) Chapter 6.36 (Commercial Cannabis Activity); and

City of Tracy Procedures and Guidelines for a Cannabis Business Permit adopted

by City Council Resolution 2020-137

Compliance with applicable regulations. Unless specifically modified by these
Conditions of Approval, the use shall comply with all City and State Regulations and
the approved Cannabis Business Permit No. CBPA20-0034, which includes business
operations requirements, the safety and security plan, and the odor control plan.

Prior to construction, the applicant shall submit construction documents which meet
the requirements of the California Building and Fire Codes and the Tracy Municipal
Code to the City of Tracy and the South San Joaquin County Fire Authority for review,
approval and inspections.

At all times, applicant (or its successor) shall maintain all necessary permits to operate
a cannabis business pursuant to Municipal Code Chapter 6.36. Neither the applicant,
nor any other entity, shall have an entitlement or other property right to operate a
cannabis business at the property without holding such a cannabis business permit,
which may be approved, denied, renewed, or revoked in accordance with the
requirements of Chapter 6.36.

This conditional use permit shall expire six months following the date on which the use
permit became effective unless, prior to the expiration of one year, the use is
established in accordance with this use permit, or a building permit is issued by the
Building Official and construction is commenced and diligently pursued toward
completion on the site which was the subject of the use permit application.



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
Garden of Eden CUP22-0004 Renewal Page 3
Application No. EXT23-0002

B. Development Services Department, Planning Division Conditions

Contact: Kimberly Matlock (209) 831-6430 kimberly.matlock@cityoftracy.org

B.1. Prior to approval of a building permit, the applicant shall provide detailed plans that
demonstrate the following:

B.1.1.
B.1.2.

B.1.3.

B.1.4.

B.1.5.

B.1.6.

Compliance with TMC Section 6.36.380(k).

A parking area of at least 50 parking spaces designed in accordance with TMC
Title 10 Article 26 and Standard Plan 141.

A landscape plan that shows a combination of trees (24” box min.), shrubs (5 gal
min.), and groundcover (1 gal min.) planted in each planter area, with one
canopy tree and one accent tree will be planted in every other planter east of the
building in a generally alternating pattern that will result in at least four canopy
trees and three accent trees, to the satisfaction of the Development Services
Director.

Existing landscaping around the enhanced vapor recovery equipment shall be
protected and any landscape lost shall be replenished to match the site to the
satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

Enhanced vapor recovery enclosure, piping, and bollards colored to match the
adjacent building wall two-tone color to the satisfaction of the Development
Services Director. Reflective tape may be applied to the satisfaction of the Fire
Marshal.

Other bollards colored to match the nearest adjacent structure, such as canopy
columns. Reflective tape may be applied to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal.

B.2. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall provide the following:

B.2.1

B.2.2

An application for lot line adjustment or lot merger to eliminate the property line
currently crossing through the building and fueling canopy.

The applicant shall execute an Agreement for Maintenance of Landscape and
Irrigation Improvements and submit financial security to the Development
Services Department. The Agreement shall ensure maintenance of the on-site
landscape and irrigation improvements for a period of two years. Said security
shall be equal to the actual material and labor costs for installation of the on-site
landscape and irrigation improvements or $2.50 per square foot of on-site
landscape area.

B.3. Prior to final inspection, the applicant shall demonstrate the following:

B.3.1
B.3.2

B.3.3

B.3.4

Compliance with TMC Section 6.36.380(1).

All landscaping and irrigation shown in the approved building permit construction
plans installed to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

A copy of the recorded document that eliminates the property line currently
crossing through the building and fueling canopy.

All existing bollards that have been damaged overtime be repaired or replaced.

B.4. Prior to commencing any cannabis operation, the applicant shall execute a Community
Benefit Agreement with the City in accordance with the requirements of their Cannabis
Business Permit.


mailto:kimberly.matlock@cityoftracy.org

Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
Garden of Eden CUP22-0004 Renewal Page 4
Application No. EXT23-0002

B.5.

B.6.

Aside from deliveries, the use shall be conducted wholly indoors. The use may not be
conducted outside the building, including in the parking lot.

The hours of operation shall be limited to 6:00 am to 10:00 pm in accordance with
State law. Should the hours of operation established in the State law become more
restrictive, the use shall comply with the more restrictive regulations.

C. Development Services Department, Engineering Conditions of Approval

Contact: Al Gali (209) 831-6436 al.gali@cityoftracy.org

C.1. General Conditions

Developer shall comply with the applicable sections of approved documents and/or
recommendations of the technical analyses/reports prepared for the Project listed as
follows:

1) Not Applicable.

C.2.
C.3.
C.4.

C.5.

RESERVED
RESERVED
RESERVED

Improvement Agreement(s)

All construction activity involving public improvements will require a fully executed
improvement agreement (Off-site, Subdivision, and/or Inspection). Any construction
activity involving public improvements without a fully executed improvement
agreement is prohibited. All public improvements shall be performed and completed
in accordance with the recommendation(s) of the Project’s Registered Civil Engineer.
Prior to the consideration of City Council’s approval of said improvement agreement,
the Developer shall provide all documents related to said improvements required by
the applicable City Regulations and these Conditions of Approval, to the satisfaction
of the City Engineer, including, but not limited to, the following:

C.5.1. Off-site and/or Public Infrastructure Improvement Plans prepared on a
twenty-four (24) inch x thirty-six (36) inch size four (4) millimeter thick mylar
that incorporate all requirements described in the documents described in
these Conditions of Approval, the City’s Design Documents as defined in Title
12 of the Tracy Municipal Code. Developer shall use the latest title block
and, if necessary, contain a signature block for the Fire Marshal.
Improvement Plans shall be prepared under the supervision of, and stamped
and signed by a Registered Civil, Traffic, Electrical, Mechanical Engineer,
and Registered Landscape Architect for the relevant work. Developer shall
obtain all applicable signatures by City departments and outside agencies
(where applicable) on the mylars including signatures by Fire Marshal to
submitting the mylars to Engineering Division for City Engineer’s signature.
The improvement plans shall be prepared to specifically include, but not be
limited to, the following items:



mailto:al.gali@cityoftracy.org

Conditions of Approval

Exhibit 2

Garden of Eden CUP22-0004 Renewal Page 5

Application No. EXT23-0002

C.5.1.a.

C.5.1.b.

Cb51.c.

C.5.1.d.
C.5.1.e.
C.5.1f.

C.5.1.q.

All existing and proposed utilities such as domestic water line,
irrigation service, fire service line, storm drain, and sanitary sewer,
including the size and location of the pipes.

All supporting engineering calculations, materials information or
technical specifications, cost estimate, and technical reports. All
improvement plans shall contain a note stating that the Developer
(or Contractor) will be responsible to preserve and protect all
existing survey monuments and other survey markers such as
benchmarks.

A PDF copy of the Project’s approved Geotechnical/Soils Report
that was prepared for the grading permit submittal.

RESERVED
RESERVED
RESERVED

Streets — The Developer shall have frontage improvements. All
streets and utilities improvements within City right-of-way shall be
designed and constructed in accordance with City Regulations, and
City’s Design Standards including the City’s Facilities Master Plan
for storm drainage, roadways, wastewater, and water as adopted,
amended, and updated by the City, or as otherwise specifically
approved by the City. The Developer shall construct frontage
improvements as described below.

Grant Line Road

Prior to the release of the Building Permit, Developer shall submit
to the City ready for immediate recordation, an offer of dedication
of public right-of-way in fee simple interest to the City of Tracy.
The width of the public right-of-way dedication shall ensure the
sidewalk and any public landscaping is within the public right-of-
way.

Prior to the release of the Building Permit, Developer shall submit
to the City ready for immediate recordation, a grant deed to
dedicate a ten (10) foot wide Public Utility Easement (P.U.E.)
immediately behind the property line.

Toste Road

Prior to the release of the Building Permit, Developer shall submit
to the City ready for immediate recordation, an offer of dedication
of public right-of-way in fee simple interest to the City of Tracy.
The width of the public right-of-way dedication shall ensure the



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
Garden of Eden CUP22-0004 Renewal Page 6
Application No. EXT23-0002

C.5.2.

C.5.8.

C.5.4.

sidewalk and any public landscaping is within the public right-of-
way.

Prior to the release of the Building Permit, Developer shall submit
to the City ready for immediate recordation, a grant deed to
dedicate a ten (10) foot wide Public Utility Easement (P.U.E.)
immediately behind the property line.

Developer shall remove and replace each existing driveway for
each parcel with a driveway in conformance with a commercial
driveway.

Developer shall construct portland cement concrete curb, gutter,
and sidewalk along the Project’s frontage. The gutter flowline shall
align with the current low point of the existing road.

Along the Project frontage, if applicable, Developer shall landscape
and irrigate the existing parkways per current adopted City
landscape standards. Landscape and irrigation plans shall be
prepared on a 24-inch x 36-inch size 4-millimeter thick mylar that
incorporate all requirements described in the documents described
in these Conditions of Approval, the City’s Design Documents as
defined in Title 12 of the Tracy Municipal Code. Developer shall
use the latest title block. Said landscape and irrigation plan shall be
prepared by a California licensed landscape architect. Developer
can either protect-in-place the existing sidewalk and repair any
cracked, settled, and/or damaged sidewalk or remove and replace
the sidewalk so long as the replacement sidewalk is similar to the
current sidewalk, i.e. similar width, meanders, etc.

RESERVED

Signed and stamped Engineer’s Estimate that summarizes the cost of
constructing all the public improvements shown on the Improvement Plans.
The cost estimate shall show the cost of designing the public improvements.

Payment of applicable fees required by these Conditions of Approval and City
Regulations, including but not limited to, plan checking, grading and
encroachment permits and agreement processing, construction inspection,
and testing fees. The engineering review fees will be calculated based on the
fee rate adopted by the City Council on September 2, 2014, per Resolution
2014-141 and on May 16, 2017, per Resolution 2017-098. Developer shall
submit payment in the form of a check for the aforementioned fees.

Traffic Control Plan - Prior to starting the work for any work within City’s right-

of-way, the Developer shall submit a Traffic Control Plan (TCP). TCP can be
split among the different construction phases. TCP will show the method and
type of construction signs to be used for regulating traffic at the work areas
within these streets. TCP shall conform to the Manual on Uniform Traffic
Control Devices as amended by the State of California, latest edition (MUTCD-



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
Garden of Eden CUP22-0004 Renewal Page 7
Application No. EXT23-0002

C.6.

C.5.5.

C.5.6

C.5.7

CA). TCP shall be prepared under the supervision of, signed and stamped by
a Registered Civil Engineer or Registered Traffic Engineer.

Access and Traffic Circulation to Existing Businesses/Residents - Developer
shall take all steps necessary to plan and construct site improvements such
that construction operations do not impact safety and access (including
emergency vehicles) to the existing businesses and residents throughout the
duration of construction. Developer shall coordinate with the owners and
cooperate to minimize impacts on existing businesses. All costs of measures
needed to provide safe and functional access shall be borne by the Developer.

No street trench shall be left open, uncovered, and/or unprotected during
night hours and when the Developer’s contractor is not performing
construction activities. Appropriate signs and barricades shall be installed on
the street and on all trenches during such times. If the Developer or its
contractor elects to use steel plates to cover street trenches, said steel plates
will be skid-resistance, and shall be ramped on all sides. Ramps will be a
minimum two-foot wide and will run the entire length of each side.

If at any point during utility installation or construction in general that the
Developer, its contractor, its engineers, and their respective officials,
employees, subcontractor, and/or subconsultant
exposes/encounters/uncovers any archeological, historical, or other
paleontological findings, the Developer shall address the findings as required
per the General Plan Cultural Resource Policy and General Plan EIR; and
subsequent Cultural Resource Policy or mitigation in any applicable
environmental document.

Improvement Security - Developer shall provide improvement security for all
public facilities, as required by the Improvement Agreement. The form of the
improvement security may be a bond, or other form in accordance with the
Government Code, and the TMC. The amount of the improvement security
shall be in accordance with Title 12 of the TMC.

Insurance — Developer shall provide written evidence of insurance coverage
that meets the terms of the Improvement Agreement.

Building Permit

Prior to the release of a building permit within Project boundaries, the Developer shall
demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, compliance with all required
Conditions of Approval, including, but not limited to, the following:

C.6.1

Developer shall submit a separate building permit for the demolition of any
existing structures.

C.7 Acceptance of Public Improvements




Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
Garden of Eden CUP22-0004 Renewal Page 8
Application No. EXT23-0002

Prior to the consideration of City Council’'s acceptance of public improvements, the
Developer shall demonstrate to the reasonable satisfaction of the City Engineer,
completion of the following:

C.7.1

C.7.2

C.7.3

C.74

C.7.5

C.7.6

C.7.7

C.7.8

Developer has satisfied all the requirements set forth in these Conditions of
Approval.

Developer submitted the Storm water Treatment Facilities Maintenance
Agreement (STFMA) to the Utilities Department.

Developer has satisfactory completed construction of all required/conditioned
improvements. Unless specifically provided in these Conditions of Approval,
or some other applicable City Regulations, the Developer shall use diligent
and good faith efforts in taking all actions necessary to construct all public
facilities required to serve the Project, and the Developer shall bear all costs
related to construction of the public facilities (including all costs of design,
construction, construction management, plan check, inspection, land
acquisition, program implementation, and contingency).

Certified “As-Built” Improvement Plans (or Record Drawings). Upon
completion of the construction by the Developer, the City, at its sole
discretion, temporarily release the original mylars of the Improvement Plans
to the Developer so that the Developer will be able to document revisions to
show the "As-Built" configuration of all improvements.

Developer shall be responsible for any repairs or reconstruction of street
pavement, curb, gutter and sidewalk and other public improvements along
the frontage of the Project, if determined by the City Engineer to be in poor
condition or damaged by construction activities related to the Project.

Developer has completed the ninety (90) day public landscaping
maintenance period.

Per Section 21107.5 of the California Vehicle Code, Developer shall install
signs at all entrance(s) of the Project stating that the streets are privately
owned and maintained and are not subject to the public traffic regulations or
control. Said signs must be conspicuously placed, plainly visible, and legible
during daylight hours from a distance of one hundred (100) feet, if applicable.

Survey Monuments — Any altered, damaged, or destroyed survey monuments
and/or benchmarks shall be re-established. Developer shall submit
centerline tie sheets or a record of survey for the following: new public
streets; re-established survey monuments, and/or benchmarks. If the
Developer destroyed, altered, and/or reconstructed any existing curb returns,
Developer shall also submit corner records. Any survey document will be
submitted the City and to the San Joaquin County Surveyor to comply with
California Business and Professions Code Section 8771(c). Said work shall
be executed by a California licensed Land Surveyor at the Developer’s sole
expense.




Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
Garden of Eden CUP22-0004 Renewal Page 9
Application No. EXT23-0002

C.8 Special Conditions

C.8.1 When street cuts are made for the installation of utilities, the Developer shall
conform to Section 3.14 of the 2020 Design Standards and is required install
a two (2) inch thick asphalt concrete (AC) overlay with reinforcing fabric at
least twenty-five (25) feet from all sides of each utility trench. A two (2) inch
deep grind on the existing AC pavement will be required where the AC
overlay will be applied and shall be uniform thickness in order to maintain
current pavement grades, cross and longitudinal slopes. This pavement
repair requirement is when cuts/trenches are perpendicular and parallel to the
street’s direction.

C.8.2  Nothing contained herein shall be construed to permit any violation of
relevant ordinances and regulations of the City of Tracy, or other public
agency having jurisdiction. This Condition of Approval does not preclude the
City from requiring pertinent revisions and additional requirements to the
improvement plans, prior to the City Engineer’s signature on the improvement
plans, and prior to issuance of Grading Permit, Encroachment Permit,
Building Permit, if the City Engineer finds it necessary due to public health
and safety reasons, and it is in the best interest of the City. The Developer
shall bear all the cost for the inclusion, design, and implementations of such
additions and requirements, without reimbursement or any payment from the
City.

C.8.3  Prior to the release of the Building Permit, if water is required for the Project,
the Developer shall obtain an account for the water service and register the
water meter with the Finance Department. Developer shall pay all fees
associated with obtaining the account number for the water service.

C.8.4 Prior to the release of the Certificate of Occupancy, Developer shall record with San
Joaquin County Recorder a document to adjust the two parcels.

D. Tracy Police Department Conditions

Contact: Lieutenant Miguel Contreras (209) 831-6618 miguel.contreras@tracypd.com

D.1. A minimum of 2 on-site security guards shall be maintained on site during business
hours and 1 on-site security guard during closed hours. The name of the company shall
be provided to the Police Department at the time of Building Permit application
submittal. The establishment shall remain closed for business if the minimum of 2
certified security guards are not present during business hours on any given day. Once
the minimum-security staffing is met, the establishment may re-open for business.
D.1.1. Overnight (nonbusiness hours) security shall be a minimum of 1 certified guard
solely responsible for the security of this establishment and not multiple
locations.

D.1.2. All contracted or employed guards shall be certified and have sole
responsibilities as a security guard focused on safety and security. The security
guards will be readily identifiable.


mailto:miguel.contreras@tracypd.com

Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
Garden of Eden CUP22-0004 Renewal Page 10
Application No. EXT23-0002

D.2.

D.3.

D.4.

D.5.

D.6.

Applicant shall cooperate with all legal requests from Tracy PD and any crimes shall be
reported without delay.

Prior to approval of a building permit, the applicant shall submit plans that demonstrate
the lobby area will have a secured commercial grade, non-residential door which is
lockable separating the lobby floor (check-in area) from the sales area as required in
section 6.36.380 Cannabis Storefront (Dispensary) Retailer Permit Requirements to the
satisfaction of the Police Chief or his designee.

Prior to establishment of the use, the applicant shall submit to the Police Department a
copy of the actual detailed security plan, including the full names and current contact
information for onsite security, to the satisfaction of the Police Chief or his designee.
The security and emergency response plan will include the actual security measures
and procedures.

Installing security surveillance cameras of sufficient resolution to allow the identification
of persons and objects to monitor all entrances and exits to and from the premises, all
interior spaces within the commercial cannabis business which are open and accessible
to the public, all interior spaces where cannabis, cash or currency, is being stored for
any period of time on a regular basis and all interior spaces where diversion of cannabis
could reasonably occur. The commercial cannabis business shall be responsible for
ensuring that the security surveillance camera's footage is remotely accessible by the
Police Chief or designee(s), and that it is compatible with the City's software and
hardware. In addition, remote access to the video footage from the cameras shall be
provided to the Police Chief or designee(s). Video recordings shall be maintained for a
minimum of ninety (90) days, or as required under state law, and shall be made
available to the Police Chief or designee(s) upon request without unreasonable delay.
Video shall be of sufficient quality for effective prosecution of any crime found to have
occurred on the site of the commercial cannabis business.

The security video surveillance shall provide 360-degree coverage of the business and
parking lot areas.

Prior to establishment of the use, the applicant shall establish and maintain an updated
on-call list of responders with their alarm service provider and current alarm permit with
the City of Tracy, to include the on-site security manager. This shall be provided prior to
the establishment of the use.

Trash containers and enclosures shall be locked and not accessible by the public at all
times.

E. South San Joaquin County Fire Authority Conditions

Contact: Tim Spears, Fire Marshal (209) 831-6707 tim.spears@sicfire.org

E.1.

Prior to construction, applicant shall submit construction documents to the South San
Joaquin County Fire Authority for review and approval.


mailto:tim.spears@sjcfire.org

Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
Garden of Eden CUP22-0004 Renewal Page 11
Application No. EXT23-0002

E.2.

E.3.

E.4.

E.S.

E.6.

E.7.

E.1.1. Construction documents shall be designed to the current edition of the
California Code of Regulations, Title 24, as amended by the City of Tracy
Municipal Code.

E.1.2. Deferred submittals shall be listed on the coversheet of each page. Each
deferred submittal shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by SSJCFA prior
to installation.

Engineering and building permit applications received by our offices are subject to the
current fee schedule for South San Joaquin County Fire Authority. Contact our offices
for additional information.

E.2.1. Application processing fees and minimum plan review fees are due at
time of submittal of construction documents.

E.2.2. Additional plan review fees, minimum inspection fees and administrative
fees are calculated on approval of project and shall be paid prior to issuance of
permit.

E.2.3. Permit holder is responsible for any additional inspection fees incurred,
and shall be paid prior to final inspection.

Prior to occupancy of each new business, the tenant shall contact South San Joaquin
County Fire Authority for a new business inspection. Additional fees may be required
for New Business, Annual and Operational Fire Permits. All fees shall be paid prior to
approval of inspections.

Prior to construction, all-weather fire apparatus access roads shall be installed and
maintained at all times. Fire apparatus access roads during construction shall have a
minimum 20’ unobstructed width in accordance with CFC §503.

All hydrants shall be installed, inspected, tested, and access maintained at all times
prior to bringing combustible materials onsite, including storage.

Knox box 3200 series shall be required for project. Each tenant shall have keys
placed in the key box. The operator of the building shall immediately notify the Fire
Authority and provide the new key where a lock is changed or rekeyed. The key to
such shall be secured in the key box.

Building and each tenant space shall be provided with approved address identification
in accordance with CFC §505 and the Tracy Municipal Code.

F. Development Services Department, Building Division Conditions

Contact: Danis Isho (209) 831-6484 danis.isho@cityoftracy.org

F.A.

F.2.

Prior to the construction of any structures, applicant shall submit construction plans
and details that demonstrate conformance with parking spaces and accessible routes
requirements per California Building Code 11B.

Prior to the construction of any structures, applicant shall submit construction
documents and associated details that demonstrate compliance with path of travel
requirements in alterations, additions and structural repairs per California Building
Code 11B-202.4.


mailto:danis.isho@cityoftracy.org

Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
Garden of Eden CUP22-0004 Renewal Page 12
Application No. EXT23-0002

F.3. Prior to the construction of any structures, applicant shall submit construction
documents, engineering analysis and calculation, specifications etc. that conform with
the current Title 24 California Code of Regulations at time of application.

F.4. Prior to the construction of any structures, applicant shall submit construction
documents that demonstrate compliance with egress door hardware and operation
conforming to California Building Code section 1010.1.

F.5. Prior to the construction of any structures, applicant shall submit construction
documents that demonstrate compliance with CBC Table 1006.2.1 for egress from
the cannabis storage area in conjunction with the limitations for egress to intervening
spaces per CBC 1016.2.

G. The following conditions provide the applicant with options for funding required
Citywide services.

Contact: Guadalupe Pena 209.831.6834 Guadalupe.pena@cityoftracy.org

G.1. Landscaping Maintenance

Prior to issuance of any building permit for the Property, Developer shall provide for
perpetual funding of the on-going costs of operation, maintenance and replacement
for public landscaping for the Property at a high-quality service level as determined
by the Parks Director by doing one of the following, subject to the approval of the
City’s Finance Director:

a. CED or other funding mechanism. The Developer shall enter into an agreement
with the City, which shall be recorded against the Property, which stipulates the
following: (1) prior to issuance of a building permit, the Developer shall form or
annex into a Community Facilities District (CFD) for funding the on-going costs
related to maintenance, operation, repair and replacement of public landscaping,
public walls and any public amenities included in the Project, and ongoing public
landscaping maintenance costs associated with major program roadways
identified in the Citywide Roadway and Transportation Master Plan; (2) the items
to be maintained include but are not limited to the following: ground cover, turf,
shrubs, trees, irrigation systems, drainage and electrical systems; masonry walls
or other fencing, entryway monuments or other ornamental structures, furniture,
recreation equipment, hardscape and any associated appurtenances within
medians, parkways, dedicated easements, channel-ways, public parks, and
public open space areas and trails; (3) formation of the CFD shall include, but not
be limited to, affirmative votes and the recordation of a Notice of Special Tax
Lien; (4) upon successful formation, the parcels will be subject to the maximum
special tax rates as outlined in the Rate and Method of Apportionment; (5) prior
to issuance of a building permit, the Developer shall deposit an amount equal to
the first year's taxes; and (6) the Developer shall be responsible for all costs
associated with formation or annexation of the CFD.

Or


mailto:Guadalupe.pena@cityoftracy.org

Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
Garden of Eden CUP22-0004 Renewal Page 13
Application No. EXT23-0002

b. POA and dormant CFD. If the POA is the chosen funding mechanism, the

C.

Developer must do the following:

1. Form a Property Owner’s Association (POA) or other maintenance
association, with CC&Rs reasonably acceptable to the City, to
assume the obligation for the on-going maintenance of all public
landscaping areas that will serve the Property;

2. Cause the POA to enter into an agreement with the City, in a form
to be approved by the City and to be recorded against the
Property prior to the final inspection, setting forth, among other
things, the required maintenance obligations, the standards of
maintenance, and all other associated obligation(s) to ensure the
long-term maintenance by the POA of all public landscape areas
that will serve the Property;

3. Make and submit to the City, in a form reasonably acceptable to
the City, an irrevocable offer of dedication of all public landscape
areas that will serve the Property;

4. Before final inspection, annex into a CFD in a "dormant" capacity,
to be triggered if the POA fails (as determined by the City in its
sole and exclusive discretion) to perform the required level of
public landscape maintenance. The dormant tax or assessment
shall be disclosed to all property owners, even during the dormant
period.

Or

Direct funding. The Developer shall enter into an agreement with the City, which
shall be recorded against the Property, which stipulates that prior to issuance of
a building permit, the Developer shall deposit with the City an amount necessary,
as reasonably determined by the City, to fund in perpetuity the full on-going
maintenance costs related to maintenance, operation, repair and replacement of
public landscaping, public walls and any public amenities included in the Project,
and ongoing public landscaping maintenance costs associated with major
program roadways identified in the Citywide Roadway and Transportation Master
Plan. The items to be maintained include but are not limited to the following:
ground cover, turf, shrubs, trees, irrigation systems, drainage and electrical
systems, masonry walls or other fencing, entryway monuments or other
ornamental structures, furniture, recreation equipment, hardscape and any
associated appurtenances within medians, parkways, dedicated easements,
channel-ways, public parks, and public open space areas and trails.



Attachment B

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE
TRACY PLANNING COMMISSION

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

1. RESCINDING PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 2023-014;

2. GRANTING A RENEWED EXPIRATION DATE OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT
CUP22-0003 (EXT23-0004) FOR A CANNABIS DISPENSARY AT 951 N. CENTRAL
AVENUE, APN 235-056-07, TO MARCH 3, 2024; AND

3. DETERMINING THAT THIS PROJECT IS CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT FROM THE
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT.

WHEREAS, the applicant was awarded a Cannabis Business Permit (Application
Number CBPA20-0017) on March 3, 2022 by the Tracy Police Chief, which is valid until March
3, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the applicant was granted a Conditional Use Permit (Application Number
CUP22-0003) to establish a cannabis dispensary at 951 N. Central Avenue; and

WHEREAS, the Conditional Use Permit, which took effect on September 29, 2022, was
granted a time limit of one year for the use to be established in accordance with TMC Section
10.08.4360; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to TMC Section 10.08.4350, CUPs allow applicants a period of six
(6) months to obtain a building permit and commence and diligently pursue construction on the
site; the CUP expires and is deemed void if the applicant fails to so comply; and

WHEREAS, the use had not yet been established and the Conditional Use Permit was
set to expire on September 29, 2023; and

WHEREAS, under TMC Section 10.08.4360, the CUP may be extended by the Planning
Commission provided 1) the new time limit is “reasonable, based on size, nature, and
complexity of the proposed development,” and 2) the Planning Commission finds “good cause,
such as proof of an unusual hardship not of the applicant’'s own making;” and

WHEREAS, on September 18, 2023, the applicant submitted an application requesting
additional time to establish the use; and

WHEREAS, Conditional Use Permit renewals are subject to the authority of the Planning
Commission; and

WHEREAS, pursuant Tracy Municipal Code Sections 10.08.4350 and 10.08.4360,
Conditional Use Permits may be renewed for an additional period of six (6) months or greater:



Resolution 2023-
Page 2

provided the applicant demonstrates “good cause, such as proof of an usual hardship not of the
applicant’s own making;” and

WHEREAS, the subject property is designated Commercial in the Tracy General Plan
and zoned Central Business District (CBD), wherein cannabis dispensaries are conditionally
permitted; and

WHEREAS, the applicant proposed no changes to the project from that which was
approved under CUP22-0003; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing to review and consider
the project on October 25, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant has demonstrated good cause for an extension of the CUP
under TMC 10.08.4360 based on hardships derived from difficulties and delays in obtaining a
building permit;

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission initially granted a renewal of the Conditional Use
Permit for a period of six months, which extended the permit to March 29, 2024; and

WHEREAS, subsequent to the approval of the CUP renewal for six months, the City
determined that expiration date of the CUP renewal was approved beyond the authority of the
Planning Commission because it expressly authorizes establishing a conditional use for a
duration of time in exceedance of the expiration date of its associated Cannabis Business Permit;
and

WHEREAS, the time of the extended CUP must expire on March 3, 2024 because TMC
Section 10.08.4420 prohibits issuance of any license or use permit in conflict with another
license or permit, and the applicant’s Cannabis Business Permit expires on March 3, 2024;

WHEREAS, on December 20, 2024, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing
to review and consider an amendment to the CUP renewal to be valid until March 3, 2024 in
alignment with the expiration date of its associated Cannabis Business Permit; now, therefore, be
it

RESOLVED: the Planning Commission incorporates and adopts the foregoing recitals as
findings of fact; and be it further

RESOLVED: That the Planning Commission hereby rescinds Planning Commission
Resolution 2023-014 dated October 25, 2023; and be it further

RESOLVED: That the Planning Commission approves the renewal of Conditional Use
Permit CUP22-0003 (Application Number EXT23-0004) with the expiration date of March 3,
2024 pursuant to Tracy Municipal Code Section 10.08.4360 and the finding that such expiration
date is reasonable; and be it further

RESOLVED: That the Planning Commission finds that the project is categorically
exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section
15301, pertaining existing facilities in an area where all public services and facilities are
available, and which is not environmentally sensitive.



Resolution 2023-
Page 3

* k k k k ok k k k ok kk ok ok

The foregoing Resolution 2023- was adopted by the Planning Commission on
December 20, 2023, by the following vote:

AYES: COMMISSION MEMBERS:
NOES: COMMISSION MEMBERS:
ABSENT: COMMISSION MEMBERS:
ABSTENTION: COMMISSION MEMBERS:

CHAIR

ATTEST:

STAFF LIAISON

Exhibit 1 — Project Findings
Exhibit 2 — Project Conditions of Approval



Exhibit 1

City of Tracy
Jiva TCY Cannabis Dispensary CUP22-0003
Conditional Use Permit Findings
Application Number EXT23-0004

(a) There are circumstances applicable to the use which make the granting of a use permit
renewal necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial property right,
because a conditional use permit is necessary for the operation of a cannabis dispensary
in the Central Business District zone under the Tracy Municipal Code. The proposed
project meets the consumer service intent of the Central Business District zone.

(b) The proposed location of the use and the conditions under which it would be operated or
maintained is in accordance with the objectives of Tracy Municipal Code Chapters 6.36
and 10.08. Additionally, the project site is located at least 600 feet away from a parcel
containing a school, day care center, or youth center as defined in Chapter 10.08, and the
use will be operated wholly indoors. The use is a retail store, which is complementary to
the surrounding commercial area.

(c) The project will not, under the circumstances of the particular case or as conditioned, be
injurious or detrimental to the health, safety, or general welfare of persons or property in
the vicinity of the proposed use, or to the general welfare of the City. The proposed use of
a cannabis dispensary will function in a complementary manner to the surrounding retail
uses in the vicinity and will comply with City standards. The dispensary will implement all
safety and security conditions of approval prepared by the Tracy Police Department.

(d) The project is consistent with the zoning, commercial cannabis activity regulations, and
other elements of the Tracy Municipal Code the City of Tracy General Plan, the Design
Goals and Standards, City Standards, California Building Codes, California Fire Codes,
and California cannabis regulations. There will be no odors or similar objectionable
impacts to other businesses in the vicinity as all cannabis products will be entirely
packaged and stored in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 6.36.

(e) The applicant applied for a renewal to the conditional use permit prior to expiration of the
original time period granted. Pursuant to Tracy Municipal Code Sections 10.08.4350 and
10.08.4360, the applicant has good cause for requesting a permit renewal for reasons
relating to time necessary for obtaining approvals and permits following the Planning
Commission’s original granting of the conditional use permit, and therefore requires
additional time to obtain building permits and diligently pursue construction and occupy the
site with the approved cannabis business. In particular, applicant experienced hardships
resulting from the length of time it took for the City to finalize and begin the background
check and Community Benefit Agreement processes required for the Conditional Use
Permit and associated Cannabis Business Permit. The applicant has been diligently
pursuing these items as well as a building permit for the business’s tenant improvement
over the past year and is close to completion of these items, and an extension is reasonable
based on the size, nature and complexity of the proposed development. For these reasons,
the Commission finds good cause for the renewal of the conditional use permit.



Exhibit 2

City of Tracy
Conditions of Approval
Jiva TCY Cannabis Dispensary CUP22-0003 Renewal
Application Number EXT23-0004
Planning Commission — December 20, 2023

A. General Provisions and Definitions.

A1,

A2

A3.

General. These Conditions of Approval apply to:

The Project: Renewal of Jiva TCY Cannabis Dispensary Conditional Use Permit
number CUP22-0003 to March 3, 2024

The Property: 951 N. Central Avenue (Assessor’s Parcel Number 235-056-07)
Definitions.

a. “Applicant” means any person, or other legal entity, applying for a conditional use
permit.

b. “City Engineer’ means the City Engineer of the City of Tracy, or any other duly
licensed Engineer designated by the City Manager, or the Development Services
Director, or the City Engineer to perform the duties set forth herein.

c. “City Regulations” means all written laws, rules, and policies established by the
City, including those set forth in the City of Tracy General Plan, the Tracy Municipal
Code, ordinances, resolutions, policies, procedures, and the City’s Design
Documents (including the Standard Plans, Standard Specifications, Design
Standards, and relevant Public Facility Master Plans).

d. “Development Services Director” means the Development Services Director of the
City of Tracy, or any other person designated by the City Manager or the
Development Services Director to perform the duties set forth herein.

e. “Conditions of Approval” shall mean the conditions of approval applicable to the
Project located at the Property. The Conditions of Approval shall specifically
include all conditions set forth herein.

f. “Developer” means any person, or other legal entity, who applies to the City to
divide or cause to be divided real property within the Project boundaries, or who
applies to the City to develop or improve any portion of the real property within the
Project boundaries. The term “Developer” shall include all successors in interest.

g. “Police Chief” means the Chief of Police of the City of Tracy, or any other person
designated by the City Manager or the Police Chief to perform duties set forth
herein.

Compliance with submitted plans. Prior to the establishment of the use, the project
shall be established in substantial compliance with the plans received by the
Development Services Department on March 8, 2022 and the security plan received



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
Jiva TCY CUP22-0003 Renewal Page 2
Application No. EXT23-0004

A4

A5.

A.G.

A7.

A.8.

A9.

by the Development Services Department on July 20, 2022 to the satisfaction of the
Development Services Director.

Payment of applicable fees. The applicant shall pay all applicable fees for the project,
including, but not limited to, development impact fees, building permit fees, plan check
fees, grading permit fees, encroachment permit fees, inspection fees, school fees, or
any other City or other agency fees or deposits that may be applicable to the project.

Compliance with laws. The Developer shall comply with all federal, state and local

laws, as amended from time to time, related to the development of real property within

the Project, including, but not limited to:

e the Planning and Zoning Law (Government Code sections 65000, et seq.)

e the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code sections 21000,
et seq., “CEQA”), and

e the Guidelines for California Environmental Quality Act (California Administrative

Code, title 14, sections 1500, et seq., “CEQA Guidelines”).

The Medicinal and Adult-Use Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act;

Regulations of the Bureau of Cannabis Control;

Tracy Municipal Code (TMC) Chapter 6.36 (Commercial Cannabis Activity); and

City of Tracy Procedures and Guidelines for a cannabis business permit adopted

by City Council Resolution 2020-137

Compliance with applicable regulations. Unless specifically modified by these
Conditions of Approval, the use shall comply with all City and State Regulations and
the approved cannabis business permit No. CBPA20-0017, which includes business
operations requirements, the safety and security plan, and the odor control plan.

Prior to construction, the applicant shall submit construction documents which meet
the requirements of the California Building and Fire Codes and the Tracy Municipal
Code to the City of Tracy and the South San Joaquin County Fire Authority for review,
approval and inspections.

At all times, applicant (or its successor) shall maintain all necessary permits to operate
a cannabis business pursuant to Municipal Code Chapter 6.36. Neither the applicant,
nor any other entity, shall have an entitlement or other property right to operate a
cannabis business at the property without holding such a Cannabis Business Permit,
which may be approved, denied, renewed, or revoked in accordance with the
requirements of Chapter 6.36.

This the conditional use permit shall expire six months following the date on which the
use permit became effective unless, prior to the expiration of one year, the use is
established in accordance with this use permit, or a building permit is issued by the
Building Official and construction is commenced and diligently pursued toward
completion on the site which was the subject of the use permit application.

B. Development Services Department, Planning Division Conditions

Contact: Genevieve Federighi (209) 831-6435 genevieve.federighi@cityoftracy.org



mailto:genevieve.federighi@cityoftracy.org

Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
Jiva TCY CUP22-0003 Renewal Page 3
Application No. EXT23-0004

B.1.

B.2.

B.3.

B.4.

B.5.

Prior to approval of a building permit, the applicant shall provide detailed plans that
demonstrate compliance with TMC Section 6.36.380(k) regarding floor plan and
storage requirements.

Prior to final inspection, the applicant shall demonstrate compliance with TMC Section
6.36.380(1) regarding signage.

Community Benefit Agreement. Prior to commencing any cannabis operation, the
applicant shall execute a Community Benefit Agreement with the City in accordance
with the requirements of their Cannabis Business Permit.

The use shall be conducted wholly indoors.
Hours of operation. The hours of operation shall be limited to 6:00 am to 10:00 pm in

accordance with State law. Should the hours of operation established in the State law
become more restrictive, the use shall comply with the more restrictive regulations.

C. Development Services Department, Building Division Conditions

Contact: Danis Isho (209) 831-6484 danis.isho@cityoftracy.org

CA.

C.2.

C.3.

C4.

Prior to the construction of any structures, applicant shall submit construction plans
and details that demonstrate conformance with parking spaces and accessible routes
requirements per California Building Code.

Prior to the construction of any structures, applicant shall submit construction
documents that demonstrate compliance with plumbing fixture requirements for all
occupants served based on California Plumbing Code chapter 4, compliance with
accessible route clear width requirements per California Building Code 11B-403.5,
compliance with minimum clearance requirements between doors in series per
California Building Code 11B-404.2.6, compliance with path of travel requirements in
alterations, additions and structural repairs per California Building Code 11B-202.4,
and compliance with egress door hardware and operation conforming to California
Building Code section 1010.1.

Prior to the construction of any structures, applicant shall submit construction
documents prepared and sealed by a licensed professional per B&P Code.

Prior to the construction of any structures, applicant shall submit construction
documents, engineering analysis and calculation, specifications etc. that conform with
the current Title 24 California Code of Regulations at time of application.

D. Tracy Police Department Conditions

Contact: Lieutenant Miguel Contreras (209) 831-6618 miguel.contreras@tracypd.com

D.1. A minimum of two on-site security guards shall be maintained on site during business

hours and 1 on-site security guard during closed hours. The name of the company shall
be provided to the Police Department at the time of Building Permit application


mailto:danis.isho@cityoftracy.org
mailto:miguel.contreras@tracypd.com

Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
Jiva TCY CUP22-0003 Renewal Page 4
Application No. EXT23-0004

D.2.

D.3.

D.4.

submittal. The establishment shall remain closed for business if the minimum of 2

certified security guards are not present during business hours on any given day. Once

the minimume-security staffing is met, the establishment may re-open for business.

D.1.1. Overnight (nonbusiness hours) security shall be a minimum of 1 certified guard
solely responsible for the security of this establishment and not multiple
locations.

D.1.2. All contracted or employed guards shall be certified and have sole
responsibilities as a security guard focused on safety and security. The security
guards will be readily identifiable.

Applicant shall cooperate with all legal requests from Tracy PD and any crimes shall be
reported without delay.

Prior to establishment of the use, the applicant shall establish and maintain an updated
on-call list of responders with their alarm service provider and current alarm permit with
the City of Tracy, to include the on-site security manager. This shall be provided prior to
the establishment of the use.

Trash containers and enclosures shall be locked and not accessible by the public at all
times.



December 20, 2023
Agenda ltem 1.B

RECOMMENDATION

STAFF RECOMMENDS THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION ADOPT A RESOLUTION (1)
FINDING GOOD CAUSE UNDER TMC SECTION 10.08.4360 FOR APPLICANT’S RENEWAL
OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT; (2) APPROVING RENEWAL (EXT23-0005) OF
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT CUP21-0009 FOR A CANNABIS STOREFRONT RETAILER
(DISPENSARY) AT 316 & 320 W. ELEVENTH STREET (ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBERS
235-040-05 & 06) TO MARCH 3, 2024; AND (3) DETERMINING THAT THIS PROJECT IS
CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT FROM THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT.

THE APPLICANT IS SAAD PATTAH AND THE PROPERTY OWNERS ARE SAAD PATTAH
AND REO CAPITAL INVESTMENTS & ASSET MANAGEMENT, APPLICATION NUMBER
EXT23-0005.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

On October 12, 2022, the Planning Commission granted a Cannabis Conditional Use Permit
(CUP) to The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary (Applicant) for a 12-month term expiring on
October 27, 2023. Because the applicant is still working on applying for building permits to
construct the improvements and establish the use, Applicant has requested a renewal of the
CUP to allow more time to complete the project. Staff recommends finding good cause and
granting a four-month extension of the CUP to March 3, 2024, to align with the current
expiration date of all pending Cannabis Business Permits.

BACKGROUND, LEGISLATIVE HISTORY AND ANALYSIS

On October 12, 2022, the Planning Commission approved Conditional Use Permit CUP21-0009
and Development Review Permit D21-0034 for a cannabis dispensary at 316 & 320 W. Eleventh
Street (Attachment A). The Applicant is in the process of preparing construction drawings to

submit for a building permit for construction of the project. The Development Review Permit for
demolition and construction is still valid for another year. The CUP expired on October 27, 2023.

Pursuant to TMC Section 10.08.4350, CUPs allow applicants a period of six (6) months to
obtain a building permit and commence and diligently pursue construction on the site. Under
TMC Section 10.08.4350, the CUP expires and is deemed void if the applicant fails to so
comply. Under TMC Section 10.08.4360, the CUP may be extended by the Planning
Commission provided 1) the new time limit is “reasonable, based on size, nature, and
complexity of the proposed development,” and 2) the Planning Commission finds “good cause,
such as proof of an unusual hardship not of the applicant’s own making.”

Here, the Applicant’'s CUP, CUP21-0009, took effect on October 27, 2022, and was granted an
additional six months for a total of 12 months for the use to be established or for a building
permit to be secured and construction. The additional six months was granted to allow the
applicant additional time to secure other requirements for their cannabis business, such as
State licensing, background checks, and a community benefit agreement, and secure building
permits for the demolition of the existing improvements and construction of the approved



Agenda Item
Planning Commission
December 20, 2023
Page 2

project. Prior to expiration of the CUP, on October 18, 2023, the Applicant submitted an
application requesting additional time to establish the use.

The Applicant has demonstrated good cause for another extension based on hardships derived
from an unexpected reduction of the applicant’s resources, including their draftsman, which
limited their ability to prepare construction documents necessary for the building permit
application. The Applicant has requested additional time to complete preparation of the
construction documents, obtain a building permit, and construct the project. The Commission
has the authority to grant or deny an application for the renewal of a use permit. The Applicant
proposes no changes to the project from what was approved under CUP21-0009 on October
12, 2022.

As for the date of the CUP extension, staff recommends the Planning Commission grant the
CUP a renewal to March 3, 2024 to align with the expiration date of the associated Cannabis
Business Permit, and carry over the conditions of approval from CUP21-0009 in accordance
with TMC Section 10.08.4350. Under TMC Section 6.36.080, the applicant’'s Cannabis
Business Permit (CBPA20-0013) expires on March 3, 2024. As with the term initially granted at
issuance of the CUP, extensions thereto cannot exceed known dates of noncompliance, such
as expiration of a required Cannabis Business Permit. Moreover, TMC Section 10.08.4420
prohibits issuance of any license or use permit in conflict with another license or permit.

Cannabis Business Permits may be renewed by application pursuant to TMC 6.36.100 so long
as the City Police Chief finds that the applicant meets the criteria set forth in TMC Section
6.36100(c) and those additional criteria set forth in TMC Section 6.36.070. Here, the subject
applicants have not submitted Cannabis Business Permit renewal applications, there are no
findings meeting the required criteria, and the Planning Commission lacks subject matter
jurisdiction to grant Cannabis Business Permit Renewals.

PUBLIC OUTREACH / INTEREST

A public hearing notice for the project was mailed to all property owners within a 300-foot radius
of the project site, posted on the City website, and also published in the Tracy Press, and the
Planning Commission agenda packet was posted on the City website, City Hall, and the Tracy
Branch Library.

CEQA DETERMINATION

The proposed project is categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15332, which pertains to infill development. In
accordance with CEQA Guidelines, no further environmental assessment is required.

ACTION REQUESTED OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt a Resolution (1) finding good cause
under TMC Section 10.08.4360 for applicant’s extension of Conditional Use Permit; (2)
approving renewal (EXT23-0005) of Conditional Use Permit CUP21-0009 for a Cannabis
Storefront Retailer (Dispensary) at 316 & 320 W. Eleventh Street (Assessor’s Parcel Numbers
235-040-05 & 06) to March 3, 2024; and (3) Determining that this Project is categorically exempt
from the California Environmental Quality Act.



Agenda Item
Planning Commission
December 20, 2023
Page 3

Prepared by: Kimberly Matlock, Associate Planner
Reviewed by: Alan Bell, Senior Planner
Bill Dean, Assistant Development Services Director

Jeffrey Crosswhite, Assistant City Attorney

Approved by: Karin Schnaider, Assistant City Manager / Interim Development Services Director

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A — CUP21-0009 (Plans, Staff Report, Resolution and Conditions of Approval)
Attachment B — Planning Commission Resolution

Exhibit 1 — Findings

Exhibit 2 — Conditions of Approval



Attachment A

WEST ELEVENTH ST

ELEVENTH ST

=

LOCATION MAP

600 F. VICINITY MAP W/ LAND USE N

San Joaquin County District Viewer
San Joaquin County Geographic Information Systems

1810 East Hazelton Avenue, Stockton, California 95205

The information on this map is based on the most current information available to San Joaquin County
Geographic Information Systems.
The County of San Joaquin does not warrant its accuracy, completeness, or suitability for any particular
purpose.
The information on this map is not intended to replace engineering, financial or primary records research.

N . .
N Location Aerial Map

10.08.3520 - Parking area design policies.

The following design policies shall apply in all circumstances.

(a)The design of parking shall conform with the City Standards for parking
spaces;

(b)Tandem parking shall not be utilized in meeting the minimum parking
requirements;

(c)The following minimum access driveway widths shall apply:

(1)Access drives serving not more than two dwelling units shall have a clear
minimum width of ten (10') feet,

(2)All other access drives shall have a clear minimum width of twelve (12') feet
for one way traffic and a minimum width of eighteen (18') feet for two-way traffic.
(Prior code § 10-2.2609)

10.08.3530 - Required improvements and maintenance of

parking areas.
(a) It shall be unlawful to park on any unpaved surface. Every parking area
used or intended to be used as a public or private parking area shall be paved
with a surfacing material in compliance with City of Tracy Standards.
(b) Every lot shall be graded and drained so as to dispose of all surface water
created by such parking area. A grading permit is required before such work
commences.
(c) Any parking area required to provide five (5) or more parking spaces shall
be appropriately marked indicating the parking spaces. Striping of parking

" spaces, aisles, or driveways, and the placement of directional signs shall be

provided according to the City of Tracy Standards.

(d) Each space within parking areas on sites with more than four (4) dwelling
units, and only those parking spaces adjacent to pedestrian walkways and
landscape areas on commercial and industrial sites, shall be designed to include
a raised concrete wheel stop constructed and installed to the satisfaction of the
Director of Public Works.

(e) Within parking areas on commercial and industrial sites, in place of the
wheel stops required in subsection (d) above, landscape areas and pedestrian
walkways may be extended not more than two (2') feet into required parking
spaces, to include a six (6') inch concrete curb. In such cases, no credit toward
parking lot landscape requirements shall be given for the resulting additional
landscaping.

(f) A parking facility with five (5) or more spaces serving commercial or
industrial uses shall provide security lighting as approved by the Community
Development Director and/or design review board, in accordance with City
Standards.

(g) A parking area serving multiple-family residential units shall be illuminated
during hours of darkness in accordance with City Standards.

(h) Parking area lighting shall be directed down onto the parking surface and
away from adjacent property and structures.

(Prior code § 10-2.2610; Ord. No. 1238, § 2, 8-15-2017)

PROJECT DESCRIPTION.

SEEKING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A RETAIL
DISPENSARY AT 320 & 316 W. 11TH ST, TRACY, CALIFORNIA
95376. THE PROPOSAL INCLUDES THE DEMOLITION OF AN
EXISTING RESIDENTIAL BUILDING TO CREATE SPACE FOR
THE CONSTRUCTION OF A BRAND NEW CANNABIS RETAIL

FACILITY. THE ATTACHED CUP EXHIBITS DEMONSTRATE THE

PROPOSED SITE COMPLIES WITH ALL SENSITIVE USE
SETBACKS AND ZONING REQUIREMENTS.

LAND USE REQUIREMENTS:

PROJECT ADDRESS:

316 & 320 WEST 11TH ST. TRACY, CA 95376
APN: 235-040-05, 235-040-06

RECEIVED

August 16, 2022
City of Tracy
Development Services

PROJECT TEAM:

OWNER (320 W 11TH): REO CAPITAL NVESTMENTS AND
ASSET MANAGEMENT

OWNER (316 W 11TH):  SAAD PATTAH

APPLICANT: COMMUNITY VETERANS OF TRACY, LLC
350 W Ninth ave. unit 106B
Escondido, Ca 92025

DESIGNER: CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC
350 w Ninth Ave. unit 106B
Escondido, ca 92025

CONTACT:  HUSSEIN MUNAIM

EigggizoBS;LE?lNG AREA 3,180 SF (619) 788_3224

BUILDING INFORMATION:

SHEET INDEX

PROPOSED OCCUPANCY: SPRINKLERS SYSTEM

(M) MERCANTILE, (B) BUSINESS NO
CUP 01.T- 01 TITLE SHEET

CONSTRUCTION TYPE STORIES

Ve 1 CUP 02.A-01 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

PROPOSED BUILDING AREAS:

SPACE USE SF CUP 03.A-01.1 UTILITY SITE PLAN

01- LOBBY 174

02-RECEPTION o2 CUP 04.A-01.2 SITE CONTEXT

05, CIRCULATION )70 CUP 05.A-02 ASBUILT SITE / DEMO PLAN

06- MEETING RM 122

05 CUSTOMERS RESROOM o CUP06.5-02  SURVEY

1o DISPOSALRM 5 CUP 07.G-06 GRADING

11- JANITOR RM 24

12- BREAK AREA 142 CUP 08. L -1 LANDSCAPE

13- OFFICE 187

o ERY | STORAGE R - CUP09.A-07 SECURITY FLOOR PLAN

16- MECHANICAL RM 75
CUP 10.A-08 ELEVATIONS

TOTAL NET SF 2,800
CUP 11.A-09 PERSPECTIVE ELEVATIONS
CUP 12.A-10 PRESPECTIVES

PARKING CALCULATIONS:
CUP 13.A-11  SECTIONS

PER 10.08.3480 PARKING.

ONE SPACE PER /250 SF OF GROSS FLOOR AREA.
REQ. RETAIL USE= 3400, 1 PER 250 SF = 13.60 = 14 space
COMPACT= 20% = 2.8 = 3 space

ADA PARKING =1

CHARGING STATION = 1

TOTAL PARKING PARKING PROVIDED

ADA VAN SPACES = 1

ELECTRICAL CHARGING STATION =1

COMPACT=3

REGULAR = 9,

TOTAL PARKING SPACES = 14

LANDSCAPING REQUIRED 10%

14 SPACE= 2270 SF x 10%= 227 SF

LANDSCAPE PROVIDED= 2,775 SF>227 SF,
LANDSCAPE REQ. MET.

VR

e

Hous®

CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC
350 W NINTH AVE.
UNIT 106B
ESCONDIDO, CA 92025

COMMUNITY
VETERANS
OF TRACY,

LLC

THE
CAKE
HOUSE

PROJECT NO: Project No.

MODEL FILE:
TRACY 3rd CUP FINAL correction 07_20_ 2022.pIn

DESIGN & DRAWNING BY:
HUSSEIN MUNAIM

COPYRIGHT: CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC

SHEET TITLE

TITLE SHEET

CUP 01.T- 01

SHEET 1 OF20



peggya
aug16


Attachment A

DR @@ CJORORORINC)

G e ® @ ®

® &

STOP (R1-1) SIGN, LIMIT LINE AND “STOP” PER
DETAIL6/ T1.2
EXIST WATER VAULT FOR NEW CONNECT

NEW DRIVE PER ENGINEERING

NEW POWER CONNECTIONS
TRASH RECYCLE BINS ENCLOSURE

THE ENTIRE PARKING SURFACE IS COVER WITH
100% PERVIOUS
PAVEMENT NO WATER ACCUMULATION ON THE

SURFACE < 1% SHOULD BE ACCEPTABLE, PAVER
SPECIFICATION PER CIVIL PLAN

CONCRETE ADA RAMP 7% SLOPE, 36" MINIMUM CLEAR WIDTH

EXISTING SIDWALK TO REMAIN

DO NOT ENTER SIGN

ENTER SIGN PER DETAIL 3/ T-1.1

LANDSCAPE

REQUIRED LANDSCAPE PER 10.08.3560

TOTAL AREA OF PARKING =6612 SF MINIMUM AREA OF
LANDSCAPE =.1X6612=616.2SF PROPOSED LANDSCAPE
AREA= 1448.65B SF

LANDSCAPE TO LOT RATIO= (616.2/1448.65)X100
=42.5%>10%0K

CONCRETE CUR

5' ADA CIRCUL

6" BRICK WALL

CONCRETE SIDEWALK MINIMUM 36" WIDE, WITH MAXIMUM
1% CROSS SLOP

REQUIRED SET BACK ON ALL SIDE.

PROPOSED SET BACK

FRONT 15'-0"

BACK45'-9"

SIDE WEST 33'-6"

SIDE EAST 16'-6"

MAXIMUM REQUIRED BUILDING HEIGHT NO LIMIT MAXIMUM
PROPOSED HEIGHT =18'-6"

MAXIMUM FAR NO LIMIT PROPOSED BUILDING AREA
= 3400 SF LOT AREA= 14000 SF FAR=3400/14000=.24 OK

PARKING ANALYSIS PROPOSED BUILDING AREA= 3400 SF
PARKING REQUIREMENT 250SF PER 10.08.3480 - MINIMUM
NUMBER OF PARKING SPACE= 3400/250= 13.60 PARKING
SPACE, REQUIRED MINIMUM 14 PARKING SPACE.

PER SECTION 10.08.3500, MAXIMUM COMPACT 20%,
13.6X.2=2.72 MAXIMUM COMPACT 3 PARKING SPACE,

10.08.3570 - LOADING SPACE (1) AN OCCUPANCY OF 5,000
OR LESS SQUARE FEET OF GROSS FLOOR AREA SHALL
HAVE A LOADING SPACE WITH MINIMUM DIMENSIONS OF
TEN (10") FEET WIDTH,TWENTY (20") FEET LENGTH,

AND A VERTICAL CLEARANCE OF FOURTEEN (14") FEET..

FIRE TRUCK DEAD END REQUIRED. DISTANCE FROM THE
STREET TO THE BACK OF THE BUILDING IS 83.5 FEET < 150'
PER SECTION 503.2.5 NO FIRE TRUCK TURN IS REQUIRED
.503.2.5 DEAD ENDS. DEAD-END FIRE APPARATUS

ACCESS ROADS IN EXCESS OF 150 FEET (45,720 MM) IN
LENGTH SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH AN APPROVED
XLI\%IE’N\IADIE%UND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPENDIX D AS

THE FOLLOWING DISABLED ACCESS ITEMS ARE TAKEN FROM THE 2019 EDITION OF

CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE,

TITLE 24. PER SECTION 1.9.1, ALL PUBLICLY AND PRIVATELY FUNDED PUBLIC

ACCOMMODATIONS AND

COMMERCIAL FACILITIES SHALL BE ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

1 11.3' 11.3'

11.3'

12.7'

12.7'

1 2!_7!!

! MIN COMPACT }Q!IN COMPACT

MIN COMPACT

MIN STANDARD

I
’L MIN STANDARD
/_

MIN STANDARD

TRASH &
RECYCLE BINS /

N

<

—
=
7
)
/\

16' COMPACT

B

— MIN16'( C

e & \‘,
\\

14"

UPJ f x:
|
L 23'-4 39/64"
1
|
' S S
| = s
|
|
| 1:12 SLOPE

. 70-29/16""

N
N \\\ ‘/)/

COMPACT PARKING

14!_0"

A
=

'

194647/64"

\ Al

NO PLANS FOR
PHASED
CONSTRUCTION

50'-0 23/32"

69'-10 25/32"

13'-9 19/64"

DELIVERY
USE ANY
AVILABLE
PARKING

1:12 SLOPE

50!_0"

V 3| V 26"0"

54'-1 27/32"

D |
12'-1 3/32"

13'-55/16
SETBACK

12'-1 11/32"

e e e e e e e e

A PAW.S

L
:O Vi
= i
\)
il
|
\ i
e
\ |
\
T - et W
L 186" ’ i
i ELECTRIC 1 | o
i VEHICLE ! ; ©
! CHARGING ! ,
| STATION 1 ||
i
, .
’ |
|
J
1
I
I
§
|
)
£ |
|
|
|
1
1
I
:
! o
’ Te]
i
|
I
z [
ot o
|
| \
N s
Lo |
x PLANTER 7
5 | ~
s : |
/[
: |
OO OO O E0H o 0 L.

1'-4 1/16"

Sl e R e e T e e e e e e . . e e

SITE PLAN

SCALE: 1/8"

1-0"

e

Hous®

CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC
350 W NINTH AVE.
UNIT 106B
ESCONDIDO, CA 92025

COMMUNITY
VETERANS
OF TRACY,

LLC

THE
CAKE
HOUSE

PROJECT NO: Project No.

MODEL FILE:
TRACY 3rd CUP FINAL correction R1 08_15_2022.pIn

DESIGN & DRAWNING BY:
HUSSEIN MUNAIM

COPYRIGHT: CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC

SHEET TITLE

ARCHITECTURAL SITE
PLAN

CUP 02.A - 01

SHEET 2 OF20




Attachment A

INE

- W.11TH STREET
CENTER

L

,,,v/ B NN N VY N\ .

EX. SSC (SANITARY SEWER ——

\\ CLEANOUT) TO BE USED
‘/ FOR THE NEW PROJECT
\_ CONNECTIONS "UP-SIZE

~ EXISTING SEWER LATERAL \]

\\\ TO 6-INCHES."

N AIAN N

VTV VTV Y

4 WATER VAULT- ‘TO BE USED FOR
\_ PROJECT CONNECTION’

/ VERIFY “WATER LATERAL MIGHT NEED

\_ TO BE UP-SIZED"-

U NAACACAL NAALA

NG

/\/7 7\»/ N \/A\/r 7
/ DURING THE
\_ CONSTRUCTION,
/" REMOVE UNUSED

>> UTILITY LATERAL

\\ /\,/’\,,,/\,,J/\\ /\/

CONC. CURB &
GUTTER

SEE GRADING PLAN
FOR STORMWATER
DRAIN

POSSIBLE
ABOVE GROUND
TRANSFORMER
LOCATION (2)

EX. STREET
LIGHT VAULT

NEW CURB ——
CUT

January 27, 2022

Attn: Hussein Munaim

Budget Letter Q-041/2022

Project: The Cake House
Scope: Provide and install HVAC for a new building located in, Tracy, CA.
Inclusions:

e Provide engineer designed drawings.

S
N
|

)

/7N

NEW

\

\

<

\\

%
\1
%

NS .

e Furnish And provide (2) 5-ton roof top Package Units and 14" roof curbs.

e Furnish and provide (3) ceiling exhaust fans for rest rooms and jan
e Furnish and provide duct work.
e Furnish and provide (2) 7-day programable thermostats.

Total HVAC PriCe....couve e ceeiii e

Clarification: Total HVAC price does not include roofing or electrical.

Exclusions:
1) Priming or painting,
2) Premium rates.
3) Roofing and Architectural flashings.
4) Cutting patching and framing.
5) Line voltage wiring, conduit.
6) Gas and condensate.
7) Building management controls for HVAC.

itors room.

$70,500.00

POSSIBLE ABOVE
GROUND
TRANSFORMER
LOCATION (1)

P.L. P.L.
c
L | \\\ /// \\\ /// \\\ /// \\\ /// \\\ L.
| \\ // \\ // \\ // \\ // \\
N 7 N\ e N ’ N\ 7 N
l \\ // \\ // \\ // \\ // \\
\\ // \\ // \\\ // \\\ // \\ 7’
| \\(/ N 7 N \\ /// \\\ ///
| \\\ \(\
AN N\
| AN
[} \\\\
| AN
! \\\\ /// \\\ /// \\\\ //, \\\\
o \\\ /// \\\ /// \\\ /// \\\
e \\ // \\ // \\ // \\
||_ AN e AN . AN . AN //
IU) NS N4 e \\,//
—ssl— — —S$§— — —§§— — —8§—— — —S§— — —§§—— — —S5— — ——§5—— — —§§—— — —S5—— — ——s= pay L
| WATER SUPPLY | ; ]
cw + W Cw CW Cw Cw Ccw W Cw CwW w- | |
! STORMWATER DRAIN SYSTEM, SEE GRADING PLAN | |
| © | : :
I 7\// h\v/ \‘/ /“\\V/ TN / TN / \/X"\\v/ TN / 7\/ \ 2 9 i i
Y |
: [/ "NEW DRIVEWAYS TO BE CONSTRUCTED PER N ‘ i i
| \/ COMMERCIAL DRIVEWAY DETAILS" /] \ b L
\ A A AL A A YA NA | : :
AN/ AN AN £ 5 i | !
! | |
| - A 8 | |
| L | | |
! e e e g I I
| | - RHEEM COMMERCIAL T I
I \ CONDENSING TANKLESS ! !
I | WATER HEATER i i
l | |
! S | o
|
l CUSTOMERS PLOYEE ] {l
PL ,l,,i,,i,,i S . B REsTROOM ESTROOM B S 7,,,7,,7,,7,,,7,,7,,7:T:':Z’:':T:’Z'::’j,,7,3_,_,_
| T @ ow tw ow w T
! 1©
| }riiiiiiﬁ} LB —ss — —ss — —ss e 1
i | HW- HW. HW. : A :
| NEW (2) 5 TON | | ANITO | |
| HVAC SYSTEM L & RM | |
| |
! ~ LOCATED IN | |
| 2ND FLOOR ! !
I HVAC RM e ||
| |
: | |
I o> FUTURE SOLAR i i
CONVERTERS ! !
; SYSTEM. ! !
| SOLAR PANELS TO @ . L
BE INSTALL i i
| ON ROOF FACING ! !
SOUTH ! !
e PER MECHANICAL i i
: : ! ENGINEER. : :
| 1 b e e e L
I I p—p— y ! !
WTR | |
|
ot | - | | <&
| |
| |
I 5 5 5 5 . 5 5 B E—
[} | |
I | |
poTTTTTTTT T T
| “NEW 200 AMP PANEL, 120/208V, ! S
: MECHANICAL ROOM; FOR @ 3-PHASE, 4-WIRE FED FROM @ | |
UTILITY CONNECTIONS & NEW 75 KVA UTILITY TRANSFORMER. i i
| q CONTROLLERS EXACT LOCATION OF TRANSFORMER ! 4
I SHALL BE DETERMINED BY UTILITY.” ! !
- | = z SCREENING-WILL BE-AS REQUIRED ! J
Y ___________________________AP.L.
P.L

Terms: This Quote is only good for 15 days. Work will be done during normal business hours except as noted.

Sincerely,

Abraham Serrano / HVAC Estimator
209.466.4601 ext. 7131
aserrano@comfortairinc.com

USE (EX) GAS
FOR NEW
BUILDING, MOVE
METER TO
MECHANICAL
ROOM

LX Series Pege:t2
PCG4 - 14 SEER Single Pkg. G/E R-410A AC

JdYORK

Project Name: York 5-ton unit
dimensions

Quantity: 1 Tag#: AC-1,2

Unit Model #: PCG4B601003X4

Dimensions
CORNER POST
NDOOR COIL
(BEHIND PANEL) OUTDOOR COIL GUARD
IGH VOLTAGE
EEEEEEEEEEEE COMBUSTION AIR INTAKE
CONDENSATE
uuuuu
BLOWER
ACCESS LOW VOLTAGE OPENING 7/6"
PANEL
UNIT DIMENSIONS
Model Dimensions (in.)
A B | c
PCG4A36 511/4 353/4 47
PCG4A42 51 1/4 353/4 47
PCG4B48 511/4 453/4 47
PCG4B60 511/4 453/4 50
UNIT CLEARANCES'"2
Distance (in.) Direction Distance (in.)
36 Power Entry (Right Side) 36
36 Left Side 24
Bottom* 1

uuuuuu

Information is subject to change without notice. Check local codes. Printed 11/08/2021

The new degree of comfort:

Commercial Gas
Tankless Water Heaters

S Wwater

Rheem Commercial Condensing Tankless Water Heaters

Commercial Tankless Models

RTGH-C95DVLN (P) RTGH-C95XLN (P)

A,
N T

Rheem Model Number

Operation / Installation Forced Combustion / Indoor Only

Commercial Tankless Models with Manifold Control

RTGH-CM95DVLN (P)

RTGH-CM95XLN (P)

Forced Combustion / Outdoor Only

Minimum/Maximum Gas Rate (Input)

11,000 / 199,900

Approved Gas Types Natural Gas

Liquid Propane

Natural Gas Liquid Propane

Dimensions (Inches)

Height: 27-1/2 / Widith: 18-1/2 / Depth: 9-3/4 / Weight: 82 Lbs.

Maximum Altitude 8,400 ft.
Electrical
Appliance (120 VAG/60 Hz)

- Temperature Controller

12VDC

Ignition System

Direct Ignition

Hot Water Capacity
- Minimum Activation Flow Rate 04
- Min Flow Rate (Gpm) 026
- Maximum Flow Rate 95
Temperature
- Factory Default Range 100°-120°F
- Optional Range 85°-185°F

Temperature (without Remote)

120°F

Service Connections

- Gas Supply 3/4* (19mm) MNPT

- Cold Water Inlet 3/4* (19mm) MNPT

- Hot Water Outlet 3/4" (19mm) MNPT
Controller UMC-117

Controller Cable

18 AWG

Chart continued on reverse

PRINTED IN US.A. x eu.

12/20 WP FORM NO. TK-601RH Rev. 6

LEGEND

— —$§— — —S§§— — —S5—— — SANITARY SEWER
cw W W COLD WATER
Hw HW HW HOT WATER
E C E ELECTRICAL MAIN
UTILITY SITE PLA
Z SCALE: 1/8" = 10"

~

EX.

JOINT
POLE

4 |
|
\_ ELECTRICAL |
'
{
>

\

N -

e

Hous®

CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC
350 W NINTH AVE.
UNIT 106B
ESCONDIDO, CA 92025

COMMUNITY
VETERANS
OF TRACY,

LLC

THE
CAKE
HOUSE

PROJECT NO: Project No.

MODEL FILE:
TRACY 3rd CUP FINAL correction 07_20_ 2022.pIn

DESIGN & DRAWNING BY:
HUSSEIN MUNAIM

COPYRIGHT: CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC

SHEET TITLE

UTILITY SITE PLAN

CUP 03.A-01.1

SHEET 3 OF20




Attachment A

LOOKING NORTH

SITE CONTEXT LOOKING EAST

SITE PLAN CONTEXT

CONTEXT LOOKING WEST

VR

e

Hous®

N

CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC
350 W NINTH AVE.
UNIT 106B
ESCONDIDO, CA 92025

COMMUNITY
VETERANS
OF TRACY,

LLC

THE
CAKE
HOUSE

PROJECT NO: Project No.

MODEL FILE:
TRACY 3rd CUP FINAL correction 07_20_ 2022.pIn

DESIGN & DRAWNING BY:
HUSSEIN MUNAIM

COPYRIGHT: CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC

SHEET TITLE

SITE CONTEXT

CUP 04.A-01.2

SHEET 4 OF20




Attachment A

DEMOLITION NOTES:-

1- OWNER/CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE
FOR ALL DEMOLISHING.

2- CONTRACTER OR SUB CONTRACTORE TO VERIFY

ALL WORK WITH OWNER PRIOR TO DOING THE

ACTUAL WORK.

PROTECT IN PLACE ALL PORTIONS OF EXISTING

CONSTRUCTION NOT BEING REMOVED FROM ANY

DAMAGE PER OWNER.

4- CONTRACTOR TO IDENTIFY AND RELOCATE ALL

MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, AND ELECTRICAL.

ALL MATERIALS OR ANY OTHER ITEMS REMOVED

IN DEMOLITION ARE TO BE DISPOSED PER OWNER.

6- CONTRACTOR SHALL REVIEW AND COORDINATE
DEMOLITION WORK IN ORDER TO FULLY FACILITATE
THE COMPLETION OF ALL PURPOSED
IMPROVEMENTS INCLUDED IN THESE
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS.

~
1

BE SURE ALL UTILITIES ARE SAFELY DISCONNECTED

AND PROPERLY PROTECTED.

ALL STRUCTURES MUST BE REMOVED OR

DEMOLISHED WITH THEIR FOOTINGS.

REMOVE ALL CONCRETE WALK WAYES AND PADS

COMPLETELY.

10- ALL EXISTING TREES MUST BE REMOVED OR
RELOCATED PER NEW LANDSCAPE PLANS.

11- CLEAN UP SITE PROPERLY FOR GRADING PER NEW

PLAN.

8

9

- ———

DISCONNECT ALL UTILITIES FROM ALL STRUCTURES.

EXISTING STRUCTURE TO BE

DEMOLISHED

EXISTING STRUCTURE TO BE
DEMOLISHED

S E——————————————————

EXISTING STRUCTURE TO BE
DEMOLISHED

— o U)

AS BUILT SITE / DEMO PLAN

e

Hous®

CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC
350 W NINTH AVE.

UNIT 106B

ESCONDIDO, CA 92025

COMMUNITY
VETERANS
OF TRACY,

LLC

THE
CAKE
HOUSE

PROJECT NO: Project No.

MODEL FILE:
TRACY 3rd CUP FINAL correction 07_20_ 2022.pIn

DESIGN & DRAWNING BY:
HUSSEIN MUNAIM

SHEET TITLE

AS BUILT SITE / DEMO
PLAN

COPYRIGHT: CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC

CUP 05.A-02

SHEET 5

OF20




Attachment A

GRAPHIC SCALE

10 0 5 10 20 40

I e ey ——

( IN FEET )
1 inch = 10 ft.

CA 95361

‘ 7
CONC CONCRETE |

N CLECTRIC METER | ADJACENT BUILDING

FF FINISHED FLOOR

FL FLOWLINE | | APN: 235-040—04
GM GAS METER 550 X 55.0 UJ
SSCP SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT TC53.31 -

TC TOP OF CURB | X33.58 TYPICALEE 5579 | | 5505 55.0
THRESH THRESHOLD /

|
VLT VAULT / X 53.19
WTR WATER / ‘\ \ - - — = - | 54.9

MUIR CONSULTING, INC

139 CHURCH AVENUE

OAKDALE,
(209) 845-8630 FAX (209) 845-8639

SURVEYING e HD SCANNING e GPS e UAV

www.muirconsulting.com

APN: 235-040-07

X 551 [P

X554 X 55.2 5.0

/ |

X55.4 INDICATES GROUNDSHOT // ‘ “
\

O 12TREE INDICATES TREE SIZE / /

IVEWAY

) 4“ ————— e — —{ —| —{ 1 —{ — HF‘E]

INDICATES BOUNDARY LINE / / / X 54.3 5420 N W/ - ‘ — ()18TREE < S00'0414"W 140.00 X 54.6
f 5317 [ \ [ 54.04 54, \ X547 549X
INDICATES LOT LINE | 5270 \ \ \ ﬁ 7 54.59 X 54,7 S48
- - INDICATES CENTERLINE “ \ 40 | / 54.62 ‘
INDICATES MAJOR CONTOUR LINE X 53.43 “‘ \ |

\ PORCH
%l S54.72 54.52

\
\
34.67
CONCRETE PATIO

53.31% %5417
| 754 A
- Rawp i 5718 57.28 4
98]
~_ WITH OVERHANG
2

FF
S6.80_ P, THRESH
5329 % L5422 5
] | LANDS OF PINNACLE 24 INVESTMENTS, LLC

| \ DOC. NO. 2020-166798
I x539] | 316 WEST 11TH STREET

SsCog | | APN: 235-040-05
53.01 o & —~—
(543 5454

CALIFORNIA

INDICATES MINOR CONTOUR LINE “

Ul

he

N
% ‘/

********* INDICATES BUILDING OVERHANG /

X352

— X— X— X— INDICATES CHAIN LINK FENCE :

—{1 (] INDICATES WOOD FENCE /

CONC CURB & GUTTER

—O INDICATES WROUGHT IRON FENCE /

ENCLOSED PORCH

0OH

‘ @
& o '
INDICATES OVERHEAD UTILITY LINE f 5253 ﬁ( O 3 3l | AREA: 63899.9 S.F.+ |
‘ WTR %
X 53.&4 | VLT 53.7 G IGM 54.35
/

| | 538 X |
[ \ XGUARD

/ \ 3/ 4,’1/\%%//\\“ POLE

X 53.8 IGOT
\,‘ 5414 54.30
H | X 54,21 - J,
> | /

< | |

Z|5324x || |X5410  privEwAY

50.00°
e

- HO —— HO —— Ho
OH

O M e —dOINTD
POLE
NOTES:
1. ALL DISTANCES ARE IN FEET AND DECIMALS THEREOF.
2. THE DATE OF THE FIELD SURVEY WAS AUGUST 30, & SEPTEMBER 17, 2021.
3. ONLY A SIGNATURE IN BLUE INK INDICATES A TRUE AND ORIGINAL COPY.
4, CONTOURS SET AT 0.5 FOOT INTERVALS.

X 53.06

STREET

BENCHMARK:

\
\ X 55.3
\ X 54.1 — = X 54.7

— "
//,,/,,/,/ |
\ m///////////ﬂ// .

W)

GARAGE

N89°34'34"W 2642.92'
———BASIS OF BEARINGS—--

% ELEVATIONS WERE DERIVED FROM GPS OBSERVATIONS AND

ARE BASED ON NAVD88. \ \L X 54.34

777777777777
VIV
N
~
Y
m
m

ENTH

& % = 0 u =u u s - —r I S:
. 562 541 S44Y 1 [ NO0'04'14°E_140.00 SR v
o ' CONC54.80 54,87 CONC ' \

53.00/ X 53,62 X 54.20 X54.47 DRIVEWAY

THE BEARING, NORTH 89°34'34” WEST, BETWEEN TWO FOUND BRASS DISCS IN MONUMENT WELLS
ALONG THE CENTERLINE OF WEST ELEVENTH STREET AS SHOWN ON THAT CERTAIN RECORD OF
SURVEY FILED FOR RECORD ON DECEMBER 12, 1989 IN BOOK 30 OF SURVEYS AT PAGE 198 IN
THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER OF SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, WAS TAKEN AS THE BASIS OF ALL
BEARINGS SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY.

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY

DRIVEWAY
GATE
)
//
/
//
x|
ul
)
00}

| J y A LOT- LINE ADJUSTMENT

/ STRP54.33 BAY WINDOW / APPLICATION IS BEING

/ P53.79 - , / | PREPARED AND WILL BE
- | | SUBMITTED AS SOON AS

‘ | POSSIBLE

UTILITY NOTE:

X
ul
W
—

53 544 — = T

5448 % ‘ \ CONCS55.16
540
54,52 %, | |
| PORCH |

N

NB9"34'34™W BRICK EDGING

UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY ARE BASED ON SURFACE OBSERVATIONS. NO WARRANTIES ARE
EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED CONCERNING THE EXISTENCE, SIZE, DEPTH, CONDITION, CAPACITY, OR
LOCATION OR ANY UTILITY EXISTING ON THE SITE, WHETHER PRIVATE, MUNICIPAL, OR PUBLIC OWNED.

X553 \ X557

525

CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL UTILITIES PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION

WEST

///
000’

X

a

Jl

N

——SIDEWALK

UAV NOTE:

52.64
52.16 ’L ‘ ‘

THE AERIAL ORTHOPHOTO WAS ACQUIRED BY AN UNMANNED AERIAL VEHICLE. PHOTOGRAMMETRIC
SOFTWARE WAS USED TO RECTIFY THE IMAGES AND REMOVE ANY DISTORTION. HOWEVER, NOT ALL
DISTORTION CAN BE REMOVED AND THERE MAY BE DISTORTION DUE TO PARALLAX ERROR. 52,65 X

%56.79 DOC. NO. 2011-150154

THRESH 320 WEST 11TH STREET
e APN: 235-040-06 641
| 541 AREA: 7000 S.F.+

X 54.8 \

| o,
| X 55.6 Y555

316 & 320 WEST ELEVENTH STREET

STEPS

X552 X353
DATE OF THE AERIAL IMAGERY: AUGUST 30, 2021

>
LLI
>
oC
>
n
O
L
Al
<
o
O
O
an
O
=
J
>
oC
<
O
Z
-
O

|
% LANDS OF REO CAPITAL INVESTMENTS & ASSET MANAGEMENT
s

\

L

IREE NOTE:
X 52.80

TREE TYPES, DRIP LINES, AND SIZE ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY. ACTUAL TYPE OF
TREE, TREE SHAPE, AND GROVE CONFIGURATION MAY VARY FROM ACTUAL FIELD CONDITIONS. NO
WARRANTIES ARE IMPLIED IN REGARD TO TREE INFORMATION.

STREET LIGHT \

VAULT \D \‘

STREET 3( o | ||@lxs39 .
LIGHT C / / o Qg;-g

\ B N S
{ ]

\ X 54.3 / \ z X 55.2
|
\ 3/4” WTR \ IJ<54.81AC UNIT X 55.1

| SPIGOT | | X 55,0
| 549X

BRICK—EDGING™

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

52.84X

THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION.

]
L]

L]
[
It
(]

]
(]
]

TYPICALS ¢ gfgg / JT NOO'04'14"E 140.00' |
SSCO '

WTR
VLT

- I —— 55.25 X |
55.01 | |
X 54,88 |

S. #7539
—31-2021

g DATE
LICENSE EXPIRES:

X 52.89 X 5316

6602—01TOPO.dwg

DRAWING NAME
SHEET NO.

52.49 ADJACENT BUILDING

| ‘ | ADJACENT BUILDING
APN: 235-040-080

[7777777777777

/4’/7’/7‘/7‘/// ///

S54.42

ADJACENT BUILDING |

JOB NUMBER 6602-01

DRAWN BY
09 /21 /2021

JMS,WCC
CHECKED BY

DATE

DRIVEWAY

REVISIONS




Attachment A

@12"X12 "DRAIN INLET ol %

©>>cvgqr>g_lgr_pw @4" sch-40 PVC FRENCH DRAIN 1% MINIMUM SLOPE % é

qeucp FLOW DIRECTION FL
amllcargm|
dmp>cu> amllcar Slllges |f

i
Z,Iu_m':DgI

mmmmm
mmmmmmmm

O5zLo2an
w2aitzrso
wwwwww
THR=1
FlorwZ>0
w=>pxrtEX

OOOOOOO
auWlxiFEZ2=E

EEFZZE
VIO LS

o8l g

ooooo o s
B>cvgagr>u_rcp B ||[Eeette: |2
:,:'E$2>—‘”E§ b

t_sjr>dmp>cu>> amllcar O |||cos2eta: |8

IIIIIII
SPESSEES

X h IS

©@>>q_u>asr . S . \
:><q y \(/& X ‘<' Si;‘!:“ E

X H' é’

BT

cvgqgrgle | )
qgbcu_ji> _Ib> sqgjb T T ] @

<%§§>bp?t?uw>€K ;%m%; ”MWWWW“W%WW nm“ mWWWWﬁ”mmw WWWW“ ﬁw W ]W WWMW“HQW gwww
- RTTYCE
- 1 B eﬂ u 1 lﬂ&r RN T . Wﬂﬂ %t%iiﬁgﬁiééijjliﬁEEE*E%%%
FNM\@S\@ZJQC%; sy s %g @ X @ %E 1 i %i;i*%
i | —
|

_XP
®.. Q1\3'SbS. 0ORO. ‘0O~ Nve2.3
£33 aZ717S: ADO, DWWl
0750, eWRb\V

®.. SFWobW\lbhWBeldZY. b]

SIOW LJ

@.. RI \Jo. S\bS' awWU\
@ o S \ b S ' \ Q W U \ THE PORTIONS OF PLANS REGARDING GEOTECHNICAL ASPECTS OF THE PROJECT

HAVE BEEN REVIEWED AND ARE IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE INTENT OF THE
RECOMMENDATIONS CONTAINED IN THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT TITLED "

PREPARED BY DATED

o v il

(9. QNR'SkS. Qc' PE=
@ . C 5 \ D Q D . @ \/\/ ' @ C Z gg\L/JI'II;I;INSEgNéjs:AQUIN FIRE AUTHORITY

_GRADING PI AN

SHEET

@ DO Gl PAILAY, ell// COURTNEY WOOD -PLANS EXAMINER FOR FIRE MARSHAL DATE CUP 07.G- 06
I

OF 20 SHEETS




Attachment A

Cake Enterprise

GENERAL NOTES-
Trash Enclosure Note: Contractor shall verify location of all utilities prior to construction and
shall be held liable for all damages incurred.

PAVERS - CLASS 2 ROAD BASE COMPACTED PAVERS SHALL HAVE A SLOPE OF
1%-2%. 1/4™ MASONRY SAND BASE WILL BE THE SUB-BASE FOR THE FINAL
GRADING OF ALL PAVERS. PAVER'S TO BE 60 MIL THICKNESS. ALL PAVER SAND
INSIDE GAPS TO BE #20-30 TO LOCK IN PAVER AREAS. COMMERCIAL GRADE

WEED-BLOCK TO BE APPLIED PRIOR TO PAVERS BEING LAID TO PREVENT
ST ] . NS WEED GROWTH. PATTERN IS RANDOM UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED
T AN A N\ [ . NS HERE-WITHIN THESE PLANS
A= H25 ‘; ] N{- H25 ' ' H25
= = H#25 - H25
— Aﬁ:‘ u : AN H Lzéﬁé@ CONCRETE - ALL CONCRETE TO BE APPLIED AT MINIMUM 3.5” DEPTH USING
‘JUE%A (L'/]l=l : \I_{\[ UL%@TLTLTL_ [ Q 2500 P.S.1 3/8” ROCK. COLOR TO BE GREY. ALL CONCRETE TO BE REINFORCED
W T T THTE NN AT T — DE— WITH 3/8” REBAR @ MIN 36” O.C. (CONCRETE DISCLAIMER) - CONCRETE
NI T T NN T T , NATURALLY CRACKS, DISCOLORS, & HAS UNEVEN LOW POINTS THAT CAN
@ '\HT%T%T%T% TR ' T T T C:} COLLECT SMALL AMOUNTS OF WATER. THERE IS NO GUARANTEE ON THESE
H=ni=n=n=nzi IFHTH LA A A TR Q NATURALLY OCCURRING SITUATIONS..
@ N iSiiSiisii=iio) L D NG T T T Q «
ElEH=N=n=N=N=ili=l=I=N=I=I=n=IENEIE THTHTETHDS T=NENSIN N\ @=u=u= HTHTHTHTH i
Existing Sidewalk L L N S e N N G U Rl sl ! T T T T T T PLANTER MULCH - PLANTER MULCH SHALL CONSIST OF 3" MINUS ORGANIC
e e e e N L L N P LT i T T r COMPOSTED HUMMUS AND WOOD. TVI 400
T T T T T T T e T T T T T T Tt ii RS Rl R i gt ® ®® @ A
T T T e et T Tt e O i i L e T e e ey | @& PLANT INSTALLATION - CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE ALL PLANT CONTAINERS =
LTiTl=LTlTiTlT=TLTLTLTLTLTLTlTlTlTlTLTLTLTLTLTLTLTLTLTLTLTLT=TLTL " TL—IL=LTL=LT=TLT£T=TLT = TLTLTLTLTLTLTLTLTL r”‘r% ] AND EXTRA DIRT FROM HOLES DUG FOR PLANTING INCLUDED IN PLANT o
D= I= T = T D= D= =] =1 == == = T D= = T T T T T T T T TE T T T s % INSTALLATION PRICE. ROOT BARRIERS ARE INCLUDED ON ALL 24” TREES AND O
(BT =TT TS =TT T = T T T = T T T T T T TS = T T TS T T T T T T — =li=n=ii=li=n=n=N=l=n=i=1=l=n=i=l=li=n=i=l=l=0;1 I LARGER IF CONTRACTOR INSTALLS PLANTS. e
ST T ST S I ST OIS S 0TS TS T I TS T T T T [ ISHEISN=SHENSNSISI=1E] [HTHTHTE ST T T («@ C
i e 5
T T T e e A T T T T T e T T T T T AT T T T = T TA|T||T||T|T””T””T””T””F‘“H”‘Hﬁ"”uﬁ'”'uﬁ”"uﬁ"”ﬂ @%g
e e e T e e o o e e o e o R T e e e e = e e ' e e o S o e ' i = e o' e = = = = o - e e e e e e e e e %:::7:7*:::::*::::::: H| («b)
s B i T L e R T L R LT I %\ T | ;»/ =
: : s " : = : =nizn=n=ns=l=n=N=nsn=n=nsn=nsnz n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n= | e
T T T T T T T T T T T T | O
sage %L%Z%lTL%;TlT LT T T AT T AT TEATETEATEAT
iR R GG ' ~
T T
== i=N= == i ii N=n=i=ii=n=i=| I
. T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T lu=¢<\7
o) 8 e T T LD D T =
S T T e e D T DD T T N
orn Poppy QQ C T TC T I I I - I [ I I I I I L > % / 8
/ ” Blue Fescue Q
., oo oo, .. . @ ,/ —
QQ i=li=h=ii=iizhi=l=N=i=n=l=N=i= =l == 1z =] Seonmnn (R 3L
5 L T L T T S 5
gommog \:”T”T THTHTHTHTHT THTHT THTHT THTH : HTHTHTHT TﬁmET"T"T\ﬁ% I D (&)
e & si=li=li=ii=li=n=n=l=i=li=i= ===l = i=u=0=n=l=il=/i === %\Q\.z
:T%I{{:}}}}}Tl}:{%::‘il i Elciizu=ncuss hiznig m)
@ T T T AT T T TR T
- - e T Plant L d
INDIAN LAUREL & Ll T R e et R e ol ] | an egen
(’:} :I{T}IT}}}}}}}}}T{{%}}}}}}}}} & Symbol Qty Common Name Botanical Name Container
') L Ll LT e v e s o
S [ TE T[T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T CQ
.,. HEISNEnSHEnSNEnSnsnsNsnsnsnsiusnsnsnsIusnsIusnslusnsis 16 Blue Fescue Festuca glauca ‘Elijah Blue’ 1 Gal
] & T TETE T T T T T T T T T T TR T T T T T b
00 T T T T e T T e e T T T e T T T T e T T T T T e T T T T T
Q@ \_%l%_il%_%ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ%_Tl%_%l=l%_%l=ulululululul\l Shsiion r
I=nsNslslsnsn=I=l=l=N=N=nz iz G U=t s fea @ 3  California Pepper Tree Shinus Molle 24" Box
sll=il=II=IES Il TE e N N I e 1 s Cg
B L L e e i L L e e e L R n RN !
Q NN e N e e n e enen o nenen=nen=n=n (A
ST T T T T T T T T T TR T T T T TR | s |
- ,. ,. | R T T T e T TETETE AT TETETE e T ™2 C} 14 Clara Indian Hawthorn Rhaphiolepis Indica ‘Clara’ 5 Gal.
ENEnEN i EnEnEnEnEnEnEnEn=nEn=nEn=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=i=i=n=in=n=n=n=ln=n=n=l=i=n=n=n=li=n=n=n=n=i=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=n=i I
F T T T T T T T T T T I S T T T T I T S T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T TS T T T I T I ST I T T T T T ST T T T TS T TETE T TEITE T T )
I=NsliCi = s S s s e S s Si ssl clsl=l SN =l sl s sh sl s s s sl =Nl sn sl snsnsi =i s sn sl snshcisn s s shsi=nsicisnsisn=nsi=nsi=nsnsi==; u L
T T AT Y e I T TS I T T S T TS T I T ST S 0T TS T I TS T TS T I TS T I TS T I T TS T T I T T e e e e e e e e o 39
i TSl A = =T TS S == TI= TS TS TS 11 S 11 Sl S === === TS == N=T= =TS 1211 Sl S = == == === = N= =TSS5 S =S hens e s s .
F T T T T T =TT T T T T T T T T T T T AT T T TE T T T T T T T T T T AT T TE T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TP e e T T T ; 8  Common Boxwood, Mature Buxus sempervirens 5 Gal
EnslslsEnssnsnsn=nsnsnsisisnslsnsnsnsinslisnsisnsnsisnsisnsinslisnsisnsinsisnsisisnsnsnsinsnsinsisnsisi=nsnsnsisnsnsnsnsinsnsnsnsnsisnsnsnsnsisn=nsisnsnsi=iisn=n: 1 il
ISl=nsNElEnsn=n=n=yzi=ns/I=lsl=insl=nslsnsinsnsinslsnsnsn sl sns s s nslsnsinsnsnsl i sl ==l snsnsn i sl i sisnsn sl snsnsn s n sl snsnsnsnslsnsinsn s n=lsn s =N = EEIsis
ElNslEl NGRS i s h=ncn= szl slslsnslsl =Nl snsnsn sl snsnsnsnslsn =Sl snslsnsinsnsnslsisnsnsnslsnsisnsnslsnsinsnsnsnsnsinsnsnslsn=insnsnsisisi snsuslisn=nsisn=nsi B
Isl=nslEn=nsnsnsnsasnsnsislsnsnsn=nslsnsinsnsnsinsnsisnsinslsnsisnsnsisnsisnsnsisnsisn=nslsnsisnsnsisnsisnsnsinsnsinsnsnslsnsinsi=nsinsnsisis nsisnsi = =) =n=n=7
ElnslEl=nslEnsnslsnslEnsinsnsnslsnsisnsinslsnsnsi=nsisnsisn=insisnsisnsinsnsnsnsnsnsn sl snsinsnsislsnsisnsislsn=ins=ns1 sl SN =S G =R R G === _ .
T T T T T T T A T T T e T T AT T T A T e T T T T T T A T T e T A T T T A T T T A AT AT T T T T T T AT T T A TR T AT AT | 45 19  Evergreen Ash Fraxinus uhdei 24" Box
4" CONCRETE CURB ALONG 12" SUCCULENT PLANTER .
74
5 5  INDIAN LAUREL FICUS MICROCARPA 15 Gal
Scale: 1/8" =1 ft 7 “F‘
- 28 Mexican Feather Grass Nassella tenuissima 5 Gal
Fill Legend 2
P
N
- N~
o0}
Fill Style Category ® 16  Mexican Feather Grass Nassella tenuissima Full Size =
[ee]
—
=H=NSis Cascada Permeable Pavers
sUsisls Permeable Pavers {:} 34  Poppy Papaver rhoeas 5 Gal
T
HIHTHTS
17 Sage Salvia Apiana 5 Gal
ADA Walkway
Planters
Drawn By:
Stephanie Acosta
Reg Grey Concrete, Broom Finish ssdynastyinc@yahoo.com
g y ’ 40502 Wgasa Place
Temecula, CA 92591
License# 987517
Planter Wall SHEET

CUP 08.L - 1
Hardscapes

WEST SIDE PLANTER 1 WEST SIDE PLANTER 2




Attachment A

e

Hous®

CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC

W N eome f """ i 350 W NINTH AVE.
UNIT 1068

\ 6" _-TTR242" 6'-8 1/2" \
B \ \ 53 / < P | 122 SQ.F

~
/ \ & ~

| \ ,| DM 7 \\\ /// (09) \\\ k>
\ ./ Ol | (08) ‘. /EMPLOYEE —
\ / ‘i, CUSTOMERS ! I RESTROOM ! - I—h0—0

|
|
T |
¢ = . N ESCONDIDO, CA 92025
oMl |
| |
FOB 4 /I |
e
Y o R e
L 12'-2 35/64" w77 13-11" ® 21 22 B |
5 — 20 |
- b b b | COMMUNITY
o ~ [con] b 7 0 O H H |
8 @ (03) SECURITY (04) OFFICE ! VETERANS
~ " RECEPTION SR : ;
N AREA 82 SF B s :
@\(01)LOBBY 14 159 i g = ! OF TRACY’
174.8F - _ I | (06) !
Ve oy | = g MEETING RM | LLC
% F |
|
|
|
|
|

\ / H
~__-/’// \ ESTROOM y/ \\ 49 SF //
\\\ 9 SF /// \\\ // 0 goog L

|
s ~_ - N 4 |
|

| N - 0

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
| i
| ]
|
|
. a T
55 54
I N COUNTER ’ | ! ADA PATH
' = N\, = | | OF TRAVEL
| N T | p— (10) DISPOSAL (11 S |
| \ 2 I 39 RM57SF 38 JANITOR (12) BREAK = N |
| SN = RM 24 SF AREA / y K
e\ 1 : ) , ) 142 SF. ! x
| N\ ) 9-111/32 : 3-1131/32 | x |
2 (L (A \ I
| Y BN ! A
I = 5 = 40 CON 25 \\\_T”/ I
I DM | l?) s | - - g [— — I— : 7 : 77777 wa‘. I |
I 52 E @ 3 e 56 O, } 5 |
| = - " o]
| / - Lo o CIRCULATION x | ADA EMERGINCY
(07) [ il 270 SF ;6 PATH OF TRAVEL
' DISPENSARY | / . o !
' i 1355 SF o A i & ! | T
' ———  ADA - N ——— ’ ST | I
I 4 A COUNTER con '
| DM r] B 60 ﬂ DM 42 . o | ‘ ‘
- 51 57 31
| B | | ‘ EMERGINCY ‘
| | : ZONE 45 SF
| | — (14) VAULT L | | |
|
| ADA = 237 SQF |
| COUNTER % | ‘ ‘
| } i Edl |
| 1 50 i B 58 | L
I 7 h I
| N @o @ﬁ |
| @ DELIVERY/ |
| (13) OFFICE o ST%E/;%EFRM |
| - 187 SQ.F o |
I : ¥ i i Vs I
| M 49 Om |
| A /*&S’\\J | [— 34 32 |
: Z > : HOUSE
[ /]
| It " |
' 47 40 33 '
I 548 453 (16) |
| - MECHANICAL I
| — 7 5 1 1 RM 75 SF Y |
l | | | & s 529 !
! . = i d i d ; d d F i ; i ‘ !
| 9 I = 7 I
| |
| -
Ny
e e e = - - .|
PROJECT NO: Project No.
MODEL FILE:
8 TRACY 3rd CUP FINAL correction 07_20_ 2022.pIn
DESIGN & DRAWNING BY:
LEGEND HUSSEIN MUNAIM
¥ FIXED DOME HD CAMERA ACCESS CONTROULLER BACK UP BATTERY SECURE FOB ENTRY ] PUBLICACCESS e EMERGENCY EGRESS PATH COPYRIGHT: CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC
B 360 CAMERA MOTION DETECTOR GLASS BREAK REMOTE LOCK [ ] LIMITED GRANTED PUBLIC ACCESS @ EXIT SIGN ey ————
/\ SOUNDER KEY PAD NVR KEY ACCESS | ] AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEE ACCESS ONLY %5 FIRE EXTINGUISHER SHEET TITLE
ACCESS POWER con] CONTACT PANIC REQUEST TO EXIT BUTTON [ ] EMPLOYEE ACCESS ONLY o SMOKE DETECTOR
——s——>——  ADAPATH OF TRAVEL
NOTE: TOTAL CAMERAS= 52 - NOX BOX SECURITY FLOOR

PLAN

. 4~SECURITY FLOOR PLAN
CUP 09.A- 07

SHEET 9 OF20




Attachment A

ASSENTIAL MATERIALS

e

BRICK VENEER ATLAS ASPHALT MANUFACTUER: WALLPLANKS

|

|

LIGHT BUFF MATT ROOEING SIZE: 5.1” X 47" :
CREAM COLOR: CALICO; WPCAWO47 |
— = |
-: E |
: |

i |

[TTTTTTT]I
%
HH
0

[ —+—
[TTTTTTTI
A

e
// > I_
2
—

\ 0 == i CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC
il ’ = s e S f 0T o 350 W NINTH AVE.
Vi =] I ) ; ) ?“I \y'(\’V'Kﬁ‘f e / "'; ‘
" Z O % Sz \r ) y E@ - /zﬁz A B piogs , /‘\! i UNIT 106B
' — - Ll s pfm 0 5 2 | ESCONDIDO, CA 92025
S 7 7 : — ...
% MANUFACTUER: WALLPLANKS
EAST ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1.0° COLOR: CALICO; WPCAWO47
COMMUNITY
VETERANS
OF TRACY,
MANUFACTUER: HVAC SYSTEM WALL LLC
WALLPLANKS 2 UNITS WITHIN MOUNTED
BRICK VENEER SIZE: 5.1” X 47" ACCESSABLE ATTIC LIGHT TYP.
COLOR: CALICO;
LIGHT BUFF MATT \  wpcawos7 .
CREAM - ———

6" MASONRY
WALL
PER GRADING

THE COLOR APPEARS IN THE LOGO &

- EXTERIOR DOORS. SEE WEST, SOUTH &
NORTH ELEVATIONS.

MANUFACTUER: SHERWIN WILLIAMS

SOUTH ELEVATION COLOR: COLOR MATCHED TO

1l
| X7
7
= \
_ TN Y.
— LY @ r
» mmmmmmmmbwkmmmmmmmmmmmﬁﬁ {h I 7 B0 oL it 1t ATt Tt KER ol KoL JOFLE FL b PR b

scALE: /8" = 1o«  BRANDING COLOR (C:62 M:0 Y:22 K:0)

BRICK VENEER
LIGHT BUFF MATT
CREAM

STREET FACING
BUILDING SIGN

MANUFACTUER: WALLPLANKS
SIZE: 5.1” X 47"
COLOR: CALICO; WPCAWO47

HVAC SYSTEM
INSIDE

ATLAS ASPHALT
ROOFING

WALL
MOUNTED
LIGHT TYP.

===

THE
CAKE

== : = = : S . g f
SERSeE : S : — ey == [ AN {
=== == E===— s Y= ) /| S\ H Y 3
I — — \ g y 1 A\ == ) 1 e
= === =] d =N e/ J I=—— % I
= ] - = (] ®
Eas ) / il 0 7 N\
T o — T — " T o — T o T o i e e e e " T T T T i i e e e —— I \ / 1 I 7 Zima
= == = = = = = = Seee=ms=s=seees EEsass i == [} A Z 5
= LY H ‘ ’ l | E E
W7

BRICK VENEER

WEST ELEVAT| ON LIGHT BUFF MATT CREAM

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0

THIS WALL 8" MIN

MANUFACTUER: FURRING. 1
! WALLPLANKS I PROJECT NO: Project No.
! SIZE: 51" X 47" — ! MODEL FILE:
| COLOR: CALICO; WALL BRICK VENEER | TRACY 3rd CUP FINAL correction 07_20_ 2022.pln
| WPCAWO47 MOUNTED LIGHT BUFF MATT I DESIGN & DRAWNING BY:
i - LIGHT TYP. CREAM i HUSSEIN MUNAIM
. . COPYRIGHT: CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC
! I\BASIIII_\IDING STREET ! O
| ENTRY FACING | SHEET TITLE
| - BUILDING |
: o SIGN : |
| o s | ELEVATIONS
' ) ne' 5
| z = A |
| s = T
; = ot !
| &L
Nz = LA : i

ATLAS ASPHALT

CUP 10.A-08
NORTH ELEVATION SHEET 10 oF20

SCALE: 1/8" = 1-0"




Attachment A

EAST ELEVATION

VR

e

Hous®

N

CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC
350 W NINTH AVE.
UNIT 106B
ESCONDIDO, CA 92025

SOUTH ELEVATION

COMMUNITY
VETERANS
OF TRACY,

LLC

WEST ELEVATION

THE
CAKE
HOUSE

NORTH ELEVATION

PROJECT NO: Project No.

MODEL FILE:
TRACY 3rd CUP FINAL correction 07_20_ 2022.pIn

DESIGN & DRAWNING BY:
HUSSEIN MUNAIM

COPYRIGHT: CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC

SHEET TITLE

PERSPECTIVE
ELEVATIONS

CUP 11.A-09

SHEET 11 OF20




Attachment A

INTERIOR 1

ENTRY CLOSE UP

NORTH WEST CORNER

NORTH EAST CORNER

INTERIOR 2

INTERIOR 2

SOUTH WEST CORNER

BIRD EYE VIEW

PROJECT NO: Project No.

VR

e

Hous®

N

CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC
350 W NINTH AVE.
UNIT 106B
ESCONDIDO, CA 92025

COMMUNITY
VETERANS
OF TRACY,

LLC

THE
CAKE
HOUSE

MODEL FILE:
TRACY 3rd CUP FINAL correction 07_20_ 2022.pIn

DESIGN & DRAWNING BY:

HUSSEIN MUNAIM

COPYRIGHT: CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC

SHEET TITLE

PRESPECTIVES

CUP 12.A-10

SHEET 12 OF20




Attachment A

VR

e

Hous®

CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC

- = = n — 350 W NINTH AVE.
= ;\ ; ; ~ UNIT 106B
¥ _ ESCONDIDO, CA 92025
= BB = =S O Ve A
T i ) A : -
- i i L - W Yoy COMMUNITY
- == ' i < VETERANS
=== _ OF TRACY,
= £ * LLC
: = i \ = A&
= o / —

T T
(0 Fotla\ Varla\ Varla\ Uarial o ia\ Vo e ¥aral Ooral

TS

Building Section A

SCALE: 1/4" = 1-0"

— THE
— CAKE
HOUSE

[

21'-8 27/64"
¥
\\
g
[]
— —
|
[
y

FTCH

14'-7 19/32"

816
=
Tr |
-
125 41/64

1048"
7

(cl‘, —4’4‘\
<
EERRRRNNANEN
|1
\\\
~N
/

PROJECT NO: Project No.

MODEL FILE:
TRACY 3rd CUP FINAL correction 07_20_ 2022.pIn

eSeelealle e N ete Reze Mo Seeexall] — 4 ‘ me——— (e e Y e e L e B e WL e W e o - DES'GN&DRAWN'NG BY
B HUSSEIN MUNAIM

COPYRIGHT: CAKE ENTERPRISES, INC

i@ [
g/ il
|
I
I I III|
il =T
0

= — et
e
11T
[ |
e
e
v
T =
v

SHEET TITLE

BUILDING SECTION B
SCALE: 1/4" = 1-0" SECTIONS

CUP 13.A- 11

SHEET 13 OF20




October 12, 2022

Agenda Item 1.B

RECOMMENDATION

STAFF RECOMMENDS THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION ADOPT A RESOLUTION
1) APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PERMIT (D21-0034) FOR A 3,400 SF
BUILDING AND ASSOCIATED SITE IMPROVEMENTS AT 316 & 320 W. ELEVENTH
STREET, APNS 235-040-05 & 06 AND 2) GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT
(CUP21-0009) TO OPERATE A CANNABIS STOREFRONT RETAILER (DISPENSARY)
AT THIS SITE; 3) EXTENDING THE TIME PERIOD TO ESTABLISH THE DISPENSARY
SITE UNDER THE CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FROM SIX MONTHS TO TWELVE
MONTHS; AND 4) DETERMINING THAT THIS PROJECT IS CATEGORICALLY
EXEMPT FROM THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT. THE
APPLICANT IS COMMUNITY VETERANS OF TRACY, LLC AND THE PROPERTY
OWNERS ARE SAAD PATTAH AND REO CAPITAL INVESTMENTS & ASSET
MANAGEMENT.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Through this item, staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve a
development review permit for the development of a new building, parking, and
landscaping improvements and grant a cannabis conditional use permit to Community
Veterans of Tracy, LLC to operate a cannabis dispensary at 316 & 320 W. Eleventh
Street, APNs 235-040-05 & 06.

BACKGROUND AND LEGISLATIVE HISTORY

California state law allows local governments to regulate commercial cannabis activities in
their respective jurisdictions. On December 3, 2019, the City Council adopted Ordinance
1277 (codified as Tracy Municipal Code (TMC) Chapter 6.36) establishing permitting
regulations for commercial cannabis activity in the City of Tracy (City), which regulations
require applicants to obtain a Cannabis Business Permit. In addition, the City Council
adopted Ordinance 1278 (codified as TMC Section 10.08.3196) establishing zoning and
locational requirements for commercial cannabis activity in Tracy and requiring applicants
to obtain a Cannabis Conditional Use Permit (CUP).

Applicants must obtain both a Cannabis Business Permit under Chapter 6.36 and a
Cannabis CUP under Chapter 10.08.3196, in order to establish a retail site (dispensary) in
the City. The consideration and approval of Cannabis Business Permits are outside of the
purview of the Planning Commission, while Cannabis CUPs can solely be granted by the
Planning Commission. Planning Commission decisions on Cannabis CUPs are
appealable to the City Council.

On September 30, 2020, Community Veterans of Tracy, LLC (dba CURRNT Cannabis)
submitted an application for a Cannabis Business Permit, pursuant to Chapter 6.36 of the
TMC. The application was comprehensively reviewed by an internal Cannabis Business
Permit Review Committee comprised of the Finance Department, Development Services
Department, and the South San Joaquin County Fire Authority. Following review and
determination that the application was eligible, the Committee forwarded this application to
the Police Department for final review and determination. On June 21, 2021, the Tracy
Police Chief awarded a provisional Cannabis Business Permit (CBPA20-0013) to



Community Veterans of Tracy, LLC. The Cannabis Business Permit approves the
permittee’s business operations and odor control plan, community relations plan, safety
and security plan, social equity plan, and community benefits proposal. As noted above, in
addition to procuring a Cannabis Business Permit, the proposed use must also meet the
zoning requirements applicable to cannabis dispensaries, including obtaining a Cannabis
CUP to operate their business at a specific location.

On November 8, 2021, Community Veterans of Tracy, LLC submitted a Development
Review Permit application for the development of a new 3,400 sf building with associated
site improvements on a site totaling 14,000 sf located at 316 & 320 W. Eleventh Street and
a Conditional Use Permit application to establish The Cake House cannabis dispensary at
the site. The subject properties are designated Commercial in the Tracy General Plan and
zoned General Highway Commercial, in which cannabis dispensaries are conditionally
permitted. Development review is regulated by TMC Title 10 Article 30, adopted by
Ordinance 1236 on July 18, 2017. Because the Development Review Permit is paired with
a conditional use permit subject to the Planning Commission, the Development Review
Permit is a Tier 2 application subject to Planning Commission review in accordance with
TMC Section 10.08.3950.

ANALYSIS
Project Proposal

The project site is located in a General Highway Commercial-zoned area on Eleventh
Street that currently contains a mixture of commercial development and nonconforming
residential uses that were built prior to the City’s commercial zoning designation taking
place. The project site is bordered to the north by Eleventh Street, a commercial site
(barber shop) to the west, and nonconforming residential to the east and south.

The project site is currently comprised of two 7,000 sf lots each containing a non-
conforming single-family home. The applicant proposes to demolish the residential
structures and construct a new 3,400 sf single-story retail building with associated parking
and landscaping (Attachment A) and to remove the internal property line via a lot line
adjustment to be submitted under a separate application. The building is proposed to be
built by the street with a parking area comprised of permeable pavers in the rear and
landscaping throughout the site. The site will be served by a western ingress driveway and
an eastern egress driveway on Eleventh Street. A total of fourteen parking spaces are
proposed to be constructed, and a six-foot masonry wall will border the parking area along
the south and east property lines to provide separation and a buffer from the neighboring
nonconforming residential properties. The building proposes modern architecture
comprised of angled rooflines with deep overhangs, a recessed entry, and geometric
windows. The fagade will be comprised of sand-colored brick and stucco - colors and
materials which are complementary of developments in the vicinity. Utility equipment
typically found on the roof are discreetly concealed within an interior equipment well that is
designed to look like a second story from the exterior. These design components of the
proposed development meet the City’s objectives for high-quality commercial
development.

The applicant proposes to operate a cannabis dispensary consisting of storefront retail
and delivery of packaged cannabis products in accordance with local and State cannabis
law at the site. Local regulations include locational requirements, site requirements, and
operating hours to be established by the conditional use permit. The TMC allows
dispensaries to locate in all commercial and industrial zones of the City, subject to the
additional condition that such uses are “located at least 600 feet from any parcel



containing any of the following sensitive uses as of the date the conditional use permit is
issued: school, day care center, or youth center.” Section 10.08.3196(b) of the TMC
provides specific definitions of schools, day care centers and youth centers. According
to City records, as of the date of publication of this staff report, the subject building is over
600 feet away from a school, day care center, or youth center, as required by TMC
Section 10.08.3196.

The cannabis dispensary will operate in a similar manner as a retail store, which is
complementary of the commercial area on Eleventh Street. The applicant proposes to
operate retail services daily from 9:00 am to 10:00 pm and deliveries daily from 9:00 am to
9:00 pm, as permitted by State law. The storefront retail use will be wholly indoors, and no
portion of the retail use, aside from deliveries, will take place outdoors. The proposed
dispensary will have a separate and secure lobby wherein age verification will be
conducted prior to permitting the customer into the retail area and a vault where cannabis
products are stored, as required by TMC Chapter 6.36. Cannabis products will be
packaged and loaded into delivery vehicles through a designated delivery/storage room at
the rear of the building. The applicant intends to start with one delivery vehicle and may
add a second as the business grows in the future. The fourteen parking spaces proposed
with this development exceeds the amount of parking required for the dispensary, which is
twelve spaces for the retail store and one space for the delivery vehicle. Should the use
add a second delivery vehicle in the future, there is one remaining space onsite that can
accommodate parking of the delivery vehicle.

According to the applicant, because all cannabis products are entirely packaged, no
noticeable odors or smells are expected to emanate from the dispensary; regardless, the
applicant will be installing odor-removing filters in the HVAC systems to ensure air quality
and odors are not detectable outside of the facility. The use will implement the safety and
security plan approved as a part of The Cake House’s cannabis business permit, and
project Conditions of Approval (Attachment D) D.1 through D.4 recommended by the
Police Department identify additional means to ensure the business will operate safely
and securely.

Findings

Importantly, Cannabis CUPs must meet the requirements set forth in TMC Section
10.08.4250, which requirements apply to conditional uses in all zoning districts in the
City. Under these requirements, the Planning Commission can grant a CUP on the basis
of the application and evidence submitted, subject to making all of the following findings:

(a) That there are circumstances or conditions applicable to the land,
structure, or use which make the granting of a use permit necessary for the
preservation and enjoyment of substantial property right;

(b) That the proposed location of the conditional use is in accordance with the
objectives of this [Chapter 10.08 — Zoning Regulations] and the purposes of the
zone in which the site is located;

(c) That the proposed location of the use and the conditions under which it
would be operated or maintained will not be detrimental to the public health,
safety, or welfare or materially injurious to, or inharmonious with, properties or
improvements in the vicinity; and

(d) That the proposed use will comply with each of the applicable provisions



of this [Chapter 10.08 — Zoning Regulations].

Development Review Permits must meet the requirements set forth in TMC Section
10.08.3920. Before approving a Development Review Permit, the Planning Commission
must make the following findings:

(a) That the proposal increases the quality of the project site, and enhances
the property in a manner that therefore improves the property in relation to the
surrounding area and the citizens of Tracy; and

(b) That the proposal conforms to this chapter, the general plan, any
applicable specific plan, the Design Goals and Standards, any applicable
Infrastructure Master Plans, and other City regulations.

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission make the requisite findings for this
project based on the evidence in the record, including, without limitation, the following:

CUP Findings

(a) There are circumstances applicable to the use which make the granting of a
use permit necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial
property right, because a conditional use permit is necessary for the operation
of a cannabis dispensary in the General Highway Commercial zone under the
Tracy Municipal Code. The proposed project meets the intent of the General
Highway Commercial zone and otherwise complies with development
regulations of the zone.

(b) The proposed location of the use and the conditions under which it would be
operated or maintained is in accordance with the objectives of Tracy
Municipal Code Chapters 6.36 and 10.08. Additionally, the project site is
located at least 600 feet away from a parcel containing a school, day care
center, or youth center as defined in Chapter 10.08, and the use will be
operated wholly indoors. The use is a retail store, which is complementary to
the surrounding commercial area.

(c) The project will not, under the circumstances of the particular case or as
conditioned, be injurious or detrimental to the health, safety, or general
welfare of persons or property in the vicinity of the proposed use, or to the
general welfare of the City. The proposed use of a cannabis dispensary will
function in a complementary manner to the surrounding retail uses in the
vicinity, will comply with City standards, and will operate no earlier than 9:00
am and no later than 10:00 pm, with deliveries concluding by 9:00 pm, in
consideration of neighboring residences. The dispensary will implement all
safety and security conditions of approval prepared by the Tracy Police
Department.

(d) The project is consistent with the zoning, commercial cannabis activity
regulations, and other elements of the Tracy Municipal Code the City of Tracy
General Plan, the Design Goals and Standards, City Standards, California
Building Codes, California Fire Codes, and California cannabis regulations.
There will be no odors or similar objectionable impacts to other businesses in
the vicinity as all cannabis products will be entirely packaged and stored in
accordance with the requirements of Chapter 6.36. The dispensary will



implement odor control to prevent odors from emanating outside the
dispensary as outlined in the business’s odor control plan.

DR Permit Findings

(e) The proposal increases the quality of the project site and enhances the
property in a manner that therefore improves the property in relation to the
surrounding area and the citizens of Tracy, because the proposed
development meets the City’s objectives for high quality design. The building
fronts the site and screens the parking area from public view. The building’s
angled rooflines with deep overhangs, recessed entry, and use of brick veneer
and geometric windows are used in a manner that de-emphasizes the
building’s rectangular shape and aesthetically complements other
developments in the project vicinity. Furthermore, utility equipment typically
found on the rooftop are concealed within an interior equipment well that is
designed to look like the building’s second story from the exterior.

(f) The proposal, as conditioned, conforms to the Tracy Municipal Code, the City
of Tracy General Plan, the City Design Goals and Standards, applicable City
Standards, California Building Codes, and California Fire Codes, because the
proposed commercial development eliminates the nonconforming uses and
brings the site into conformity with the zoning that will comply with all
applicable City and state regulations for construction.

CUP Expiration

Per TMC Section 10.08.4350, CUP approvals are valid for six months following fifteen
days from the date of approval, unless a building permit, if required, is issued and
construction is commenced, or the use is established. The TMC also permits the Planning
Commission to grant a greater time limit to establish a use pursuant to their conditional
use permit (TMC Section 10.08.4360). Aside from the conditional use permit, the applicant
must also obtain a state license for the operation of the cannabis business and comply
with the conditions of their provisional Cannabis Business Permit, as well as obtain
building permits for the proposed construction, collectively which may take longer than six
months to complete. Therefore, staff recommends that the Planning Commission grant the
Cannabis CUP one year to establish as described in project condition of approval A.9.

PUBLIC OUTREACH/ INTEREST

This item was duly noticed in the local newspaper and public hearing notices were mailed
to all property owners of property within 300 feet of the subject site.

COORDINATION

This development application was reviewed by multiple City Departments, the South San
Joaquin County Fire Authority, Tracy Delta Disposal, San Joaquin Council of
Governments, and the Air Pollution Control District as part of the City’s normal application
review process. This staff report was prepared by the Development Services Planning
Division.

CEQA DETERMINATION




The proposed project is categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15332, which pertains to certain infill
development projects. Because the project is consistent with the General Plan and
Zoning, occurs within city limits on a project site of no more than five acres substantially
surrounded by urban uses, has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened
species, would not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or
water quality, and can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services, no
further environmental assessment is necessary.

ACTION REQUESTED OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION

STAFF RECOMMENDS THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION ADOPT A
RESOLUTION:

1. DETERMINING THAT THIS PROJECT IS CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT FROM
THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT

2. APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PERMIT (D21-0034) FOR AN
APPROXIMATELY 3,400 SF BUILDING AND ASSOCIATED SITE IMPROVEMENTS AT
316 & 320 W. ELEVENTH STREET, APNS 235-040-05 & 06;

3. GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (CUP21-0009) FOR A CANNABIS
STOREFRONT RETAILER (DISPENSARY) AT THIS SITE;

4, EXTENDING THE TIME PERIOD TO ESTABLISH THE DISPENSARY SITE
UNDER THE CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FROM SIX MONTHS TO TWELVE MONTHS;
AND

Prepared by: Kimberly Matlock, Associate Planner
Approved by: Bill Dean, Assistant Development Services Director

Attachments:
Attachment A — Vicinity Map Site and Floor Plans received on August 18, 2022

Attachment B — Planning Commission Resolution
Attachment C — Conditions of Approval



APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

TRACY PLANNING COMMISSION

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-028

1. DETERMINING THAT THIS PROJECT IS CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT FROM
THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT;

2. APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PERMIT (D21-0034) FOR AN
APPROXIMATELY 3,400 SF BUILDING AND ASSOCIATED SITE IMPROVEMENTS
AT 316 & 320 W. ELEVENTH STREET, APNS 235-040-05 & 06;

3. GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (CUP21-0009) FOR A CANNABIS
STOREFRONT RETAILER (DISPENSARY) AT THIS SITE; AND

4, EXTENDING THE TIME PERIOD TO ESTABLISH THE DISPENSARY SITE
UNDER THE CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FROM SIX MONTHS TO TWELVE
MONTHS.

WHEREAS, California state law allows local governments to regulate commercial
cannabis activities in their respective jurisdictions; and

WHEREAS, Both a Cannabis Business Permit under Chapter 6.36 of the Tracy Municipal
Code (TMC) and a Cannabis Conditional Use Permit (CUP) under Chapter 10.08.3196 under the
TMC, in order to establish a retail site (dispensary) in the City; and

WHEREAS, Community Veterans of Tracy, LLC (dba CURRNT Cannabis) was awarded
a Cannabis Business Permit (application number CBPA20-0013) by the Tracy Police Chief on
June 21, 2021, pursuant to the requirements set forth in Chapter 6.36; and

WHEREAS, The applicant submitted a development review permit application for the
development of a new building, parking, and landscaping improvements and a conditional use
permit application to operate a cannabis dispensary (The Cake House) at 316 & 320 W. Eleventh
Street, APNs 235-040-05 & 06 on November 8, 2021; and

WHEREAS, The subject site is designated Commercial in the Tracy General Plan and
zoned General Highway Commercial, wherein cannabis dispensaries are a conditionally
permitted use; and

WHEREAS, Cannabis Conditional Use Permits must meet the requirements set forth in
TMC Section 10.08.4250, which requirements apply to conditional uses in all zoning districts in
the City; and

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission can grant a Conditional Use Permit, on the basis
of the application and evidence submitted, subject to making all of the requisite findings set
forth in TMC Section 10.08.4250; and



Resolution 2022-028
Page 2

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission can approve a Development Review Permit on
the basis of the application and evidence submitted, subject to making all of the requisite
findings set forth in TMC Section 10.08.3920; and

WHEREAS, Conditional Use Permits allow applicants a period of six (6) months to
establish the use pursuant TMC Section 10.08.4350; and

WHEREAS, Under TMC 10.08.4360, the Planning Commission may grant extend the
period of time for applicants to establish their conditionally permitted uses; and

WHEREAS, Cannabis applicants must also obtain a State license for the operation of a
cannabis business and comply with the conditions of their approved Cannabis Business Permit,
which may take longer than the six (6) months granted under conditional use permits; and

WHEREAS, The proposed project is categorically exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15332, which pertains
to certain in-fill development projects consistent with the General Plan and Zoning, occurs within
city limits on a project site of no more than five acres substantially surrounded by urban uses, has
no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species, would not result in any significant
effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality, and can be adequately served by all
required utilities and public services; and

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing to review and consider
the applications on October 12, 2022; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED: That the Planning Commission of the City of Tracy hereby determines,
based on the evidence in the record and its own independent judgment, that the proposed
project is categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to
Guidelines Section 15332 (Infill Development); and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Planning Commission hereby adopts the findings set
forth in Exhibit 1, supporting the approval of a development review permit for exterior
modifications to the building at 16 & 320 W. Eleventh Street, APNs 235-040-05 & 06; and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Planning Commission, based on the CEQA
determination of exemption and the adoption of requisite findings, hereby approves
Development Review Permit D21-0034 for exterior modifications to the building at 16 & 320 W.
Eleventh Street, APNs 235-040-05 & 06, subject to the Conditions of Approval contained in
Attachment C to the staff report; and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Planning Commission hereby adopts the findings set
forth in Exhibit 1, supporting the grant of a conditional use permit (CUP21-0009) for a cannabis
storefront retailer (dispensary) at 316 & 320 W. Eleventh Street, APNs 235-040-05 & 06; and be
it

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Planning Commission, based upon the CEQA determination
of exemption and the adoption of requisite findings, hereby grants a conditional use permit
(CUP21-0009) for a cannabis storefront retailer (dispensary) at 316 & 320 W. Eleventh Street,
APNs 235-040-05 & 06, subject to the Conditions of Approval contained in Attachment C to the
staff report and the findings attached in Exhibit 1; and be it



Resolution 2022-028
Page 3

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Planning Commission hereby extends the time period
to establish the use under CUP21-0009from six months to twelve months pursuant to TMC
10.08.4360 and as further described in the Conditions of Approval,

* ok ok ok ok k ok ok ok ok kk ok k

The foregoing Resolution 2022-028 was adopted by the Planning Commission on October 12,
2022, by the following vote:

AYES: COMMISSION MEMBERS: AUGUSTUS, BOAKYE-BOATENG, HUDSON
NOES: COMMISSION MEMBERS: ATWAL, ORCUTT
ABSENT: COMMISSION MEMBERS: NONE

ABSTENTION: COMMISSION MEMBERS: NONE
ATTEST /o
Y/

STAFFALIAISON




Exhibit 1

City of Tracy
Development Review Permit Findings
Application Number D21-0034

1. The proposal increases the quality of the project site and enhances the property in a
manner that therefore improves the property in relation to the surrounding area and the citizens
of Tracy, because the proposed development meets the City’s objectives for high quality design.
The building fronts the site and screens the parking area from public view. The building’s angled
rooflines with deep overhangs, recessed entry, and use of brick veneer and geometric windows
are used in a manner that de-emphasizes the building’s rectangular shape and aesthetically
complements other developments in the project vicinity. Furthermore, utility equipment typically
found on the rooftop are concealed within an interior equipment well that is designed to look like
the building’s second story from the exterior.

2. The proposal, as conditioned, conforms to the Tracy Municipal Code, the City of Tracy
General Plan, the City Design Goals and Standards, applicable City Standards, California
Building Codes, and California Fire Codes, because the proposed commercial development
eliminates the nonconforming uses and brings the site into conformity with the zoning that will
comply with all applicable City and state regulations for construction.

City of Tracy
Conditional Use Permit Findings
Application Number CUP21-0009

1. There are circumstances applicable to the use which make the granting of a use permit
necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial property right, because a
conditional use permit is necessary for the operation of a cannabis dispensary in the General
Highway Commercial zone as required by the Tracy Municipal Code. The proposed project
meets the intent of the General Highway Commercial zone and otherwise complies with
development regulations of the zone.

2. The proposed location of the use and the conditions under which it would be operated or
maintained is in accordance with the objectives of the Tracy Municipal Code Chapter 6.36 and
Chapter 10.08. Additionally, the project site is located at least 600 feet away from a parcel
containing a school, day care center, or youth center as defined in Chapter 10.08, and the use
will be operated wholly indoors. The use is a retail store, which is complementary to the
surrounding commercial area.

3. The project will not, under the circumstances of the particular case or as conditioned, be
injurious or detrimental to the health, safety, or general welfare of persons or property in the
vicinity of the proposed use, or to the general welfare of the City. The proposed use of a
cannabis dispensary will function in a complementary manner to the surrounding retail uses in
the vicinity, will comply with City standards, and will operate no earlier than 9:00 am and no later
than 10:00 pm, with deliveries concluding by 9:00 pm, in consideration of neighboring
residences. The dispensary will implement all safety and security conditions of approval
prepared by the Tracy Police Department.

4. The project is consistent with the zoning, commercial cannabis activity regulations, and
other elements of the Tracy Municipal Code the City of Tracy General Plan, the Design Goals
and Standards, City Standards, California Building Codes, California Fire Codes, and California



Exhibit 1

cannabis regulations. There will be no odors or similar objectionable impacts to other
businesses in the vicinity as all cannabis products will be entirely packaged and stored in
accordance with the requirements of Chapter 6.36. The dispensary will implement odor control
to prevent odors from emanating outside the dispensary as outlined in the business’s odor
control plan.



City of Tracy
Conditions of Approval
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary
Application Numbers D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

A. General Provisions and Definitions.

A.1. General. These Conditions of Approval apply to:

A2

A3

The Project: An approximately 3,400 sf building with associated site development for

The Cake House cannabis dispensary, Development Review Permit and
Conditional Use Permit Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

The Property: A 14,000 sf site at 316 & 320 W. Eleventh Street, APNs 235-040-05 &

06

Definitions.

a.

“‘Applicant” means any person, or other legal entity, applying for a conditional use
permit.

“City Engineer” means the City Engineer of the City of Tracy, or any other duly
licensed Engineer designated by the City Manager, or the Development Services
Director, or the City Engineer to perform the duties set forth herein.

“City Regulations” means all written laws, rules, and policies established by the
City, including those set forth in the City of Tracy General Plan, the Tracy Municipal
Code, ordinances, resolutions, policies, procedures, and the City’s Design
Documents (including the Standard Plans, Standard Specifications, Design
Standards, and relevant Public Facility Master Plans).

“Development Services Director” means the Development Services Director of the
City of Tracy, or any other person designated by the City Manager or the
Development Services Director to perform the duties set forth herein.

“Conditions of Approval” shall mean the conditions of approval applicable to the
Project located at the Property. The Conditions of Approval shall specifically
include all conditions set forth herein.

“‘Developer” means any person, or other legal entity, who applies to the City to
divide or cause to be divided real property within the Project boundaries, or who
applies to the City to develop or improve any portion of the real property within the
Project boundaries. The term “Developer” shall include all successors in interest.

“Police Chief” means the Chief of Police of the City of Tracy, or any other person
designated by the City Manager or the Police Chief to perform duties set forth
herein.

Compliance with submitted plans. Prior to the establishment of the use, the project
shall be established in substantial compliance with the plans received by the



Conditions of Approval : Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 2
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

A4

AS.

A.6.

AT

A.8.

A.9.

Development Services Department on August 18, 2022, with the exception of a planter
wall in front of the building, to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

Payment of applicable fees. The applicant shall pay all applicable fees for the project,
including, but not limited to, development impact fees, building permit fees, plan check
fees, grading permit fees, encroachment permit fees, inspection fees, school fees, or
any other City or other agency fees or deposits that may be applicable to the project.

Compliance with laws. The Developer shall comply with all federal, state and local

laws, as amended from time to time, related to the development of real property within

the Project, including, but not limited to:

e the Planning and Zoning Law (Government Code sections 65000, et seq.)

e the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code sections 21000,
et seq., “CEQA”), and

e the Guidelines for California Environmental Quality Act (California Administrative

Code, title 14, sections 1500, et seq., “CEQA Guidelines”).

The Medicinal and Adult-Use Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act;

Regulations of the Bureau of Cannabis Control;

Tracy Municipal Code (TMC) Chapter 6.36 (Commercial Cannabis Activity); and

City of Tracy Procedures and Guidelines for a Cannabis Business Permit adopted

by City Council Resolution 2020-137

Compliance with applicable regulations. Unless specifically modified by these
Conditions of Approval, the use shall comply with all City and State Regulations and
the approved Cannabis Business Permit No. CBPA20-0013, which includes business
operations requirements, the safety and security plan, and the odor control plan.

Prior to construction, the applicant shall submit construction documents which meet
the requirements of the California Building and Fire Codes and the Tracy Municipal
Code to the City of Tracy and the South San Joaquin County Fire Authority for review,
approval and inspections.

At all times, applicant (or its successor) shall maintain all necessary permits to operate
a cannabis business pursuant to Municipal Code Chapter 6.36. Neither the applicant,
nor any other entity, shall have an entitlement or other property right to operate a
cannabis business at the property without holding such a cannabis business permit,
which may be approved, denied, renewed, or revoked in accordance with the
requirements of Chapter 6.36.

This conditional use permit shall expire one year following the date on which the use
permit became effective unless, prior to the expiration of one year, the use is
established in accordance with this use permit, or a building permit is issued by the
Building Official and construction is commenced and diligently pursued toward
completion on the site which was the subject of the use permit application.



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 3
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

B. Development Services Department, Planning Division Conditions

Contact: Kimberly Matlock (209) 831-6430 kimberly.matlock@cityoftracy.org

B.1. Prior to approval of a building permit, the applicant shall provide detailed plans that
demonstrate the following:

B.1.1.
B.1.2.

B.1.3.

B.1.4.

B.1.5.

B.1.6.

Compliance with TMC Section 6.36.380(k).

A parking area designed in accordance with TMC Title 10 Article 26 (off-street
parking and landscaping design) and Standard Plan 141 (parking stall striping).
Said plans shall include a planting legend indicating, at minimum, the quantity,
planting size, and height and width at maturity and calculations for landscape and
canopy tree shading areas.

i. Details that demonstrate 12-inch wide concrete curbs along the
perimeter of landscape planters where such planters are parallel and
adjacent to vehicular parking spaces to provide access to vehicles
without stepping into the landscape planters.

ii. Details that demonstrate sidewalk, landscape planters, and bio-retention
areas perpendicular to parking stalls overhang up to 24 inches into the
parking stall in place of wheel stops where feasible. Any landscape
planter overhang may not be double-counted toward the required
amount of parking area landscaping.

ii. All planters be comprised of trees, shrubs, and groundcover. Trees shall
be a minimum of 24” box size, shrubs shall be a minimum size of 5
gallon, and groundcover shall be a minimum size of 1 gallon.

iv. Where trees are planted ten feet or less from a sidewalk or curb, root
barriers dimensioned 8 feet long by 24 inches deep shall be provided
adjacent to such sidewalk and curb, centered on the tree.

v. A photometric plan showing a minimum of one foot candle per Standard
Plan 141 throughout the parking area as defined in TMC Section
10.08.3450.

All roof mounted equipment, including, but not limited to, HVAC units, vents,
fans, antennas, sky lights and dishes, whether proposed as part of this
application, potential future equipment, or any portion thereof, are not visible from
any public right-of-way to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.
All vents, gutters, downspouts, flashing, and electrical conduits are internal to the
structures and other wall-mounted or building-attached utilities shall be painted to
match the color of the adjacent surfaces or otherwise designed in harmony with
the building exterior to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

All PG&E transformers, phone company boxes, Fire Department connections,
backflow preventers, irrigation controllers, and other on-site utilities, shall be
vaulted or screened from view from any public right-of-way, behind structures,
walls, or landscaping, to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.
The trash and recycling enclosure which architecturally matches the main
building to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director. The enclosures
shall be large enough to accommodate the enclosed equipment and trash and
recycling bins. The trash and recycling enclosure walls shall be tall enough to
fully screen the height of the bins, and the door shall be constructed of a solid
metal door attached to posts which are attached to the walls.



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 4
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

B.2

B.3

B.4

B.5

B.6.

B.7.

B.8.

B.8.

. Prior to approval of a building permit, the applicant shall submit an application for a lot

line adjustment or lot merger to eliminate the internal property line.

. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall do the following:

B.3.1. Provide a copy of the recorded document that eliminates the internal property
line to the Development Services Department.

B.3.2. Execute an Agreement for Maintenance of Landscape and Irrigation
Improvements and submit financial security to the Development Services
Department. The Agreement shall ensure maintenance of the on-site landscape
and irrigation improvements for a period of two years. Said security shall be
equal to the actual material and labor costs for installation of the on-site
landscape and irrigation improvements or $2.50 per square foot of on-site
landscape area.

. Prior to final inspection, the applicant shall demonstrate the following:

B.4.1. Compliance with TMC Section 6.36.380(l).

B.4.2. All landscaping and irrigation shown in the approved building permit construction
plans installed to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

B.4.3. All exterior and parking area lighting shall be directed downward or shielded, to
prevent glare or spray of light into the public rights-of-way and onto any adjacent
private property to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

. Prior to commencing any cannabis operation, the applicant shall execute a Community

Benefit Agreement with the City in accordance with the requirements of their Cannabis
Business Permit.

Aside from deliveries, the use shall be conducted wholly indoors. The use may not be
conducted outside the building, including in the parking lot.

The hours of operation shall be limited to 8:00 am to 10:00 pm in accordance with
State law. Should the hours of operation established in the State law become more
restrictive, the use shall comply with the more restrictive regulations.

Before installation of exterior business identification signs, the applicant shall secure
sign and building permits for such signs. All signs, including temporary signage, shall
be on private property and shall not encroach into the public right-of-way.

No bollards, chain link, or similar improvements that are industrial in nature shall be
readily visible to the public.

C. Development Services Department, Engineering Conditions of Approval

Contact: Al Gali (209) 831-6436 al.gali@cityoftracy.org

CA.

C.2.

General Conditions

RESERVED

RESERVED



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 5
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

C.3. RESERVED

C.4. Grading Permit

All grading work (on-site and off-site) shall require a Grading Plan. All grading work shall
be performed and completed in accordance with the recommendation(s) of the Project’s
Registered Geotechnical Engineer. Prior to release of a Grading Permit, Developer shall
provide all documents related to said Grading Permit required by the applicable City
Regulations and these Conditions of Approval, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer,
including, but not limited to, the following:

C.4.1

C4.2

Cc43

C44

C.4.5

C.4.6

Developer has completed all requirements set forth in this section.

Developer has obtained the approval (i.e. recorded easements for slopes,
drainage, utilities, access, parking, etc.) of all other public agencies and/or
private entities with jurisdiction over the required public and/or private facilities
and/or property. Written permission from affected owner(s) will be required to be
submitted to the City prior to the issuance of the Grading Permit.

Developer has obtained a demolition permit to remove any existing structure
located within the Project’s limits.

All existing on-site water well(s), septic system(s), and leech field(s), if any, shall
be abandoned or removed in accordance with the City and San Joaquin County
requirements. Developer shall be responsible for all costs associated with the
abandonment or removal of the existing well(s), septic system(s), and leech
field(s) including the cost of permit(s) and inspection. Developer shall submit a
copy of written approval(s) or permit(s) obtained from San Joaquin County
regarding the removal and abandonment of any existing well(s), prior to the
issuance of the Grading Permit.

The Improvement Plans for all improvements to serve the Project (on-site and
off-site) including the Grading and Drainage Plans shall be prepared in
accordance with the City’s Subdivision Ordinance (Tracy Municipal Code (TMC)
Chapter 12.36), City Design Documents as defined in Title 12 of the TMC, and
these Conditions of Approval.

On-site Grading/Drainage Plans and Improvement Plans shall be prepared on a
twenty-four (24) inch x thirty-six (36) inch size four (4) millimeter thick polyester
film (mylar). These plans shall use the City’s Title Block. Improvement Plans
shall be prepared under the supervision of, stamped and signed by a Registered
Civil Engineer and Registered Geotechnical Engineer. Developer shall obtain
all applicable signatures by City departments and outside agencies (where
applicable) on the mylars including signatures by the Fire Marshal prior to
submitting the mylars to Engineering Division for City Engineer’s signature.
Erosion control measures shall be implemented in accordance with the
Improvement Plans approved by the City Engineer for all grading work. All
grading work not completed before October 15 may be subject to additional
requirements as applicable. Improvement Plans shall specify all proposed



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 6
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

c4.7

Cc.4.38

C4.9

C.4.10

erosion control methods and construction details to be employed and specify
materials to be used during and after the construction.

Payment of the applicable Grading Permit fees which include grading plan
checking and inspection fees, and other applicable fees as required by these
Conditions of Approval.

For Projects on property larger than one (1) acre: Prior to the issuance of the
Grading Permit, Developer shall submit to the Utilities Department
(stephanie.hiestand@cityoftracy.org) one (1) electronic copy and one (1) hard
copy of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) as submitted in
Stormwater Multiple Applications and Reporting Tracker System (SMARTS)
along with either a copy of the Notice of Intent (NOI) with the state-issued
Wastewater Discharge Identification number (WDID) or a copy of the receipt for
the NOI. After the completion of the Project, the Developer is responsible for
filing the Notice of Termination (NOT) required by SWQCB, and shall provide
the City, a copy of the completed Notice of Termination. Cost of preparing the
SWPPP, NOI and NOT including the annual storm drainage fees and the filing
fees of the NOI and NOT shall be paid by the Developer. Developer shall
comply with all the requirements of the SWPPP, applicable Best Management
Practices (BMPs) and the Stormwater Post-Construction Standards adopted by
the City in 2015 and any subsequent amendment(s).

For Projects on property smaller than one (1) acre: Prior to the issuance of the
Grading Permit, the Developer shall submit to the Utilities Department
(stephanie.hiestand@cityoftracy.org) one (1) electronic copy and 1 hard copy of
the City of Tracy Erosion and Sediment Control Plan (ESCP) for approval. Cost
of preparing the ESCP including any annual storm drainage fees shall be paid
by the Developer. Developer shall comply with all the requirements of the
ESCP, applicable BMPs and the Post-Construction Stormwater Standards
adopted by the City in 2015 and any subsequent amendment(s).

Developer shall provide a PDF copy of the Project’s Geotechnical Report signed
and stamped by a Registered Geotechnical Engineer. The technical report must
include relevant information related to soil types and characteristics, soil bearing
capacity, compaction recommendations, retaining wall recommendations, if
necessary, paving recommendations, paving calculations such as gravel factors,
gravel equivalence, etc., slope recommendations, and elevation of the highest
observed groundwater level.

Minor Retaining — Developer shall use reinforced or engineered masonry blocks
for retaining soil at property lines when the grade differential among the in-tract
lots exceeds twelve (12) inches. Developer will include construction details of
these minor retaining walls with the on-site Grading and Drainage Plan.
Developer may use slopes among the lots to address the grade differential but
said slope shall not exceed a slope gradient of 3 (horizontal) to 1 (vertical)
unless a California licensed geotechnical engineer signs and stamps a
geotechnical report letter that supports a steeper slope gradient. Slope
easements may be required and will be subject to approval by the City
Engineer.




Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 7
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

C.4.11

C.412

C.4.13

C.4.14

Minor Retaining along Project Perimeter — Developer shall use reinforced or
engineered masonry blocks for retaining soil along the Project boundary and
adjacent property(s) when the grade differential exceeds 12-inches. Developer
will include construction details for these minor retaining walls with the on-site
Grading and Drainage Plan. Developer may use slopes to address the grade
differential but said slope shall not exceed a slope gradient of 3 (horizontal) to 1
(vertical). Slope easements may be subject to approval by the City Engineer
and if adjacent and affected property(s) owner(s) grants said easements.

Slopes are an acceptable option as a substitute to engineered retaining walls,
where cuts or fills do not match existing ground or final grade with the adjacent
property or public right of way, up to a maximum grade differential of two (2)
feet, subject to approval by the City Engineer.

Slope easements will be recorded, prior to the issuance of the Grading Permit.
The Developer shall be responsible to obtain and record slope easement(s) on
private properties, where it is needed to protect private improvements
constructed within and outside the Project, and a copy of the recorded
easement document must be provided to the City, prior to the issuance of the
Grading Permit.

Walls - Developer shall show proposed retaining walls and masonry walls on the
on-site Grading and Drainage Plan. The Developer is required to submit
improvement plans, construction details, and structural calculations for retaining
walls and masonry walls to Building and Safety. Retaining wall and masonry
wall design parameters will be included in the geotechnical report.

Developer shall provide a copy of the approved Incidental Take Minimization
Measures (ITMM) habitat survey [San Joaquin County Multi-Species Habitat
Conservation & Open Space Plan (SIMSCP)] from San Joaquln Council of
Governments (SJCOG).

Developer shall provide a copy of the approved Air Impact Assessment (AlA)
with an Indirect Source Review (ISR) from San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution
Control District (SJVAPCD).

Developer shall abandon or remove all existing irrigation structures, channels
and pipes, if any, as directed by the City after coordination with the irrigation
district, if the facilities are no longer required for irrigation purposes. If irrigation
facilities including tile drains, if any, are required to remain to serve existing
adjacent agricultural uses, the Developer will design, coordinate and construct
required modifications to the facilities to the satisfaction of the affected agency
and the City. Written permission from irrigation district or affected owner(s) will
be required to be submitted to the City prior to the issuance of the Grading
Permit. The cost of relocating and/or removing irrigation facilities and/or tile
drains is the sole responsibility of the Developer.

If the Project contains overhead utilities, the Developer shall underground
existing overhead utilities such as electric, TV cable, telephone, and others.



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 8
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

C.4.15

Each dry utility shall be installed at the location approved by the respective
owner(s) of dry utility and the Developer shall coordinate such activities with
each utility owner. All costs associated with the undergrounding shall be the
sole responsibility of the Developer and no reimbursement will be due from the
City. Developer shall submit undergrounding plans.

If at any point during grading that the Developer, its contractor, its engineers,
and their respective officials, employees, subcontractor, and/or subconsultant
exposes/encounters/uncovers any archeological, historical, or other
paleontological findings, the Developer shall address the findings as required
per the General Plan Cultural Resource Policy and General Plan EIR; and
subsequent Cultural Resource Policy or mitigation in any applicable
environmental document.

C.5. Improvement Agreementi(s)

All construction activity involving public improvements will require a fully executed
improvement agreement (Off-site, Subdivision, and/or Inspection). Any construction
activity involving public improvements without a fully executed improvement
agreement is prohibited. All public improvements shall be performed and completed
in accordance with the recommendation(s) of the Project’s Registered Civil Engineer.
Prior to the consideration of City Council’'s approval of said improvement agreement,
the Developer shall provide all documents related to said improvements required by
the applicable City Regulations and these Conditions of Approval, to the satisfaction
of the City Engineer, including, but not limited to, the following:

C.5.1.

Off-site and/or Public Infrastructure Improvement Plans prepared on a
twenty-four (24) inch x thirty-six (36) inch size four (4) millimeter thick mylar
that incorporate all requirements described in the documents described in
these Conditions of Approval, the City’s Design Documents as defined in Title
12 of the Tracy Municipal Code. Developer shall use the latest title block
and, if necessary, contain a signature block for the Fire Marshal.
Improvement Plans shall be prepared under the supervision of, and stamped
and signed by a Registered Civil, Traffic, Electrical, Mechanical Engineer,
and Registered Landscape Architect for the relevant work. Developer shall
obtain all applicable signatures by City departments and outside agencies
(where applicable) on the mylars including signatures by Fire Marshal to
submitting the mylars to Engineering Division for City Engineer’s signature.
The improvement plans shall be prepared to specifically include, but not be
limited to, the following items:

C.5.1.a. All existing and proposed utilities such as domestic water line,
irrigation service, fire service line, storm drain, and sanitary sewer,
including the size and location of the pipes.

C.5.1.b. All supporting engineering calculations, materials information or
technical specifications, cost estimate, and technical reports. All
improvement plans shall contain a note stating that the Developer
(or Contractor) will be responsible to preserve and protect all



Conditions of Approval

Exhibit 2

The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 9
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

Cb5.1.c.

C.5.1.d.

Cb5.1e.

existing survey monuments and other survey markers such as
benchmarks.

A PDF copy of the Project’s approved Geotechnical/Soils Report
that was prepared for the grading permit submittal.

Storm Water - The Project’s on-site storm water drainage
connection to the City’'s storm water system shall be approved by
the City Engineer. Drainage calculations for the sizing of the on-
site storm drainage system. Improvement Plans to be submitted
with the hydrology and storm water.

Storm drainage release point is a location at the boundary of the
Project adjacent public right-of-way where storm water leaves the
Property, in a storm event and that the Property’s on-site storm
drainage system fails to function or it is clogged. Site grading shall
be designed such that the Project’s storm drainage overland
release point will be directly to an adjacent public street with a
functional storm drainage system and the existing storm drainage
line has adequate capacity to drain storm water from the Property.
The storm drainage release point is recommended to be at least
0.70-feet lower than the building finish floor elevation and shall be
designed and improved to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

The Project’s permanent storm drainage connection(s) shall be
designed and constructed in accordance with City Regulations. The
design of the permanent storm drainage connection shall be shown
on the Grading and Drainage Plans with calculations for the sizing
of the storm drain pipe(s), and shall comply with the applicable
requirements of the City’s storm water regulations adopted by the
City Council in 2012 and any subsequent amendments.

The storm water treatment system shall be located on private
property and shall be at least off-set from the right-of-way by one
(1) foot.

Sanitary Sewer - It is the Developer’s responsibility to design and
construct the Project’s permanent on-site sanitary sewer (sewer)
improvements including the Project’s sewer connection in
accordance with the City’s Design Standards, City Regulations and
Standard Specifications. Sewer improvements shall include but not
limited to, replacing asphalt concrete pavement, reconstructing
curb, gutter and sidewalk, restoring pavement marking and striping,
and other improvements that are disturbed as a result of installing
the Project’s permanent sewer connection. Developer shall submit
improvement plans that include the design of the sewer line from
the Property to the point of connection.

Developer is hereby notified that the City will not provide
maintenance of the sewer lateral within the publicright-of-way



Conditions of Approval

Exhibit 2

The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 10
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

C.5.1f.

unless the sewer cleanout is located and constructed in
conformance with Standard Plans. The City’s responsibility to
maintain on the sewer lateral is from the wye/onsite sewer manhole
at the right-of-way line/property line/wye fitting to the point of
connection with the sewer main.

Developer shall abandon the existing sewer lateral to each existing
structure and replace it with a 6-inch diameter sewer lateral.

Water Distribution - Developer shall design and construct domestic
and irrigation water service that comply with the City Regulations.
Water line sizing, layout and looping requirements for this Project
shall comply with City Regulations. During the construction of the
Project, the Developer is responsible for providing water
infrastructure (temporary or permanent) capable of delivering
adequate fire flows and pressure appropriate to the various stages
of construction and as approved by the Fire Marshal.

Interruption to the water supply to the existing businesses and
other users will not be allowed to facilitate construction of
improvements related to the Project. Developer shall be
responsible for notifying business owner(s) and users, regarding
construction work. The written notice, as approved by the City
Engineer, shall be delivered to the affected residents or business
owner(s) at least seventy-two (72) hours before start of work. Prior
to starting the work described in this section, the Developer shall
submit a Work Plan acceptable to the City that demonstrates no
interruptions to the water supply, and Traffic Control Plan to be
used during the installation of the off-site water mains and
connections.

The Project’s water service connections shall use a remote-read
(radio-read) master water meter (the water meter to be located
within City's right-of-way) and a Reduced Pressure Type back-
flow protection device in accordance with City Regulations. The
domestic and irrigation water service connection(s) must be
completed before the inspection of the building. The location of
the meters shall be approved by the City Engineer.

After final inspection of the improvements constructed via an
encroachment permit, repair and maintenance of the water service
from the water meter to the point of connection with the water
distribution main in the street shall be the responsibility of the
City. Water service repairs after the water meter is the
responsibility of the Developer or individual lot owner(s).

Prior to improvement acceptance, repair and maintenance of all
on-site water lines, laterals, sub-water meters, valves, fittings, fire
hydrant and appurtenances shall be the responsibility of the
Developer or the individual lot owner(s).



Conditions of Approval

Exhibit 2

The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 11
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

C.5.1.4.

All costs associated with the installation of the Project’s water
connection(s) including the cost of removing and replacing asphalt
concrete pavement, pavement marking and striping such as
crosswalk lines and lane line markings on existing street or parking
area(s) that may be disturbed with the installation of the permanent
water connection(s), or domestic water service, and other
improvements shall be paid by the Developer.

Streets — The Developer shall construct frontage improvements.
Frontage improvements include but are not limited to the following:
curb, gutter, sidewalk, street widening, landscaping, street lighting,
undergrounding of overhead utilities and other improvements. Al
streets and utilities improvements within City right-of-way shall be
designed and constructed in accordance with City Regulations, and
City’s Design Standards including the City’s Facilities Master Plan
for storm drainage, roadways, wastewater, and water as adopted,
amended, and updated by the City, or as otherwise specifically
approved by the City.

Eleventh Street Road

Prior to release of the Building Permit, Developer shall submit to
the City ready for immediate recordation, a grant deed to dedicate
a ten (10) foot wide Public Utility Easement (P.U.E.) immediately
behind the property line.

Developer shall remove and replace each existing driveway for
each parcel with a driveway in conformance with a commercial
driveway.

Along the Project frontage, if applicable, Developer shall landscape
and irrigate the existing parkways per current adopted City
landscape standards. Landscape and irrigation plans shall be
prepared on a 24-inch x 36-inch size 4-millimeter thick mylar that
incorporate all requirements described in the documents described
in these Conditions of Approval, the City’s Design Documents as
defined in Title 12 of the Tracy Municipal Code. Developer shall
use the latest title block. Said landscape and irrigation plan shall be
prepared by a California licensed landscape architect. Developer
can either protect-in-place the existing sidewalk and repair any
cracked, settled, and/or damaged sidewalk or remove and replace
the sidewalk so long as the replacement sidewalk is similar to the
current sidewalk, i.e. similar width, meanders, etc.

Street cuts and trenching related to utility installation on Eleventh
Street shall be subject to Condition C.8.1

C.5.2.  Joint Trench Plans and Composite Utility Plans, prepared on a twenty-four
(24) inch x thirty-six (36) inch size four (4) millimeter thick mylar for the
installation of dry utilities such as electric, gas, TV cable, telephone, and



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 12
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

C.5.3.

C.54.

C.5.5.

C.5.6

others that will be located within the twenty-four (24) feet wide to forty-six (46)
feet wide [the width varies) PUE to be installed to serve the Project. All
private utility services to serve Project must be installed underground or
relocated to be underground, and to be installed at the location approved by
the respective owner(s) of the utilities from the street or an existing or
proposed utility easement to the building(s). If necessary, the Developer shall
dedicate ten (10) feet wide PUE for access to these new utilities for re-
installation, replacement, repair, and maintenance work to be performed by
the respective utility owner(s) in the future.

Signed and stamped Engineer’s Estimate that summarizes the cost of
constructing all the public improvements shown on the Improvement Plans.
The cost estimate shall show the cost of designing the public improvements.

Payment of applicable fees required by these Conditions of Approval and City
Regulations, including but not limited to, plan checking, grading and
encroachment permits and agreement processing, construction inspection,
and testing fees. The engineering review fees will be calculated based on the
fee rate adopted by the City Council on September 2, 2014, per Resolution
2014-141 and on May 16, 2017, per Resolution 2017-098. Developer shall
submit payment in the form of a check for the aforementioned fees.

Traffic Control Plan - Prior to starting the work for any work within City’s right-

of-way, the Developer shall submit a Traffic Control Plan (TCP). TCP can be
split among the different construction phases. TCP will show the method and
type of construction signs to be used for regulating traffic at the work areas

within these streets. TCP shall conform to the Manual on Uniform Traffic

Control Devices as amended by the State of California, latest edition (MUTCD-
CA). TCP shall be prepared under the supervision of, signed and stamped by
a Registered Civil Engineer or Registered Traffic Engineer.

Access and Traffic Circulation to Existing Businesses/Residents - Developer
shall take all steps necessary to plan and construct site improvements such
that construction operations do not impact safety and access (including
emergency vehicles) to the existing businesses and residents throughout the
duration of construction. Developer shall coordinate with the owners and
cooperate to minimize impacts on existing businesses. All costs of measures
needed to provide safe and functional access shall be borne by the
Developer.

No street trench shall be left open, uncovered, and/or unprotected during
night hours and when the Developer’s contractor is not performing
construction activities. Appropriate signs and barricades shall be installed on
the street and on all trenches during such times. If the Developer or its
contractor elects to use steel plates to cover street trenches, said steel plates
will be skid-resistance, and shall be ramped on all sides. Ramps will be a
minimum two-foot wide and will run the entire length of each side.

If at any point during utility installation or construction in general that the
Developer, its contractor, its engineers, and their respective officials,



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 13
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

C.6.

C57

employees, subcontractor, and/or subconsultant
exposes/encounters/uncovers any archeological, historical, or other
paleontological findings, the Developer shall address the findings as required
per the General Plan Cultural Resource Policy and General Plan EIR; and
subsequent Cultural Resource Policy or mitigation in any applicable
environmental document.

Improvement Security - Developer shall provide improvement security for all
public facilities, as required by the Improvement Agreement. The form of the
improvement security may be a bond, or other form in accordance with the
Government Code, and the TMC. The amount of the improvement security
shall be in accordance with Title 12 of the TMC.

Insurance — Developer shall provide written evidence of insurance coverage
that meets the terms of the Improvement Agreement.

Building Permit

Prior to the release of a building permit within Project boundaries, the Developer shall
demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, compliance with all required
Conditions of Approval, including, but not limited to, the following:

C.6.1

C.6.2

C.6.3

C64

Developer has completed all requirements set forth in Condition C.1, through
C.5, above.

Developer pays the applicable development impact fees as required in the
TMC, these Conditions of Approval, and City Regulations.

C.6.2.a. Water. The Developer shall pay the water impact fees prior to pulling
the first building permit for the Project.

C.6.2.b. Wastewater. The Developer shall pay the wastewater treatment
capacity development Impact fees prior to pulling the first building permit for
the Project.

Developer shall submit a separate building permit for the demolition of any
existing structures.

Developer has completed all requirements set forth in Condition C.8

C.7 Acceptance of Public Improvements

C.71

Prior to the consideration of City Council’'s acceptance of public improvements, the
Developer shall demonstrate to the reasonable satisfaction of the City Engineer,
completion of the following:

Developer has satisfied all the requirements set forth in these Conditions of
Approval.



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 14
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

C.7.2

C.7.3

C74

C.75

C.76

C.7.7

C.7.8

Developer submitted the Storm water Treatment Facilities Maintenance
Agreement (STFMA) to the Utilities Department.

Developer has satisfactory completed construction of all required/conditioned
improvements. Unless specifically provided in these Conditions of Approval,
or some other applicable City Regulations, the Developer shall use diligent
and good faith efforts in taking all actions necessary to construct all public
facilities required to serve the Project, and the Developer shall bear all costs
related to construction of the public facilities (including all costs of design,
construction, construction management, plan check, inspection, land
acquisition, program implementation, and contingency).

Certified “As-Built” Improvement Plans (or Record Drawings). Upon
completion of the construction by the Developer, the City, at its sole
discretion, temporarily release the original mylars of the Improvement Plans
to the Developer so that the Developer will be able to document revisions to
show the "As-Built" configuration of all improvements.

Developer shall be responsible for any repairs or reconstruction of street
pavement, curb, gutter and sidewalk and other public improvements along
the frontage of the Project, if determined by the City Engineer to be in poor
condition or damaged by construction activities related to the Project.

Developer has completed the ninety (90) day public landscaping
maintenance period.

Per Section 21107.5 of the California Vehicle Code, Developer shall install
signs at all entrance(s) of the Project stating that the streets are privately
owned and maintained and are not subject to the public traffic regulations or
control. Said signs must be conspicuously placed, plainly visible, and legible
during daylight hours from a distance of one hundred (100) feet.

Survey Monuments — Any altered, damaged, or destroyed survey monuments
and/or benchmarks shall be re-established. Developer shall submit
centerline tie sheets or a record of survey for the following: new public
streets; re-established survey monuments, and/or benchmarks. If the
Developer destroyed, altered, and/or reconstructed any existing curb returns,
Developer shall also submit corner records. Any survey document will be
submitted the City and to the San Joaquin County Surveyor to comply with
California Business and Professions Code Section 8771(c). Said work shall
be executed by a California licensed Land Surveyor at the Developer’s sole
expense.

C.8 Special Conditions

C.8.1

When street cuts are made for the installation of utilities, the Developer shall
conform to Section 3.14 of the 2020 Design Standards and is required install
a two (2) inch thick asphalt concrete (AC) overlay with reinforcing fabric at
least twenty-five (25) feet from all sides of each utility trench. A two (2) inch
deep grind on the existing AC pavement will be required where the AC



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 15
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

overlay will be applied and shall be uniform thickness in order to maintain
current pavement grades, cross and longitudinal slopes. This pavement
repair requirement is when cuts/trenches are perpendicular and parallel to the
street’s direction.

C.8.2  Nothing contained herein shall be construed to permit any violation of
relevant ordinances and regulations of the City of Tracy, or other public
agency having jurisdiction. This Condition of Approval does not preclude the
City from requiring pertinent revisions and additional requirements to the
improvement plans, prior to the City Engineer’s signature on the improvement
plans, and prior to issuance of Grading Permit, Encroachment Permit,
Building Permit, if the City Engineer finds it necessary due to public health
and safety reasons, and it is in the best interest of the City. The Developer
shall bear all the cost for the inclusion, design, and implementations of such
additions and requirements, without reimbursement or any payment from the
City.

C.8.3  Prior to the release of the Building Permit, if water is required for the Project,
the Developer shall obtain an account for the water service and register the
water meter with the Finance Department. Developer shall pay all fees
associated with obtaining the account number for the water service.

C.8.4  Prior to the release of the Building Permit, Developer shall record with San
Joaquin County Recorder a document to merge the two parcels.

D. Tracy Police Department Conditions

Contact: Lieutenant Miguel Contreras (209) 831-6618 miguel.contreras@tracypd.com

D.1. A minimum of 2 on-site security guards shall be maintained on site during business
hours and 1 on-site security guard during closed hours. The name of the company shall
be provided to the Police Department at the time of Building Permit application
submittal. The establishment shall remain closed for business if the minimum of 2
certified security guards are not present during business hours on any given day. Once
the minimum-security staffing is met, the establishment may re-open for business.
D.1.1. Overnight (nonbusiness hours) security shall be a minimum of 1 certified guard

solely responsible for the security of this establishment and not multiple
locations.

D.1.2. All contracted or employed guards shall be certified and have sole
responsibilities as a security guard focused on safety and security. The security
guards will be readily identifiable.

D.1.3. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit an updated
security plan to the Tracy Police Department that reflects the conditions of
approval above to the satisfaction of the Police Chief.

D.2. Applicant shall cooperate with all legal requests from Tracy PD and any crimes shall be
reported without delay.



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 16
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

D.3.

D.4.

Prior to establishment of the use, the applicant shall establish and maintain an updated
on-call list of responders with their alarm service provider and current alarm permit with
the City of Tracy, to include the on-site security manager. This shall be provided prior to
the establishment of the use.

Trash containers and enclosures shall be locked and not accessible by the public at all
times.

E. South San Joaquin County Fire Authority Conditions

Contact: Daniel Stowe (209) 831-6707 daniel.stowe@sjcfire.org

E.1.

E.2.

E.3.

E.4.

E.S.

E.6.

Prior to construction, applicant shall submit construction documents to the South San

Joaquin County Fire Authority for review and approval.

E.1.1. Construction documents shall be designed to the current edition of the
California Code of Regulations, Title 24, as amended by the City of Tracy
Municipal Code.

Engineering and building permit applications received by our offices are subject to the
current fee schedule for South San Joaquin County Fire Authority. Contact our offices
for additional information.

E.2.1. Application processing fees and minimum plan review fees are due at
time of submittal of construction documents.

E.2.2. Additional plan review fees, minimum inspection fees and administrative
fees are calculated on approval of project and shall be paid prior to issuance of
permit.

E.2.3. Permit holder is responsible for any additional inspection fees incurred,
which shall be paid prior to final inspection.

Prior to occupancy of the new business, the tenant shall contact South San Joaquin
County Fire Authority for a new business inspection. Additional fees may be required
for New Business, Annual and Operational Fire Permits. All fees shall be paid prior to
approval of inspections.

Knox box 3200 series shall be required for project. Each tenant shall have keys
placed in the key box. The operator of the building shall immediately notify the Fire
Authority and provide the new key where a lock is changed or rekeyed. The key to
such shall be secured in the key box.

Building shall be provided with approved address identification internally or externally
illuminated in accordance with 2019 CFC Section 505.1 as amended by the Tracy
Municipal Code.

Prior to final inspection, emergency radio responder coverage shall be tested to
confirm coverage areas. It is beneficial for the applicant to conduct testing at
foundation as retrofitting for the conduit is costly. If coverage is inadequate, a
separate permit for emergency radio responder coverage shall be submitted to
SSJCFA for review and approval prior to installation.



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 17
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

E.6.1. Additional improvements may warrant additional testing to be performed.
Testing shall be the determination of the fire code official.

F. Development Services Department, Building Division Conditions

Contact: Phillip Rainone (209) 831-6413 Phillip.Rainone@cityoftracy.org

F.1. The means of egress shall provide an unobstructed path that leads any person
(including those with impairments) to the public way. The accessible parking stall is
not meant to serve as a location for people to use when an emergency occurs.
Therefore, at time of building permit application submittal, the applicant shall provide
and egress plan that complies with CBC Chapter 10.

F.2. At time of building permit submittal, applicant to demonstrate compliance with CBC
11B-202.4 and 206 for path of travel requirements to new areas of
alteration/addition, to right of way, between buildings, and to facilities on site,
including the accessible trash enclosure. Currently, an accessible router is not
shown to the trash enclosure.

F.3. Per CBC Chapter 2, the definition of "means of egress" is, - "A continuous and
unobstructed path of vertical and horizontal egress travel from any occupied portion
of a building or structure to a public way." Currently, this plan does not meet the
intent of the definition, nor does it comply with CBC Chapter 10. Therefore, at time of
building permit submittal, applicant shall provide an emergency egress plan that
complies with CBC Chapter 10, as applicable to the project.

F.4. Prior to building permit issuance, applicant must submit separate demolition permit
applications for all structures being removed due to the construction of this project
per CBC 105, as it is not exempt from permits.

F.5. At time of building permit application submittal, applicant shall submit plans that are
prepared by a registered design professional per CBC 107.1.

F.6. At time of building permit submittal, applicant to demonstrate compliance with CBC
11B-202.4 and 206 for path of travel requirements to new areas of
alteration/addition, to right of way, between buildings, and to facilities on site,
including the accessible trash enclosure.

F.7. At time of building permit submittal, applicant shall provide an emergency egress
plan from the new building to the public right-of-way that complies with CBC Chapter
10, as applicable to the project.

F.8. At the time of building permit application submittal, the applicant shall show
compliance with CBC 1010, as applicable for the types of doors and door-locking
mechanisms that will be used for this project.

F.9. At time of building permit application, the applicant shall provide details of accessible
parking stall and their access aisles per CBC 11B-502, as applicable.



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 18
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

F.10

F.11.

F.12.

At time of building permit application submittal, applicant shall provide accessible
stall to be on the shortest accessible route from parking to an entrance complying
CBC 11B-206.4.

At the time of building permit application submittal, the applicant shall provide a
calculation for the minimum required number of toilet facilities per CPC Chapter 4.

Prior to construction of any structures, applicant shall submit a building permit
application along with all pertinent construction documents such as plans,
specifications, and/or calculations to the Building Safety Division prior to the
construction of the canopy. Construction documents shall conform to the Title 24
California Code of Regulations edition effective on the date of application for a
building permit.

G. The following conditions provide the applicant with options for funding required
Citywide services.

Contact: Karin Schnaider (209) 831-6841 karin.schnaider@cityoftracy.org

G1.

Streets and Streetlights

Before issuance of any building permit for the Property, Developer shall provide for
perpetual funding of the on-going costs of the operation and maintenance of the
streets (from curb-to-curb, excluding gutters) to a Pavement Management System
standard of PCI 70 (seventy), which could include street reconstruction, as
reasonably determined by the City, the electric utility costs of operating the
streetlights and signals that will serve the Project (collectively, the “Infrastructure”),
by doing one of the following, subject to the approval of the City’s Finance Director:

a. Community Facilities District (CFD). Developer shall enter into an agreement with
the City, to be signed by the Finance Director, which shall be recorded against
the Property, which requires that prior to the final inspection, Developer shall
complete the annexation of the Property to City of Tracy Community Facilities
District in compliance with the requirements of the Mello — Roos Community
Facilities Act of 1982 (Gov. Code § 53311 et seq.) including, without limitation,
affirmative votes, and the recordation of a Notice of Special Tax Lien. Developer
shall be responsible for all costs associated with the CFD proceedings.

Or

b. POA and dormant CED. If the POA is the chosen funding mechanism, Developer
must do the following:

1) Form a Property Owner’s Association (POA) or other maintenance
association, with CC&Rs reasonably acceptable to the City, to assume
the obligation for the on-going costs of the operation and maintenance of
the streets (from curb-to-curb, excluding gutters) to a Pavement
Management System standard of PCI 70 (seventy), which could include
street reconstruction, as reasonably determined by the City, the electric



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 19
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

G.2.

utility costs of operating the streetlights and signals that will serve the
Project (collectively, the “Infrastructure”);

2) Cause the POA to enter into an agreement with the City, in a form to be
approved by the City and to be recorded against the Property prior to the
final inspection, setting forth, among other things, the required
maintenance obligations, the standards of maintenance, and all other
associated obligation(s) of the POA to ensure the on-going costs of the
operation and maintenance of the streets (from curb-to-curb, excluding
gutters) to a Pavement Management System standard of PCI 70
(seventy), which could include street reconstruction, as reasonably
determined by the City, the electric utility costs of operating the
streetlights and signals that will serve the Project (collectively, the
“Infrastructure”);

3) Before final inspection, annex into a CFD in a "dormant" capacity, to be
triggered if the POA fails (as determined by the City in its sole and
exclusive discretion) to perform the required level of operation,
maintenance and replacement for the on-going costs of the operation and
maintenance of the streets (from curb-to-curb, excluding gutters) to a
Pavement Management System standard of PCI 70 (seventy), which
could include street reconstruction, as reasonably determined by the City,
the electric utility costs of operating the streetlights and signals that will
serve the Project (collectively, the “Infrastructure”). The dormant tax or
assessment shall be disclosed to all property owners, even during the
dormant period. '

Or

c. Direct funding. Developer shall enter into an agreement with the City, which shall
be recorded against the Property, which requires that prior to approval of final
inspection, Developer shall deposit with the City an amount necessary, as’
reasonably determined by the City, to fund in perpetuity the on-going costs of the
operation and maintenance of the streets (from curb-to-curb, excluding gutters)
to a Pavement Management System standard of PCI 70 (seventy), which could
include street reconstruction, as reasonably determined by the City, the electric
utility costs of operating the streetlights and signals that will serve the Project
(collectively, the “Infrastructure”).

If the provisions for adequate funding of the on-going costs of the operation and
maintenance of the streets (from curb-to-curb, excluding gutters) to a Pavement
Management System standard of PCI 70 (seventy), which could include street
reconstruction, as reasonably determined by the City, the electric utility costs of
operating the streetlights and signals that will serve the Project (collectively, the
“Infrastructure”) are met prior to issuance of the building permit for the Property,
subject to the Finance Director’s review and approval, the terms of this condition
shall be considered to have been met and this condition shall become null and void.

Landscaping Maintenance



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 20
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

Prior to issuance of any building permit for the Property, Developer shall provide for
perpetual funding of the on-going costs of operation, maintenance and replacement
for public landscaping for the Property at a high-quality service level as determined
by the Parks Director by doing one of the following, subject to the approval of the
City’s Finance Director:

a. CFD or other funding mechanism. The Developer shall enter into an agreement
with the City, which shall be recorded against the Property, which stipulates the
following: (1) prior to issuance of a building permit, the Developer shall form or
annex into a Community Facilities District (CFD) for funding the on-going costs
related to maintenance, operation, repair and replacement of public landscaping,
public walls and any public amenities included in the Project, and ongoing public
landscaping maintenance costs associated with major program roadways
identified in the Citywide Roadway and Transportation Master Plan; (2) the items
to be maintained include but are not limited to the following: ground cover, turf,
shrubs, trees, irrigation systems, drainage and electrical systems; masonry walls
or other fencing, entryway monuments or other ornamental structures, furniture,
recreation equipment, hardscape and any associated appurtenances within
medians, parkways, dedicated easements, channel-ways, public parks, and
public open space areas and trails; (3) formation of the CFD shall include, but not
be limited to, affirmative votes and the recordation of a Notice of Special Tax
Lien; (4) upon successful formation, the parcels will be subject to the maximum
special tax rates as outlined in the Rate and Method of Apportionment; (5) prior
to issuance of a building permit, the Developer shall deposit an amount equal to
the first year's taxes; and (6) the Developer shall be responsible for all costs
associated with formation or annexation of the CFD.

Or

b. POA and dormant CFED. If the POA is the chosen funding mechanism, the
Developer must do the following:

1. Form a Property Owner’s Association (POA) or other maintenance
association, with CC&Rs reasonably acceptable to the City, to
assume the obligation for the on-going maintenance of all public
landscaping areas that will serve the Property;

2. Cause the POA to enter into an agreement with the City, in a form
to be approved by the City and to be recorded against the
Property prior to the final inspection, setting forth, among other
things, the required maintenance obligations, the standards of
maintenance, and all other associated obligation(s) to ensure the
long-term maintenance by the POA of all public landscape areas
that will serve the Property;

3. Make and submit to the City, in a form reasonably acceptable to
the City, an irrevocable offer of dedication of all public landscape
areas that will serve the Property;



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Page 21
Application Nos. D21-0034 & CUP21-0009

4. Before final inspection, annex into a CFD in a "dormant" capacity,
to be triggered if the POA fails (as determined by the City in its
sole and exclusive discretion) to perform the required level of
public landscape maintenance. The dormant tax or assessment
shall be disclosed to all property owners, even during the dormant
period.

Or

c. Direct funding. The Developer shall enter into an agreement with the City, which
shall be recorded against the Property, which stipulates that prior to issuance of
a building permit, the Developer shall deposit with the City an amount necessary,
as reasonably determined by the City, to fund in perpetuity the full on-going
maintenance costs related to maintenance, operation, repair and replacement of
public landscaping, public walls and any public amenities included in the Project,
and ongoing public landscaping maintenance costs associated with major
program roadways identified in the Citywide Roadway and Transportation Master
Plan. The items to be maintained include but are not limited to the following:
ground cover, turf, shrubs, trees, irrigation systems, drainage and electrical
systems, masonry walls or other fencing, entryway monuments or other
ornamental structures, furniture, recreation equipment, hardscape and any
associated appurtenances within medians, parkways, dedicated easements,
channel-ways, public parks, and public open space areas and trails.



Attachment B

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

CITY ATTORNEY’'S OFFICE
TRACY PLANNING COMMISSION

RESOLUTION 2023-

1. FINDING GOOD CAUSE UNDER TMC SECTION 10.08.4360 FOR
APPLICANT’S RENEWAL OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (CUP21-0009);

2. APPROVING A RENEWAL (EXT23-0005) OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT
CUP21-0009 FOR A CANNABIS STOREFRONT RETAILER (DISPENSARY)
AT 316 & 320 W. ELEVENTH STREET, APNS 235-040-05 & 06 TO MARCH
3, 2024; AND

3. DETERMINING THAT THIS PROJECT IS CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT
FROM THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT.

WHEREAS, the applicant was awarded a Cannabis Business Permit (Application
Number CBPA20-0013) on June 21, 2021, by the Tracy Police Chief, which is valid until
March 3, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the applicant was granted a Conditional Use Permit (Application
Number CUP21-0009 to establish a cannabis dispensary at 316 & 320 W. Eleventh
Street on October 12, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Conditional Use Permit, which took effect on October 27, 2022,
was granted one year for the use to be established in accordance with TMC Section
10.08.4360; and

WHEREAS, the use has not yet been established nor has a building permit been
issued and construction diligently pursued to completion, and the Conditional Use
Permit expired on October 27, 2023; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with TMC Section 10.08.4350, a Conditional Use
Permit may be renewed, provided that an application for the renewal of the use permit is
filed prior to the expiration of the time period granted; and

WHEREAS, under TMC Section 10.08.4360, the Conditional Use Permit may be
extended by the Planning Commission provided 1) the new time limit is “reasonable,
based on size, nature, and complexity of the proposed development,” and 2) the



Resolution 2023-
Page 2

Planning Commission finds “good cause, such as proof of an unusual hardship not of
the applicant’s own making;” and

WHEREAS, on October 18, 2023, the applicant submitted an application
requesting additional time to establish the use; and

WHEREAS, the subject property is designated Commercial in the Tracy General
Plan and zoned General Highway Commercial, wherein cannabis dispensaries are
conditionally permitted; and

WHEREAS, the applicant proposes no changes to the project from that which
was approved under CUP21-0009; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant has demonstrated good cause for an extension of the
CUP based on hardships derived from an unexpected reduction of the applicant’s
resources, including their draftsman, which limited their ability to prepare construction
documents necessary for the building permit application; and

WHEREAS, Staff found March 3, 2024, to be a reasonable expiration date of the
renewed CUP, aligned with the expiration of the Applicant’s Cannabis Business Permit;
and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing to review and
consider the project on December 20, 2023; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED: That the Planning Commission finds good cause for granting the
renewal of Conditional Use Permit CUP21-0009 (Application Number EXT23-0005)
pursuant to Tracy Municipal Code Section 10.08.4360, subject to the reincorporated
findings contained in Exhibit 1 and the conditions of approval in Exhibit 2; and be it further

RESOLVED: That the Planning Commission approves the expiration date of
March 3, 2024 for the renewed Conditional Use Permit CUP21-0009 (Application
Number EXT23-0005) pursuant to Tracy Municipal Code Section 10.08.4360 and the
finding that such expiration date is reasonable; and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Planning Commission finds that the project is
categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to CEQA
Guidelines Section 15332, pertaining to existing facilities in an area where all public
services and facilities are available and which is not environmentally sensitive.

* k k k k k k kkk k% k ok



Resolution 2023-
Page 3

The foregoing Resolution 2023- was adopted by the Planning Commission
on December 20, 2023, by the following vote:

AYES: COMMISSION MEMBERS:
NOES: COMMISSION MEMBERS:
ABSENT: COMMISSION MEMBERS:
ABSTENTION: COMMISSION MEMBERS:

CHAIR

ATTEST:

STAFF LIAISON

Exhibit 1 — Project Findings
Exhibit 2 — Project Conditions of Approval



Exhibit 1

City of Tracy
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary CUP21-0009
Conditional Use Permit Findings
Application Number EXT23-0005

(a) There are circumstances applicable to the use which make the granting of a use permit

necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial property right, because a
conditional use permit is necessary for the operation of a cannabis dispensary in the
General Highway Commercial zone as required by the Tracy Municipal Code. The proposed
project meets the intent of the General Highway Commercial zone and otherwise complies
with development regulations of the zone.

(b) The proposed location of the use and the conditions under which it would be operated or

maintained is in accordance with the objectives of the Tracy Municipal Code Chapter 6.36
and Chapter 10.08. Additionally, the project site is located at least 600 feet away from a
parcel containing a school, day care center, or youth center as defined in Chapter 10.08,
and the use will be operated wholly indoors. The use is a retail store, which is
complementary to the surrounding commercial area.

(c) The project will not, under the circumstances of the particular case or as conditioned, be

injurious or detrimental to the health, safety, or general welfare of persons or property in the
vicinity of the proposed use, or to the general welfare of the City. The proposed use of a
cannabis dispensary will function in a complementary manner to the surrounding retail uses
in the vicinity, will comply with City standards, and will operate no earlier than 9:00 am and
no later than 10:00 pm, with deliveries concluding by 9:00 pm, in consideration of
neighboring residences. The dispensary will implement all safety and security conditions of
approval prepared by the Tracy Police Department.

(d) The project is consistent with the zoning, commercial cannabis activity regulations, and

other elements of the Tracy Municipal Code the City of Tracy General Plan, the Design
Goals and Standards, City Standards, California Building Codes, California Fire Codes, and
California cannabis regulations. There will be no odors or similar objectionable impacts to
other businesses in the vicinity as all cannabis products will be entirely packaged and
stored in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 6.36. The dispensary will implement
odor control to prevent odors from emanating outside the dispensary as outlined in the
business’s odor control plan.

(e) The applicant applied for a renewal to the conditional use permit prior to expiration of the

original time period granted. Pursuant to Tracy Municipal Code Sections 10.08.4350 and
10.08.4360, the applicant has experienced unusual hardships not of the applicant’s own
making, including an unexpected loss of resources and inability to prepare construction
drawings required for their building permit application. The applicant therefore requires
additional time to obtain building permits and diligently pursue construction or occupy the
site with the approved cannabis business. For these reasons, the Commission finds good
cause for the extension of the conditional use permit.



Exhibit 2

City of Tracy
Conditions of Approval
The Cake House Cannabis Dispensary CUP21-0009 Renewal
Application Number EXT23-0005
Planning Commission — December 20, 2023

A. General Provisions and Definitions.

A1,

A2

General. These Conditions of Approval apply to:

The Project: Renewal of the Cake House Cannabis Dispensary Conditional Use Permit
CUP21-0009

The Property: A 14,000 sf site at 316 & 320 W. Eleventh Street, APNs 235-040-05 &
06

Definitions.

a. “Applicant” means any person, or other legal entity, applying for a conditional use
permit.

b. “City Engineer” means the City Engineer of the City of Tracy, or any other duly
licensed Engineer designated by the City Manager, or the Development Services
Director, or the City Engineer to perform the duties set forth herein.

c. “City Regulations” means all written laws, rules, and policies established by the
City, including those set forth in the City of Tracy General Plan, the Tracy Municipal
Code, ordinances, resolutions, policies, procedures, and the City’s Design
Documents (including the Standard Plans, Standard Specifications, Design
Standards, and relevant Public Facility Master Plans).

d. “Development Services Director’ means the Development Services Director of the
City of Tracy, or any other person designated by the City Manager or the
Development Services Director to perform the duties set forth herein.

e. “Conditions of Approval” shall mean the conditions of approval applicable to the
Project located at the Property. The Conditions of Approval shall specifically
include all conditions set forth herein.

f. “Developer” means any person, or other legal entity, who applies to the City to
divide or cause to be divided real property within the Project boundaries, or who
applies to the City to develop or improve any portion of the real property within the
Project boundaries. The term “Developer” shall include all successors in interest.

g. “Police Chief” means the Chief of Police of the City of Tracy, or any other person
designated by the City Manager or the Police Chief to perform duties set forth
herein.



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 2
Application No. EXT23-0005

A3.

A4

A5.

AG.

A7.

A.8.

A9.

Compliance with submitted plans. Prior to the establishment of the use, the project
shall be established in substantial compliance with the plans received by the
Development Services Department on August 18, 2022, with the exception of a planter
wall in front of the building, to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

Payment of applicable fees. The applicant shall pay all applicable fees for the project,
including, but not limited to, development impact fees, building permit fees, plan check
fees, grading permit fees, encroachment permit fees, inspection fees, school fees, or
any other City or other agency fees or deposits that may be applicable to the project.

Compliance with laws. The Developer shall comply with all federal, state and local

laws, as amended from time to time, related to the development of real property within

the Project, including, but not limited to:

¢ the Planning and Zoning Law (Government Code sections 65000, et seq.)

¢ the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code sections 21000,
et seq., “CEQA”), and

e the Guidelines for California Environmental Quality Act (California Administrative

Code, title 14, sections 1500, et seq., “CEQA Guidelines”).

The Medicinal and Adult-Use Cannabis Regulation and Safety Act;

Regulations of the Bureau of Cannabis Control;

Tracy Municipal Code (TMC) Chapter 6.36 (Commercial Cannabis Activity); and

City of Tracy Procedures and Guidelines for a Cannabis Business Permit adopted

by City Council Resolution 2020-137

Compliance with applicable regulations. Unless specifically modified by these
Conditions of Approval, the use shall comply with all City and State Regulations and
the approved Cannabis Business Permit No. CBPA20-0013, which includes business
operations requirements, the safety and security plan, and the odor control plan.

Prior to construction, the applicant shall submit construction documents which meet
the requirements of the California Building and Fire Codes and the Tracy Municipal
Code to the City of Tracy and the South San Joaquin County Fire Authority for review,
approval and inspections.

At all times, applicant (or its successor) shall maintain all necessary permits to operate
a cannabis business pursuant to Municipal Code Chapter 6.36. Neither the applicant,
nor any other entity, shall have an entitlement or other property right to operate a
cannabis business at the property without holding such a cannabis business permit,
which may be approved, denied, renewed, or revoked in accordance with the
requirements of Chapter 6.36.

This conditional use permit shall expire one year following the date on which the use
permit became effective unless, prior to the expiration of one year, the use is
established in accordance with this use permit, or a building permit is issued by the
Building Official and construction is commenced and diligently pursued toward
completion on the site which was the subject of the use permit application.



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 3
Application No. EXT23-0005

B. Development Services Department, Planning Division Conditions

Contact: Kimberly Matlock (209) 831-6430 kimberly.matlock@cityoftracy.org

B.1. Prior to approval of a building permit, the applicant shall provide detailed plans that
demonstrate the following:

B.1.1.
B.1.2.

B.1.3.

B.1.4.

B.1.5.

B.1.6.

Compliance with TMC Section 6.36.380(k).

A parking area designed in accordance with TMC Title 10 Article 26 (off-street
parking and landscaping design) and Standard Plan 141 (parking stall striping).
Said plans shall include a planting legend indicating, at minimum, the quantity,
planting size, and height and width at maturity and calculations for landscape and
canopy tree shading areas.

i. Details that demonstrate 12-inch wide concrete curbs along the
perimeter of landscape planters where such planters are parallel and
adjacent to vehicular parking spaces to provide access to vehicles
without stepping into the landscape planters.

ii. Details that demonstrate sidewalk, landscape planters, and bio-retention
areas perpendicular to parking stalls overhang up to 24 inches into the
parking stall in place of wheel stops where feasible. Any landscape
planter overhang may not be double-counted toward the required
amount of parking area landscaping.

ii. All planters be comprised of trees, shrubs, and groundcover. Trees shall
be a minimum of 24” box size, shrubs shall be a minimum size of 5
gallon, and groundcover shall be a minimum size of 1 gallon.

iv. Where trees are planted ten feet or less from a sidewalk or curb, root
barriers dimensioned 8 feet long by 24 inches deep shall be provided
adjacent to such sidewalk and curb, centered on the tree.

v. A photometric plan showing a minimum of one foot candle per Standard
Plan 141 throughout the parking area as defined in TMC Section
10.08.3450.

All roof mounted equipment, including, but not limited to, HVAC units, vents,
fans, antennas, sky lights and dishes, whether proposed as part of this
application, potential future equipment, or any portion thereof, are not visible from
any public right-of-way to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.
All vents, gutters, downspouts, flashing, and electrical conduits are internal to the
structures and other wall-mounted or building-attached utilities shall be painted to
match the color of the adjacent surfaces or otherwise designed in harmony with
the building exterior to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

All PG&E transformers, phone company boxes, Fire Department connections,
backflow preventers, irrigation controllers, and other on-site utilities, shall be
vaulted or screened from view from any public right-of-way, behind structures,
walls, or landscaping, to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.
The trash and recycling enclosure which architecturally matches the main
building to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director. The enclosures
shall be large enough to accommodate the enclosed equipment and trash and
recycling bins. The trash and recycling enclosure walls shall be tall enough to
fully screen the height of the bins, and the door shall be constructed of a solid
metal door attached to posts which are attached to the walls.


mailto:kimberly.matlock@cityoftracy.org

Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 4
Application No. EXT23-0005

B.2

B.3

B.4

B.5.

B.6.

B.7.

B.8.

B.9.

. Prior to approval of a building permit, the applicant shall submit an application for a lot

line adjustment or lot merger to eliminate the internal property line.

. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall do the following:

B.3.1. Provide a copy of the recorded document that eliminates the internal property
line to the Development Services Department.

B.3.2. Execute an Agreement for Maintenance of Landscape and Irrigation
Improvements and submit financial security to the Development Services
Department. The Agreement shall ensure maintenance of the on-site landscape
and irrigation improvements for a period of two years. Said security shall be
equal to the actual material and labor costs for installation of the on-site
landscape and irrigation improvements or $2.50 per square foot of on-site
landscape area.

. Prior to final inspection, the applicant shall demonstrate the following:

B.4.1. Compliance with TMC Section 6.36.380(l).

B.4.2. All landscaping and irrigation shown in the approved building permit construction
plans installed to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

B.4.3. All exterior and parking area lighting shall be directed downward or shielded, to
prevent glare or spray of light into the public rights-of-way and onto any adjacent
private property to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

Prior to commencing any cannabis operation, the applicant shall execute a Community
Benefit Agreement with the City in accordance with the requirements of their Cannabis
Business Permit.

Aside from deliveries, the use shall be conducted wholly indoors. The use may not be
conducted outside the building, including in the parking lot.

The hours of operation shall be limited to 8:00 am to 10:00 pm in accordance with
State law. Should the hours of operation established in the State law become more
restrictive, the use shall comply with the more restrictive regulations.

Before installation of exterior business identification signs, the applicant shall secure
sign and building permits for such signs. All signs, including temporary signage, shall
be on private property and shall not encroach into the public right-of-way.

No bollards, chain link, or similar improvements that are industrial in nature shall be
readily visible to the public.

C. Development Services Department, Engineering Conditions of Approval

Contact: Al Gali (209) 831-6436 al.gali@cityoftracy.org

CA1.

C.2.

General Conditions

RESERVED

RESERVED


mailto:al.gali@cityoftracy.org

Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 5
Application No. EXT23-0005

C.3.

C4.

RESERVED

Grading Permit

All grading work (on-site and off-site) shall require a Grading Plan. All grading work shall
be performed and completed in accordance with the recommendation(s) of the Project’s
Registered Geotechnical Engineer. Prior to release of a Grading Permit, Developer shall
provide all documents related to said Grading Permit required by the applicable City
Regulations and these Conditions of Approval, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer,
including, but not limited to, the following:

C.4.1

C4.2

C43

C44

C4.5

C4.6

Developer has completed all requirements set forth in this section.

Developer has obtained the approval (i.e. recorded easements for slopes,
drainage, utilities, access, parking, etc.) of all other public agencies and/or
private entities with jurisdiction over the required public and/or private facilities
and/or property. Written permission from affected owner(s) will be required to be
submitted to the City prior to the issuance of the Grading Permit.

Developer has obtained a demolition permit to remove any existing structure
located within the Project’s limits.

All existing on-site water well(s), septic system(s), and leech field(s), if any, shall
be abandoned or removed in accordance with the City and San Joaquin County
requirements. Developer shall be responsible for all costs associated with the
abandonment or removal of the existing well(s), septic system(s), and leech
field(s) including the cost of permit(s) and inspection. Developer shall submit a
copy of written approval(s) or permit(s) obtained from San Joaquin County
regarding the removal and abandonment of any existing well(s), prior to the
issuance of the Grading Permit.

The Improvement Plans for all improvements to serve the Project (on-site and
off-site) including the Grading and Drainage Plans shall be prepared in
accordance with the City’s Subdivision Ordinance (Tracy Municipal Code (TMC)
Chapter 12.36), City Design Documents as defined in Title 12 of the TMC, and
these Conditions of Approval.

On-site Grading/Drainage Plans and Improvement Plans shall be prepared on a
twenty-four (24) inch x thirty-six (36) inch size four (4) millimeter thick polyester
film (mylar). These plans shall use the City’s Title Block. Improvement Plans
shall be prepared under the supervision of, stamped and signed by a Registered
Civil Engineer and Registered Geotechnical Engineer. Developer shall obtain
all applicable signatures by City departments and outside agencies (where
applicable) on the mylars including signatures by the Fire Marshal prior to
submitting the mylars to Engineering Division for City Engineer’s signature.
Erosion control measures shall be implemented in accordance with the
Improvement Plans approved by the City Engineer for all grading work. All
grading work not completed before October 15 may be subject to additional
requirements as applicable. Improvement Plans shall specify all proposed



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 6
Application No. EXT23-0005

C4.7

Cc4.8

C4.9

C.4.10

erosion control methods and construction details to be employed and specify
materials to be used during and after the construction.

Payment of the applicable Grading Permit fees which include grading plan
checking and inspection fees, and other applicable fees as required by these
Conditions of Approval.

For Projects on property larger than one (1) acre: Prior to the issuance of the
Grading Permit, Developer shall submit to the Utilities Department
(stephanie.hiestand@cityoftracy.org) one (1) electronic copy and one (1) hard
copy of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) as submitted in
Stormwater Multiple Applications and Reporting Tracker System (SMARTS)
along with either a copy of the Notice of Intent (NOI) with the state-issued
Wastewater Discharge Identification number (WDID) or a copy of the receipt for
the NOI. After the completion of the Project, the Developer is responsible for
filing the Notice of Termination (NOT) required by SWQCB, and shall provide
the City, a copy of the completed Notice of Termination. Cost of preparing the
SWPPP, NOI and NOT including the annual storm drainage fees and the filing
fees of the NOI and NOT shall be paid by the Developer. Developer shall
comply with all the requirements of the SWPPP, applicable Best Management
Practices (BMPs) and the Stormwater Post-Construction Standards adopted by
the City in 2015 and any subsequent amendment(s).

For Projects on property smaller than one (1) acre: Prior to the issuance of the
Grading Permit, the Developer shall submit to the Utilities Department
(stephanie.hiestand@cityoftracy.org) one (1) electronic copy and 1 hard copy of
the City of Tracy Erosion and Sediment Control Plan (ESCP) for approval. Cost
of preparing the ESCP including any annual storm drainage fees shall be paid
by the Developer. Developer shall comply with all the requirements of the
ESCP, applicable BMPs and the Post-Construction Stormwater Standards
adopted by the City in 2015 and any subsequent amendment(s).

Developer shall provide a PDF copy of the Project’'s Geotechnical Report signed
and stamped by a Registered Geotechnical Engineer. The technical report must
include relevant information related to soil types and characteristics, soil bearing
capacity, compaction recommendations, retaining wall recommendations, if
necessary, paving recommendations, paving calculations such as gravel factors,
gravel equivalence, etc., slope recommendations, and elevation of the highest
observed groundwater level.

Minor Retaining — Developer shall use reinforced or engineered masonry blocks
for retaining soil at property lines when the grade differential among the in-tract
lots exceeds twelve (12) inches. Developer will include construction details of
these minor retaining walls with the on-site Grading and Drainage Plan.
Developer may use slopes among the lots to address the grade differential but
said slope shall not exceed a slope gradient of 3 (horizontal) to 1 (vertical)
unless a California licensed geotechnical engineer signs and stamps a
geotechnical report letter that supports a steeper slope gradient. Slope
easements may be required and will be subject to approval by the City
Engineer.



mailto:stephanie.hiestand@cityoftracy.org
mailto:stephanie.hiestand@cityoftracy.org

Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 7
Application No. EXT23-0005

C.4.11

C4.12

C.4.13

C4.14

Minor Retaining along Project Perimeter — Developer shall use reinforced or
engineered masonry blocks for retaining soil along the Project boundary and
adjacent property(s) when the grade differential exceeds 12-inches. Developer
will include construction details for these minor retaining walls with the on-site
Grading and Drainage Plan. Developer may use slopes to address the grade
differential but said slope shall not exceed a slope gradient of 3 (horizontal) to 1
(vertical). Slope easements may be subject to approval by the City Engineer
and if adjacent and affected property(s) owner(s) grants said easements.

Slopes are an acceptable option as a substitute to engineered retaining walls,
where cuts or fills do not match existing ground or final grade with the adjacent
property or public right of way, up to a maximum grade differential of two (2)
feet, subject to approval by the City Engineer.

Slope easements will be recorded, prior to the issuance of the Grading Permit.
The Developer shall be responsible to obtain and record slope easement(s) on
private properties, where it is needed to protect private improvements
constructed within and outside the Project, and a copy of the recorded
easement document must be provided to the City, prior to the issuance of the
Grading Permit.

Walls - Developer shall show proposed retaining walls and masonry walls on the
on-site Grading and Drainage Plan. The Developer is required to submit
improvement plans, construction details, and structural calculations for retaining
walls and masonry walls to Building and Safety. Retaining wall and masonry
wall design parameters will be included in the geotechnical report.

Developer shall provide a copy of the approved Incidental Take Minimization
Measures (ITMM) habitat survey [San Joaquin County Multi-Species Habitat
Conservation & Open Space Plan (SJIMSCP)] from San Joaquin Council of
Governments (SJCOG).

Developer shall provide a copy of the approved Air Impact Assessment (AlA)
with an Indirect Source Review (ISR) from San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution
Control District (SJVAPCD).

Developer shall abandon or remove all existing irrigation structures, channels
and pipes, if any, as directed by the City after coordination with the irrigation
district, if the facilities are no longer required for irrigation purposes. If irrigation
facilities including tile drains, if any, are required to remain to serve existing
adjacent agricultural uses, the Developer will design, coordinate and construct
required modifications to the facilities to the satisfaction of the affected agency
and the City. Written permission from irrigation district or affected owner(s) will
be required to be submitted to the City prior to the issuance of the Grading
Permit. The cost of relocating and/or removing irrigation facilities and/or tile
drains is the sole responsibility of the Developer.

If the Project contains overhead utilities, the Developer shall underground
existing overhead utilities such as electric, TV cable, telephone, and others.



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 8
Application No. EXT23-0005

C.4.15

Each dry utility shall be installed at the location approved by the respective
owner(s) of dry utility and the Developer shall coordinate such activities with
each utility owner. All costs associated with the undergrounding shall be the
sole responsibility of the Developer and no reimbursement will be due from the
City. Developer shall submit undergrounding plans.

If at any point during grading that the Developer, its contractor, its engineers,
and their respective officials, employees, subcontractor, and/or subconsultant
exposes/encounters/uncovers any archeological, historical, or other
paleontological findings, the Developer shall address the findings as required
per the General Plan Cultural Resource Policy and General Plan EIR; and
subsequent Cultural Resource Policy or mitigation in any applicable
environmental document.

C.5. Improvement Agreement(s)

All construction activity involving public improvements will require a fully executed
improvement agreement (Off-site, Subdivision, and/or Inspection). Any construction
activity involving public improvements without a fully executed improvement
agreement is prohibited. All public improvements shall be performed and completed
in accordance with the recommendation(s) of the Project’s Registered Civil Engineer.
Prior to the consideration of City Council’'s approval of said improvement agreement,
the Developer shall provide all documents related to said improvements required by
the applicable City Regulations and these Conditions of Approval, to the satisfaction
of the City Engineer, including, but not limited to, the following:

C.5.1.

Off-site and/or Public Infrastructure Improvement Plans prepared on a
twenty-four (24) inch x thirty-six (36) inch size four (4) millimeter thick mylar
that incorporate all requirements described in the documents described in
these Conditions of Approval, the City’s Design Documents as defined in Title
12 of the Tracy Municipal Code. Developer shall use the latest title block
and, if necessary, contain a signature block for the Fire Marshal.
Improvement Plans shall be prepared under the supervision of, and stamped
and signed by a Registered Civil, Traffic, Electrical, Mechanical Engineer,
and Registered Landscape Architect for the relevant work. Developer shall
obtain all applicable signatures by City departments and outside agencies
(where applicable) on the mylars including signatures by Fire Marshal to
submitting the mylars to Engineering Division for City Engineer’s signature.
The improvement plans shall be prepared to specifically include, but not be
limited to, the following items:

C.5.1.a. All existing and proposed utilities such as domestic water line,
irrigation service, fire service line, storm drain, and sanitary sewer,
including the size and location of the pipes.

C.5.1.b. All supporting engineering calculations, materials information or
technical specifications, cost estimate, and technical reports. All
improvement plans shall contain a note stating that the Developer
(or Contractor) will be responsible to preserve and protect all



Conditions of Approval

Exhibit 2

The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 9

Application No. EXT23-0005

C.5.1.c.

C.5.1.d.

C.5.1.e.

existing survey monuments and other survey markers such as
benchmarks.

A PDF copy of the Project’s approved Geotechnical/Soils Report
that was prepared for the grading permit submittal.

Storm Water - The Project’s on-site storm water drainage
connection to the City’s storm water system shall be approved by
the City Engineer. Drainage calculations for the sizing of the on-
site storm drainage system. Improvement Plans to be submitted
with the hydrology and storm water.

Storm drainage release point is a location at the boundary of the
Project adjacent public right-of-way where storm water leaves the
Property, in a storm event and that the Property’s on-site storm
drainage system fails to function or it is clogged. Site grading shall
be designed such that the Project’s storm drainage overland
release point will be directly to an adjacent public street with a
functional storm drainage system and the existing storm drainage
line has adequate capacity to drain storm water from the Property.
The storm drainage release point is recommended to be at least
0.70-feet lower than the building finish floor elevation and shall be
designed and improved to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

The Project’s permanent storm drainage connection(s) shall be
designed and constructed in accordance with City Regulations. The
design of the permanent storm drainage connection shall be shown
on the Grading and Drainage Plans with calculations for the sizing
of the storm drain pipe(s), and shall comply with the applicable
requirements of the City’s storm water regulations adopted by the
City Council in 2012 and any subsequent amendments.

The storm water treatment system shall be located on private
property and shall be at least off-set from the right-of-way by one
(1) foot.

Sanitary Sewer - It is the Developer’s responsibility to design and
construct the Project’s permanent on-site sanitary sewer (sewer)
improvements including the Project’s sewer connection in
accordance with the City’s Design Standards, City Regulations and
Standard Specifications. Sewer improvements shall include but not
limited to, replacing asphalt concrete pavement, reconstructing
curb, gutter and sidewalk, restoring pavement marking and striping,
and other improvements that are disturbed as a result of installing
the Project’s permanent sewer connection. Developer shall submit
improvement plans that include the design of the sewer line from
the Property to the point of connection.

Developer is hereby notified that the City will not provide
maintenance of the sewer lateral within the publicright-of-way



Conditions of Approval

Exhibit 2

The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 10

Application No. EXT23-0005

C.5.1.1.

unless the sewer cleanout is located and constructed in
conformance with Standard Plans. The City’s responsibility to
maintain on the sewer lateral is from the wye/onsite sewer manhole
at the right-of-way line/property line/wye fitting to the point of
connection with the sewer main.

Developer shall abandon the existing sewer lateral to each existing
structure and replace it with a 6-inch diameter sewer lateral.

Water Distribution - Developer shall design and construct domestic
and irrigation water service that comply with the City Regulations.
Water line sizing, layout and looping requirements for this Project
shall comply with City Regulations. During the construction of the
Project, the Developer is responsible for providing water
infrastructure (temporary or permanent) capable of delivering
adequate fire flows and pressure appropriate to the various stages
of construction and as approved by the Fire Marshal.

Interruption to the water supply to the existing businesses and
other users will not be allowed to facilitate construction of
improvements related to the Project. Developer shall be
responsible for notifying business owner(s) and users, regarding
construction work. The written notice, as approved by the City
Engineer, shall be delivered to the affected residents or business
owner(s) at least seventy-two (72) hours before start of work. Prior
to starting the work described in this section, the Developer shall
submit a Work Plan acceptable to the City that demonstrates no
interruptions to the water supply, and Traffic Control Plan to be
used during the installation of the off-site water mains and
connections.

The Project’s water service connections shall use a remote-read
(radio-read) master water meter (the water meter to be located
within City's right-of-way) and a Reduced Pressure Type back-
flow protection device in accordance with City Regulations. The
domestic and irrigation water service connection(s) must be
completed before the inspection of the building. The location of
the meters shall be approved by the City Engineer.

After final inspection of the improvements constructed via an
encroachment permit, repair and maintenance of the water service
from the water meter to the point of connection with the water
distribution main in the street shall be the responsibility of the
City. Water service repairs after the water meter is the
responsibility of the Developer or individual lot owner(s).

Prior to improvement acceptance, repair and maintenance of all
on-site water lines, laterals, sub-water meters, valves, fittings, fire
hydrant and appurtenances shall be the responsibility of the
Developer or the individual lot owner(s).



Conditions of Approval

Exhibit 2

The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 11

Application No. EXT23-0005

C.5.1.4.

All costs associated with the installation of the Project’s water
connection(s) including the cost of removing and replacing asphalt
concrete pavement, pavement marking and striping such as
crosswalk lines and lane line markings on existing street or parking
area(s) that may be disturbed with the installation of the permanent
water connection(s), or domestic water service, and other
improvements shall be paid by the Developer.

Streets — The Developer shall construct frontage improvements.
Frontage improvements include but are not limited to the following:
curb, gutter, sidewalk, street widening, landscaping, street lighting,
undergrounding of overhead utilities and other improvements. All
streets and utilities improvements within City right-of-way shall be
designed and constructed in accordance with City Regulations, and
City’s Design Standards including the City’s Facilities Master Plan
for storm drainage, roadways, wastewater, and water as adopted,
amended, and updated by the City, or as otherwise specifically
approved by the City.

Eleventh Street Road

Prior to release of the Building Permit, Developer shall submit to
the City ready for immediate recordation, a grant deed to dedicate
a ten (10) foot wide Public Utility Easement (P.U.E.) immediately
behind the property line.

Developer shall remove and replace each existing driveway for
each parcel with a driveway in conformance with a commercial
driveway.

Along the Project frontage, if applicable, Developer shall landscape
and irrigate the existing parkways per current adopted City
landscape standards. Landscape and irrigation plans shall be
prepared on a 24-inch x 36-inch size 4-millimeter thick mylar that
incorporate all requirements described in the documents described
in these Conditions of Approval, the City’s Design Documents as
defined in Title 12 of the Tracy Municipal Code. Developer shall
use the latest title block. Said landscape and irrigation plan shall be
prepared by a California licensed landscape architect. Developer
can either protect-in-place the existing sidewalk and repair any
cracked, settled, and/or damaged sidewalk or remove and replace
the sidewalk so long as the replacement sidewalk is similar to the
current sidewalk, i.e. similar width, meanders, etc.

Street cuts and trenching related to utility installation on Eleventh
Street shall be subject to Condition C.8.1

C.5.2. Joint Trench Plans and Composite Utility Plans, prepared on a twenty-four
(24) inch x thirty-six (36) inch size four (4) millimeter thick mylar for the
installation of dry utilities such as electric, gas, TV cable, telephone, and



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 12
Application No. EXT23-0005

C.5.3.

C.5.4.

C.5.5.

C.5.6

others that will be located within the twenty-four (24) feet wide to forty-six (46)
feet wide [the width varies) PUE to be installed to serve the Project. All
private utility services to serve Project must be installed underground or
relocated to be underground, and to be installed at the location approved by
the respective owner(s) of the utilities from the street or an existing or
proposed utility easement to the building(s). If necessary, the Developer shall
dedicate ten (10) feet wide PUE for access to these new utilities for re-
installation, replacement, repair, and maintenance work to be performed by
the respective utility owner(s) in the future.

Signed and stamped Engineer’s Estimate that summarizes the cost of
constructing all the public improvements shown on the Improvement Plans.
The cost estimate shall show the cost of designing the public improvements.

Payment of applicable fees required by these Conditions of Approval and City
Regulations, including but not limited to, plan checking, grading and
encroachment permits and agreement processing, construction inspection,
and testing fees. The engineering review fees will be calculated based on the
fee rate adopted by the City Council on September 2, 2014, per Resolution
2014-141 and on May 16, 2017, per Resolution 2017-098. Developer shall
submit payment in the form of a check for the aforementioned fees.

Traffic Control Plan - Prior to starting the work for any work within City’s right-
of-way, the Developer shall submit a Traffic Control Plan (TCP). TCP can be
split among the different construction phases. TCP will show the method and
type of construction signs to be used for regulating traffic at the work areas
within these streets. TCP shall conform to the Manual on Uniform Traffic
Control Devices as amended by the State of California, latest edition (MUTCD-
CA). TCP shall be prepared under the supervision of, signed and stamped by
a Registered Civil Engineer or Registered Traffic Engineer.

Access and Traffic Circulation to Existing Businesses/Residents - Developer
shall take all steps necessary to plan and construct site improvements such
that construction operations do not impact safety and access (including
emergency vehicles) to the existing businesses and residents throughout the
duration of construction. Developer shall coordinate with the owners and
cooperate to minimize impacts on existing businesses. All costs of measures
needed to provide safe and functional access shall be borne by the
Developer.

No street trench shall be left open, uncovered, and/or unprotected during
night hours and when the Developer’s contractor is not performing
construction activities. Appropriate signs and barricades shall be installed on
the street and on all trenches during such times. If the Developer or its
contractor elects to use steel plates to cover street trenches, said steel plates
will be skid-resistance, and shall be ramped on all sides. Ramps will be a
minimum two-foot wide and will run the entire length of each side.

If at any point during utility installation or construction in general that the
Developer, its contractor, its engineers, and their respective officials,



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 13
Application No. EXT23-0005

C.6.

C.5.7

employees, subcontractor, and/or subconsultant
exposes/encounters/uncovers any archeological, historical, or other
paleontological findings, the Developer shall address the findings as required
per the General Plan Cultural Resource Policy and General Plan EIR; and
subsequent Cultural Resource Policy or mitigation in any applicable
environmental document.

Improvement Security - Developer shall provide improvement security for all
public facilities, as required by the Improvement Agreement. The form of the
improvement security may be a bond, or other form in accordance with the
Government Code, and the TMC. The amount of the improvement security
shall be in accordance with Title 12 of the TMC.

Insurance — Developer shall provide written evidence of insurance coverage
that meets the terms of the Improvement Agreement.

Building Permit

Prior to the release of a building permit within Project boundaries, the Developer shall
demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, compliance with all required
Conditions of Approval, including, but not limited to, the following:

C.6.1

C.6.2

C.6.3

C.6.4

Developer has completed all requirements set forth in Condition C.1, through
C.5, above.

Developer pays the applicable development impact fees as required in the
TMC, these Conditions of Approval, and City Regulations.

C.6.2.a. Water. The Developer shall pay the water impact fees prior to pulling
the first building permit for the Project.

C.6.2.b. Wastewater. The Developer shall pay the wastewater treatment
capacity development Impact fees prior to pulling the first building permit for
the Project.

Developer shall submit a separate building permit for the demolition of any
existing structures.

Developer has completed all requirements set forth in Condition C.8

C.7 Acceptance of Public Improvements

C.7.1

Prior to the consideration of City Council’'s acceptance of public improvements, the
Developer shall demonstrate to the reasonable satisfaction of the City Engineer,
completion of the following:

Developer has satisfied all the requirements set forth in these Conditions of
Approval.



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 14
Application No. EXT23-0005

C.7.2

C.7.3

C.74

C.7.5

C.7.6

C.7.7

C.7.8

Developer submitted the Storm water Treatment Facilities Maintenance
Agreement (STFMA) to the Utilities Department.

Developer has satisfactory completed construction of all required/conditioned
improvements. Unless specifically provided in these Conditions of Approval,
or some other applicable City Regulations, the Developer shall use diligent
and good faith efforts in taking all actions necessary to construct all public
facilities required to serve the Project, and the Developer shall bear all costs
related to construction of the public facilities (including all costs of design,
construction, construction management, plan check, inspection, land
acquisition, program implementation, and contingency).

Certified “As-Built” Improvement Plans (or Record Drawings). Upon
completion of the construction by the Developer, the City, at its sole
discretion, temporarily release the original mylars of the Improvement Plans
to the Developer so that the Developer will be able to document revisions to
show the "As-Built" configuration of all improvements.

Developer shall be responsible for any repairs or reconstruction of street
pavement, curb, gutter and sidewalk and other public improvements along
the frontage of the Project, if determined by the City Engineer to be in poor
condition or damaged by construction activities related to the Project.

Developer has completed the ninety (90) day public landscaping
maintenance period.

Per Section 21107.5 of the California Vehicle Code, Developer shall install
signs at all entrance(s) of the Project stating that the streets are privately
owned and maintained and are not subject to the public traffic regulations or
control. Said signs must be conspicuously placed, plainly visible, and legible
during daylight hours from a distance of one hundred (100) feet.

Survey Monuments — Any altered, damaged, or destroyed survey monuments
and/or benchmarks shall be re-established. Developer shall submit
centerline tie sheets or a record of survey for the following: new public
streets; re-established survey monuments, and/or benchmarks. If the
Developer destroyed, altered, and/or reconstructed any existing curb returns,
Developer shall also submit corner records. Any survey document will be
submitted the City and to the San Joaquin County Surveyor to comply with
California Business and Professions Code Section 8771(c). Said work shall
be executed by a California licensed Land Surveyor at the Developer’s sole
expense.

C.8 Special Conditions

C.8.1

When street cuts are made for the installation of utilities, the Developer shall
conform to Section 3.14 of the 2020 Design Standards and is required install
a two (2) inch thick asphalt concrete (AC) overlay with reinforcing fabric at
least twenty-five (25) feet from all sides of each utility trench. A two (2) inch
deep grind on the existing AC pavement will be required where the AC



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 15
Application No. EXT23-0005

overlay will be applied and shall be uniform thickness in order to maintain
current pavement grades, cross and longitudinal slopes. This pavement
repair requirement is when cuts/trenches are perpendicular and parallel to the
street’s direction.

C.8.2  Nothing contained herein shall be construed to permit any violation of
relevant ordinances and regulations of the City of Tracy, or other public
agency having jurisdiction. This Condition of Approval does not preclude the
City from requiring pertinent revisions and additional requirements to the
improvement plans, prior to the City Engineer’s signature on the improvement
plans, and prior to issuance of Grading Permit, Encroachment Permit,
Building Permit, if the City Engineer finds it necessary due to public health
and safety reasons, and it is in the best interest of the City. The Developer
shall bear all the cost for the inclusion, design, and implementations of such
additions and requirements, without reimbursement or any payment from the
City.

C.8.3 Prior to the release of the Building Permit, if water is required for the Project,
the Developer shall obtain an account for the water service and register the
water meter with the Finance Department. Developer shall pay all fees
associated with obtaining the account number for the water service.

C.8.4  Prior to the release of the Building Permit, Developer shall record with San
Joaquin County Recorder a document to merge the two parcels.

D. Tracy Police Department Conditions

Contact: Lieutenant Miguel Contreras (209) 831-6618 miguel.contreras@tracypd.com

D.1. A minimum of 2 on-site security guards shall be maintained on site during business
hours and 1 on-site security guard during closed hours. The name of the company shall
be provided to the Police Department at the time of Building Permit application
submittal. The establishment shall remain closed for business if the minimum of 2
certified security guards are not present during business hours on any given day. Once
the minimum-security staffing is met, the establishment may re-open for business.
D.1.1. Overnight (nonbusiness hours) security shall be a minimum of 1 certified guard

solely responsible for the security of this establishment and not multiple
locations.

D.1.2. All contracted or employed guards shall be certified and have sole
responsibilities as a security guard focused on safety and security. The security
guards will be readily identifiable.

D.1.3. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit an updated
security plan to the Tracy Police Department that reflects the conditions of
approval above to the satisfaction of the Police Chief.

D.2. Applicant shall cooperate with all legal requests from Tracy PD and any crimes shall be
reported without delay.


mailto:miguel.contreras@tracypd.com

Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 16
Application No. EXT23-0005

D.3. Prior to establishment of the use, the applicant shall establish and maintain an updated

on-call list of responders with their alarm service provider and current alarm permit with
the City of Tracy, to include the on-site security manager. This shall be provided prior to
the establishment of the use.

D.4. Trash containers and enclosures shall be locked and not accessible by the public at all

times.

E. South San Joaquin County Fire Authority Conditions

Contact: Daniel Stowe (209) 831-6707 daniel.stowe@sijcfire.org

E.1.

E.2.

E.3.

E.4.

E.S.

E.6.

Prior to construction, applicant shall submit construction documents to the South San

Joaquin County Fire Authority for review and approval.

E.1.1. Construction documents shall be designed to the current edition of the
California Code of Regulations, Title 24, as amended by the City of Tracy
Municipal Code.

Engineering and building permit applications received by our offices are subject to the
current fee schedule for South San Joaquin County Fire Authority. Contact our offices
for additional information.

E.21. Application processing fees and minimum plan review fees are due at
time of submittal of construction documents.

E.2.2. Additional plan review fees, minimum inspection fees and administrative
fees are calculated on approval of project and shall be paid prior to issuance of
permit.

E.2.3. Permit holder is responsible for any additional inspection fees incurred,
which shall be paid prior to final inspection.

Prior to occupancy of the new business, the tenant shall contact South San Joaquin
County Fire Authority for a new business inspection. Additional fees may be required
for New Business, Annual and Operational Fire Permits. All fees shall be paid prior to
approval of inspections.

Knox box 3200 series shall be required for project. Each tenant shall have keys
placed in the key box. The operator of the building shall immediately notify the Fire
Authority and provide the new key where a lock is changed or rekeyed. The key to
such shall be secured in the key box.

Building shall be provided with approved address identification internally or externally
illuminated in accordance with 2019 CFC Section 505.1 as amended by the Tracy
Municipal Code.

Prior to final inspection, emergency radio responder coverage shall be tested to
confirm coverage areas. It is beneficial for the applicant to conduct testing at
foundation as retrofitting for the conduit is costly. If coverage is inadequate, a
separate permit for emergency radio responder coverage shall be submitted to
SSJCFA for review and approval prior to installation.



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 17
Application No. EXT23-0005

E.6.1. Additional improvements may warrant additional testing to be performed.
Testing shall be the determination of the fire code official.

F. Development Services Department, Building Division Conditions

Contact: Phillip Rainone (209) 831-6413 Phillip.Rainone@cityoftracy.org

F.1. The means of egress shall provide an unobstructed path that leads any person
(including those with impairments) to the public way. The accessible parking stall is
not meant to serve as a location for people to use when an emergency occurs.
Therefore, at time of building permit application submittal, the applicant shall provide
and egress plan that complies with CBC Chapter 10.

F.2. Attime of building permit submittal, applicant to demonstrate compliance with CBC
11B-202.4 and 206 for path of travel requirements to new areas of
alteration/addition, to right of way, between buildings, and to facilities on site,
including the accessible trash enclosure. Currently, an accessible router is not
shown to the trash enclosure.

F.3. Per CBC Chapter 2, the definition of "means of egress" is, - "A continuous and
unobstructed path of vertical and horizontal egress travel from any occupied portion
of a building or structure to a public way." Currently, this plan does not meet the
intent of the definition, nor does it comply with CBC Chapter 10. Therefore, at time of
building permit submittal, applicant shall provide an emergency egress plan that
complies with CBC Chapter 10, as applicable to the project.

F.4. Prior to building permit issuance, applicant must submit separate demolition permit
applications for all structures being removed due to the construction of this project
per CBC 105, as it is not exempt from permits.

F.5. Attime of building permit application submittal, applicant shall submit plans that are
prepared by a registered design professional per CBC 107.1.

F.6. Attime of building permit submittal, applicant to demonstrate compliance with CBC
11B-202.4 and 206 for path of travel requirements to new areas of
alteration/addition, to right of way, between buildings, and to facilities on site,
including the accessible trash enclosure.

F.7. Attime of building permit submittal, applicant shall provide an emergency egress
plan from the new building to the public right-of-way that complies with CBC Chapter
10, as applicable to the project.

F.8. At the time of building permit application submittal, the applicant shall show
compliance with CBC 1010, as applicable for the types of doors and door-locking
mechanisms that will be used for this project.

F.9. Attime of building permit application, the applicant shall provide details of accessible
parking stall and their access aisles per CBC 11B-502, as applicable.


mailto:%20Phillip.Rainone@cityoftracy.org

Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 18
Application No. EXT23-0005

F.10.

F.11.

F.12.

At time of building permit application submittal, applicant shall provide accessible
stall to be on the shortest accessible route from parking to an entrance complying
CBC 11B-206.4.

At the time of building permit application submittal, the applicant shall provide a
calculation for the minimum required number of toilet facilities per CPC Chapter 4.

Prior to construction of any structures, applicant shall submit a building permit
application along with all pertinent construction documents such as plans,
specifications, and/or calculations to the Building Safety Division prior to the
construction of the canopy. Construction documents shall conform to the Title 24
California Code of Regulations edition effective on the date of application for a
building permit.

G. The following conditions provide the applicant with options for funding required
Citywide services.

Contact: Karin Schnaider (209) 831-6841 karin.schnaider@cityoftracy.org

G.1.

Streets and Streetlights

Before issuance of any building permit for the Property, Developer shall provide for
perpetual funding of the on-going costs of the operation and maintenance of the
streets (from curb-to-curb, excluding gutters) to a Pavement Management System
standard of PCI 70 (seventy), which could include street reconstruction, as
reasonably determined by the City, the electric utility costs of operating the
streetlights and signals that will serve the Project (collectively, the “Infrastructure”),
by doing one of the following, subject to the approval of the City’s Finance Director:

a. Community Facilities District (CED). Developer shall enter into an agreement with
the City, to be signed by the Finance Director, which shall be recorded against
the Property, which requires that prior to the final inspection, Developer shall
complete the annexation of the Property to City of Tracy Community Facilities
District in compliance with the requirements of the Mello — Roos Community
Facilities Act of 1982 (Gov. Code § 53311 et seq.) including, without limitation,
affirmative votes, and the recordation of a Notice of Special Tax Lien. Developer
shall be responsible for all costs associated with the CFD proceedings.

Or

b. POA and dormant CFD. If the POA is the chosen funding mechanism, Developer
must do the following:

1) Form a Property Owner’s Association (POA) or other maintenance
association, with CC&Rs reasonably acceptable to the City, to assume
the obligation for the on-going costs of the operation and maintenance of
the streets (from curb-to-curb, excluding gutters) to a Pavement
Management System standard of PCI 70 (seventy), which could include
street reconstruction, as reasonably determined by the City, the electric


mailto:midori.lichtwardt@ci.tracy.ca.us

Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 19
Application No. EXT23-0005

G.2.

C.

Or

utility costs of operating the streetlights and signals that will serve the
Project (collectively, the “Infrastructure”);

Cause the POA to enter into an agreement with the City, in a form to be
approved by the City and to be recorded against the Property prior to the
final inspection, setting forth, among other things, the required
maintenance obligations, the standards of maintenance, and all other
associated obligation(s) of the POA to ensure the on-going costs of the
operation and maintenance of the streets (from curb-to-curb, excluding
gutters) to a Pavement Management System standard of PCI 70
(seventy), which could include street reconstruction, as reasonably
determined by the City, the electric utility costs of operating the
streetlights and signals that will serve the Project (collectively, the
“Infrastructure”);

Before final inspection, annex into a CFD in a "dormant" capacity, to be
triggered if the POA fails (as determined by the City in its sole and
exclusive discretion) to perform the required level of operation,
maintenance and replacement for the on-going costs of the operation and
maintenance of the streets (from curb-to-curb, excluding gutters) to a
Pavement Management System standard of PCI 70 (seventy), which
could include street reconstruction, as reasonably determined by the City,
the electric utility costs of operating the streetlights and signals that will
serve the Project (collectively, the “Infrastructure”). The dormant tax or
assessment shall be disclosed to all property owners, even during the
dormant period.

Direct funding. Developer shall enter into an agreement with the City, which shall
be recorded against the Property, which requires that prior to approval of final
inspection, Developer shall deposit with the City an amount necessary, as
reasonably determined by the City, to fund in perpetuity the on-going costs of the
operation and maintenance of the streets (from curb-to-curb, excluding gutters)
to a Pavement Management System standard of PCI 70 (seventy), which could
include street reconstruction, as reasonably determined by the City, the electric
utility costs of operating the streetlights and signals that will serve the Project
(collectively, the “Infrastructure”).

If the provisions for adequate funding of the on-going costs of the operation and
maintenance of the streets (from curb-to-curb, excluding gutters) to a Pavement
Management System standard of PCI 70 (seventy), which could include street
reconstruction, as reasonably determined by the City, the electric utility costs of
operating the streetlights and signals that will serve the Project (collectively, the
“Infrastructure”) are met prior to issuance of the building permit for the Property,
subject to the Finance Director’s review and approval, the terms of this condition
shall be considered to have been met and this condition shall become null and void.

Landscaping Maintenance



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 20
Application No. EXT23-0005

Prior to issuance of any building permit for the Property, Developer shall provide for
perpetual funding of the on-going costs of operation, maintenance and replacement
for public landscaping for the Property at a high-quality service level as determined
by the Parks Director by doing one of the following, subject to the approval of the
City’s Finance Director:

a. CFD or other funding mechanism. The Developer shall enter into an agreement
with the City, which shall be recorded against the Property, which stipulates the
following: (1) prior to issuance of a building permit, the Developer shall form or
annex into a Community Facilities District (CFD) for funding the on-going costs
related to maintenance, operation, repair and replacement of public landscaping,
public walls and any public amenities included in the Project, and ongoing public
landscaping maintenance costs associated with major program roadways
identified in the Citywide Roadway and Transportation Master Plan; (2) the items
to be maintained include but are not limited to the following: ground cover, turf,
shrubs, trees, irrigation systems, drainage and electrical systems; masonry walls
or other fencing, entryway monuments or other ornamental structures, furniture,
recreation equipment, hardscape and any associated appurtenances within
medians, parkways, dedicated easements, channel-ways, public parks, and
public open space areas and trails; (3) formation of the CFD shall include, but not
be limited to, affirmative votes and the recordation of a Notice of Special Tax
Lien; (4) upon successful formation, the parcels will be subject to the maximum
special tax rates as outlined in the Rate and Method of Apportionment; (5) prior
to issuance of a building permit, the Developer shall deposit an amount equal to
the first year's taxes; and (6) the Developer shall be responsible for all costs
associated with formation or annexation of the CFD.

Or

b. POA and dormant CFD. If the POA is the chosen funding mechanism, the
Developer must do the following:

1. Form a Property Owner’s Association (POA) or other maintenance
association, with CC&Rs reasonably acceptable to the City, to
assume the obligation for the on-going maintenance of all public
landscaping areas that will serve the Property;

2. Cause the POA to enter into an agreement with the City, in a form
to be approved by the City and to be recorded against the
Property prior to the final inspection, setting forth, among other
things, the required maintenance obligations, the standards of
maintenance, and all other associated obligation(s) to ensure the
long-term maintenance by the POA of all public landscape areas
that will serve the Property;

3. Make and submit to the City, in a form reasonably acceptable to
the City, an irrevocable offer of dedication of all public landscape
areas that will serve the Property;



Conditions of Approval Exhibit 2
The Cake House CUP21-0009 Renewal Page 21
Application No. EXT23-0005

4. Before final inspection, annex into a CFD in a "dormant" capacity,
to be triggered if the POA fails (as determined by the City in its
sole and exclusive discretion) to perform the required level of
public landscape maintenance. The dormant tax or assessment
shall be disclosed to all property owners, even during the dormant
period.

Or

c. Direct funding. The Developer shall enter into an agreement with the City, which
shall be recorded against the Property, which stipulates that prior to issuance of
a building permit, the Developer shall deposit with the City an amount necessary,
as reasonably determined by the City, to fund in perpetuity the full on-going
maintenance costs related to maintenance, operation, repair and replacement of
public landscaping, public walls and any public amenities included in the Project,
and ongoing public landscaping maintenance costs associated with major
program roadways identified in the Citywide Roadway and Transportation Master
Plan. The items to be maintained include but are not limited to the following:
ground cover, turf, shrubs, trees, irrigation systems, drainage and electrical
systems, masonry walls or other fencing, entryway monuments or other
ornamental structures, furniture, recreation equipment, hardscape and any
associated appurtenances within medians, parkways, dedicated easements,
channel-ways, public parks, and public open space areas and trails.



	2. Attachment A EXT23-0005.pdf
	TRACY CANNABIS DISPENSARY  - 3RD CUP SET
	CUP 01.T- 01 TITLE SHEET
	CUP 02.A - 01 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN
	CUP 03.A - 01.1 UTILITY SITE PLAN
	CUP 04.A - 01.2 SITE CONTEXT
	CUP 05.A - 02 AS BUILT SITE / DEMO PLAN
	CUP 06.S - 02 SURVEY
	CUP 07.G - 06 GRADING
	CUP 08. L -1 LANDSCAPE
	CUP 09.A - 07 SECURITY FLOOR  PLAN
	CUP 10.A - 08 ELEVATIONS
	CUP 11.A - 09 PERSPECTIVE ELEVATIONS
	CUP 12.A - 10 PRESPECTIVES
	CUP 13.A - 11 SECTIONS





